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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present the Business Performance along with the Audited Financial
Statement for the Financial Year 2021-22.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The standalone and consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, forming
part of this Annual Report, have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Summarised Financial Highlights

Amount in Rupees Lakh
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21 F.Y.2021-22  F.Y.2020-21
Revenue from Operations 62,470.87 47,178.96 63,950.66 48,114.42
Other Income 891.62 469.12 605.66 505.34
Total Income 63,362.49 47,648.08 64,556.32 48,619.76
Employee Expenses 22,494.57 18,358.64 23,248.59 18,860.56
Other Expenses 11,205.27 7,866.01 11,917.00 8,014.30
Depreciation and Amortisation 3,616.44 9,791.28 3,701.83 9,798.91
Finance Cost 5,283.08 5,191.27 5,288.31 5,195.41
Total Expenses 42,599.36 41,207.20 44,155.73 41,869.18
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 20,763.13 6,440.88 20,400.59 6,750.58
Current Tax 5,745.98 207.00 5,833.37 237.09
Deferred Tax (284.37) 12,965.28 (283.12) 12,964.35
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 15,301.52 (6,731.40) 14,850.34 (6,450.86)
Other Comprehensive Income (76.77) 35.60 (54.74) 11.93
Total Comprehensive Income 15,224.75 (6,695.80) 14,795.60 (6,438.93)

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the financial year under review, the Company has generated revenue from operations to the tune of Rs.
62,470.87 Lakh and has earned a profit after tax of Rs. 15,301.52 Lakh as compared to Rs. 47,178.96 Lakh and
loss of Rs. 6,731.40 Lakh respectively during the previous financial year.

Overview of Operations — Particulars and Developments / Outlook

a. Your Company has been consistently delivering best in class service to its clients with SLA adherence
of more than 99% across business units.

b. Your company continuously adopting the new ways of working and focusing on digital adoption in
delivery. Your company implemented the IQ Bot for Data entry of physical applications, rolled out the
Lucid for Bank reconciliation during the year.



c. New digital assets such as Digix, MF Central, DIT Portal, AIF Digital on boarding etc. were launched
and multiple enhancements undertaken in the investor and Distributor App to enhance investor
experience backed by tech enabled initiatives to create delight in client servicing and reporting. Your
Company continued to increase digital participation in the marketplace to handle large transaction
volumes which also supported our clients and the investor community in a big way during the ongoing
pandemic. Your Company also started partnering with new age Fintech Companies to explore multiple
business opportunities. One of such initiative undertaken the during the year was API integration with
Fintech Companies for share the SOA.

d. Your Company has been able to deliver on the operations as well as capitalize on the Mutual Fund
AAUM growth of its portfolio AMCs. Your Company witnessed the Average AUM growth of 41% for
its portfolio AMCs. Also, two new AMCs, NJ Asset Management and SAMCO Asset Management,
added to the portfolio of Your Company.

e. The AIF and Corporate Registry businesses continue to grow, and your Company is well placed in these
businesses to leverage the benefits of growth.

f. New clients and subscribers were acquired in NPS including our first win of a State Government. 2.4
Lakhs subscribers got added from the MP State Government during the year.

g. Expansion and investments in Southeast Asian / ASEAN markets continue to do well and your
Company is growing its engagement with clients for future business growth.

h. During the year your Company acquired Hexagram Fintech Private Limited which helps increase the
Market position of your company by adding Fund accounting and Fund administration platform to your
Company portfolio of service offering.

i. The Board of Directors of the Company approved its Initial Public Offer through Offer for Sale at its
meeting held on March 24, 2022 and approved the issue size of up to Rs. 24,000 million at its meeting
held on 30" March, 2022 and filed the draft red herring prospectus with the Securities and Exchange
Board on April 1, 2022.

j-  The Company has obtained the license to operate under the ancillary framework of the International
Financial Services Centres Authority at Gift City Gujarat.

k. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited invested 9.98% equity share capital of the Company during the year.
Amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of Association

During the Financial Year under review, the Company has on September 30, 2021, amended Clause 5 of its
Memorandum of Association to reflect the change in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company and on
January 28, 2022, changed the name of the Company from ‘KFin Technologies Private Limited’ to ‘KFin
Technologies Limited” pursuant to conversion from a private limited company to a public limited company,
effective from February 24, 2022.

The Articles of Association of the Company were also amended on September 30, 2021, October 12, 2021,
November 10, 2021, January 28, 2022 and March 24, 2022.

Modification in the Sanctioned Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation

During the Financial Year under review, pursuant to an approval from the Board of Directors at its meeting held
on September 06, 2021, the Company filed an application before the National Company Law Tribunal



(“NCLT”) on October 28, 2021, for modification in relation to amortization of goodwill. Such goodwill arose
as a result of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation between Karvy Consultants Limited,
Karvy Computershare Private Limited and our Company, formerly known as ‘Karvy Fintech Private Limited’,
at the relevant time, effective from November 17, 2018. Pursuant to the NCLT order dated March 02, 2022, the
amortization of goodwill has been discontinued with effect from April 01, 2021.

Shareholders’ Agreement

Except as stated hereunder, our Company does not have any subsisting shareholders’ agreements among our
Shareholders vis-a-vis our Company:

Shareholders’ agreement dated September 19, 2021 amongst General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte. Ltd. and
General Atlantic Singapore KFT Pte. Ltd (collectively referred to as “GA”), Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
(“KMB”) and our Company (“SHA”), and Amendment Agreement dated February 22, 2022 amongst GA,
KMBL and our Company (“SHA Amendment Agreement”).

Acquisitions / Investments / Divestments

During the Financial Year under review, pursuant to the share purchase agreement dated December 31, 2021,
entered into with certain shareholders of Hexagram Fintech Private Limited, the Company acquired 14,900,000
equity shares of Hexagram Fintech Private Limited representing 100.00% of the shareholding for a total
consideration amount aggregating to ¥ 251.53 million. The transaction was completed on February 07, 2022.

During the Financial Year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable rules for downstream
investment.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the Financial Year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

However, the Company has changed its status from ‘Private Limited Company’ to ‘Public Limited Company,
with effect from February 24, 2022 pursuant to the resolution passed by the members at their Extraordinary
General Meeting held on January 28, 2022.

DIVIDEND AND RESERVES

In order to conserve resources, the Directors do not recommend any dividend for the Financial Year under
review and also do not propose to transfer any amount to reserves.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022, comprised of equity shares and preference
shares as under:

Sr. Particulars Amount (INR)

No.

01 16,75,68,883 Equity Shares of face value Rs.10 each 167,56,88,830
02 1,000 Preference Shares of face value Rs. 200 each 2,00,000

Total 167,58,88,830




During the Financial Year under review, except as stated under, the Company has not issued shares with or
without differential rights including sweat equity shares or convertible instruments:

Allotted 1,000 (One Thousand) Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 200/- (Rupees Two
Hundred only) each on October 25, 2021, for cash, at par, aggregating to Rs. 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakh
only) through preferential issue.

Allotted 1,67,25,100 (One Crore Sixty-Seven Lakh Twenty-Five Thousand One Hundred) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- (Rupees Ten only) each on November 10, 2021, for cash, at an issue price of Rs. 185.35/- (Rupees One
Hundred Eighty-Five and Paise Thirty-Five only) per equity share, aggregating to Rs. 309,99,97,285/- (Rupees
Three Hundred and Nine Crore Ninety-Nine Lakh Ninety-Seven Thousand Two Hundred Eighty-Five only)
through preferential issue.

Allotted 50 (Fifty) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each on January 18, 2022, for cash, at an issue
price of Rs. 70.36/- (Rupees Seventy and Paise Thirty-Six only) per equity share, aggregating to Rs. 3,518/-
(Rupees Three Thousand Five-Hundred Eighteen only) pursuant to exercise of options issued under KFin ESOP
Plan 2020.

Allotted 150 (One Hundred Fifty) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each on January 18, 2022, for
cash, at an issue price of Rs. 91.98/- (Rupees Ninety-One and Paise Ninety-Eight only) per equity share,
aggregating to Rs. 13,797/- (Rupees Thirteen Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety-Seven only) pursuant to exercise
of options issued under KFin ESOP Plan 2020.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Pursuant to approval of the members at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on July 31, 2019, the Company
adopted the “KFPL Employee Stock Options Plan 2019” (“ESOP Plan”) and thereafter notified the following
schemes at various dates (“ESOP Schemes”) (renamed as indicated in the subsequent paragraph) under the
ESOP Plan:

i.  KFin Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 — Scheme A
ii.  KFin Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 — Scheme B
iii.  KFin Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 — Scheme C
iv.  KFin Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 — Scheme D
v.  KFin Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 — Scheme E
vi.  KFin Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 — Scheme F
vii.  KFin Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 — Scheme G

Pursuant to the change of name of the Company, the name of the ESOP Plan was changed to “KFin Employee
Stock Option Plan 2020 and the ESOP Schemes were also renamed accordingly by the members at the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on October 20, 2020.

Details of the options granted under the ESOP Schemes, are enclosed as Annexure 1 to this Report.
DEBT SECURITIES

During the Financial Year under review, the Company has not issued any debt securities.

The 4,000 rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures issued by the Company on November 16, 2018,
through private placement were redeemed in full at par before its maturity and were accordingly delisted from
BSE Limited with effect from January 06, 2022.



CREDIT RATING

The rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures issued by the Company on November 16, 2018, were
rated as [ICRA-AA] by ICRA Limited and the same have been redeemed during the Financial Year under
review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Your Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board for its success. As on March 31,
2022, the Board comprised of an Executive Director and Eight Non-Executive Directors including three
Independent Directors one of whom is a Woman Director.

During the Financial Year under review, there were changes to the Board of Directors of the Company as stated
hereunder:

Name of Director Type of Change Date of Change
01  Mr. Viswanathan Mavila Nair Change in Designation to Non- October 01, 2021
Executive Director
02  Mr. Srinivas Peddada Appointed as Non-Executive September 30, 2021
Director by the members
03  Mr. Jaideep Hansraj Appointed as Additional Non- November 10, 2021

Executive Director by the Board

Appointed as Non-Executive November 22, 2021
Nominee Director by the members

During the Financial Year under review, there were no changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year under review, the Company has received the necessary declaration from each of the
Independent Directors stating that he / she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors are of the opinion that the Independent Directors possess qualifications such as integrity,
expertise and experience (including the proficiency).

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors have constituted statutory and non-statutory Committees viz. Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, IPO Committee, IT Strategy Committee, Business
Development and Strategy Committee and Sub-Committee for Operational Risk and Compliance.

All the recommendations of the Committees have been accepted by the Board.

The composition of the said Committees as on March 31, 2022, is as under:



Audit Committee

Full Name Designation Category
01  Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar  Independent Director Chairperson
02  Mr. Prashant Saran Independent Director Member
03  Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin Independent Director Member
04  Mr. Shantanu Rastogi Non-Executive Nominee Director Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Full Name Designation Category
01  Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin Independent Director Chairperson
02  Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar  Independent Director Member
03  Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik Non-Executive Nominee Director Member

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Full Name Designation Category
01  Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin Independent Director Chairperson
02  Mr. Prashant Saran Independent Director Member
03  Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik Non-Executive Nominee Director Member

Risk Management Committee

Full Name Designation Category
01  Mr. Prashant Saran Independent Director Chairperson
02  Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar  Independent Director Member
03  Mr. Sathish Kumar Nuggu Chief Technology & Operations Officer Member

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Full Name Designation Category
01  Mr. Prashant Saran Independent Director Chairperson
02  Mr. Vishwanathan Mavila Nair ~ Non-Executive Director Member
03  Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Whole-Time Director and Chief Member
Sreekanth Nadella Executive Officer




IPO Committee

Full Name Designation Category

01  Mr. Shantanu Rastogi Non-Executive Nominee Director Chairperson

02  Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Whole-Time Director and Chief Member
Sreekanth Nadella Executive Officer

03  Mr. Jaideep Hansraj Non-Executive Nominee Director Member

IT Strategy Committee

Full Name Designation Category
01  Mr. Srinivas Peddada Non-Executive Director Chairperson
02  Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar  Independent Director Member
03  Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Whole-Time Director and Chief Member
Sreekanth Nadella Executive Officer

Business Development and Strategy Committee

Full Name Designation Category

01  Mr. Shantanu Rastogi Non-Executive Nominee Director Chairperson

02  Mr. Vishwanathan Mavila Nair ~ Non-Executive Director Member

03  Mr. Srinivas Peddada Non-Executive Director Member

04 Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Whole-Time Director and Chief Member
Sreekanth Nadella Executive Officer

Sub-Committee for Operational Risk and Compliance

Full Name Designation Category

01  Mr. Prashant Saran Independent Director Chairperson

02  Mr. Vivek Narayan Mathur Chief Financial Officer Member

03  Mr. Sathish Kumar Nuggu Chief Technology & Operations Officer =~ Member

04  Mr. Srinivas Yadav Karri Chief Information Security Officer Member

05 Mr. P M Parameswaran General Manager - Operations Member

06  Mr. Anshul Kumar Jain Chief Compliance Officer and Head — Member
Legal

07  Mr. Praveen Shankaran Deputy General Manager Member

08  Mr. Mario Roche Chief Operating Officer — Domestic Fund Member
Services




MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the Financial Year under review, eighteen (18) meetings of the Board were duly convened and held on
May 27,2021, June 24, 2021, September 06, 2021, September 15, 2021, September 24, 2021, October 14, 2021,
October 21, 2021, October 25, 2021 (two meetings), November 01, 2021, November 10, 2021, November 11,
2021, November 30, 2021, December 31, 2021, March 02, 2022, March 11, 2022, March 24, 2022, and March
30, 2022, respectively.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board evaluation framework has been designed in compliance with the requirements under the Companies
Act, 2013 and in consonance with Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by SEBI in January 2017. The
Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board’s Committees and individual Directors
pursuant to the provisions of the Act. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, the Board laid down the criteria for evaluation. This exercise was carried out through a structured
questionnaire prepared separately for the Board, Committees, Chairperson of the Board and individual
Directors. The questionnaires were uploaded at the online tool for the Board members to carry out the Evaluation
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022.

The evaluation reports were shared with the Chairperson of the Board and the evaluation report of the
Chairperson was shared with the Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

As an outcome of the evaluation, it was noted that the Board as a whole, has a composition that is diverse in
experience and perspective and fosters lively and constructive debates. The discussion quality is robust, well
intended and leads to clear direction and decision. It was also noted that the Board Committees function
professionally and smoothly and besides the Board Committee’s terms of reference as mandated by law,
important issues are bought up and discussed in the respective meetings of the Board Committees.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The policy of the Company relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and other
employees, in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, is available on the website of the Company
at https://www kfintech.com/disclosures/.

The policy is framed with a view that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully, the relationship
of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks, to ensure there is a
principle of proportionality while determining the remuneration, to retain, motivate and promote talent and to
ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create a competitive advantage efc.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

The particulars of Directors and employees attracting the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are
enclosed as Annexure 2 to this Report.

SUBSIDIARY / JOINT VENTURE / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the Financial Year under review, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries. In
accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared its consolidated
financial statements and the same forms part of the Annual Report of the Company.



The details of the subsidiary / joint venture / associate companies of the Company as on March 31, 2022, are as
under:

Company Shareholding Country of

Incorporation

A] Subsidiary Companies

KFin Services Private Limited Wholly-owned India
KFin Technologies (Bahrain) W.L.L. subsidiary Bahrain
KFin Technologies (Malaysia) SDN. BHD. Malaysia
Hexagram Fintech Private Limited India
Hexagram Fintech SDN. BHD. Wholly-owned step- Malaysia
(Formerly known as Hexagon Global IT Solutions SDN. down subsidiary

BHD.)

B] Joint Ventures

None

C] Associate Companies

None

Highlights of the performance of the subsidiary Companies are as under and the salient features of its financial
statement are enclosed as Annexure 3 to this Report.

KFin Services Private Limited

KFin Services Private Limited was incorporated on January 06, 2020 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and is engaged in the business of consultancy and business services. Its financial highlights are as
under:

Amounts in Rupees Lakh
Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21

Revenue from Operations = -
Other Income 0.95 -
Total Income 0.95 -

Employee Expenses - -

Other Expenses 104.54 3.06

Depreciation and Amortisation - -

Finance Cost - -

Total Expenses 104.54 3.06
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (103.59) (3.06)
Tax - -
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (103.59) (3.06)

Other Comprehensive Income = -

Total Comprehensive Income = -




KFin Technologies (Bahrain) W.L.L.

KFin Technologies (Bahrain) W.L.L., was incorporated on January 27, 1998, in the Kingdom of Bahrain and is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from November 17, 2018. The Company is engaged in
the business of other activities auxiliary to financial service activities i.e., fund administrator. Its financial
highlights are as under:

Amounts in Rupees Lakh

Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21
Revenue from Operations 325.34 421.00
Other Income 5.44 37.07
Total Income 330.78 458.06
Cost of services 265.36 264.47
General and administrative expenses 29.35 30.73
Depreciation 4.28 3.92
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 19.61 21.13
Finance Cost 1.82 2.09
Total Expenses 320.42 322.34
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 10.36 135.72
Tax - -
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 10.36 135.72
Other Comprehensive Income = -
Total Comprehensive Income - -

KFin Technologies (Malaysia) SDN. BHD.

KFin Technologies (Malaysia) SDN. BHD. was incorporated on March 08, 2016, in Malaysia and is wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from November 17, 2018. The Company is engaged in the
business of transfer agency, back-office services outsourced by market intermediaries and fund managers. Its
financial highlights are as under:

Amounts in Rupees Lakh

Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21
Revenue from Operations 2,038.46 1,613.00
Other Income 11.06 -
Total Income 2,049.52 1,613.00
Direct Costs 1,109.42 1,108.99
Administrative Expenses 747.48 345.74
Other Expenses 36.98 35.72
Finance Costs 2.02 2.06
Total Expenses 1,895.91 1,492.51




Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21

Profit Before Tax 153.62 120.49
Tax 87.55 29.23
Profit After Tax 66.07 91.26

Other Comprehensive Income = -

Total Comprehensive Income 66.07 91.26

Hexagram Fintech Private Limited

Hexagram Fintech Private Limited was incorporated on July 15, 2020 and is engaged in the business of software
development. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from February 07, 2022.
Its financial highlights are as under:

Amounts in Rupees Lakh

Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21
Revenue from operations 574.50 136.48
Other Income 0.04 -
Total Income 574.54 136.48
Employee Expenses 403.70 70.26
Other Expenses 145.26 38.37
Depreciation and Amortisation 68.95 13.22
Finance Cost 18.05 1.95
Total Expenses 635.96 123.80
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (61.42) 12.68
Tax - -
Deferred tax expenses 15.37 (0.50)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (76.79) 13.18
Other Comprehensive Income (3.76) -
Total Comprehensive Income (80.55) 13.18

Hexagram Fintech SDN. BHD.

Hexagram Fintech SDN. BHD. was incorporated on October 19, 2016, in Malaysia and is engaged in the
business of information technology products and consultancy services. The Company is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company with effect from February 07, 2022. Its financial highlights are as under:

Amounts in Rupees Lakh
Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21

Revenue from Operations 271.20 509.63
Other Income - 2.90




Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21

Total Income 271.20 512.53
Direct Costs 117.38 213.20
Administration Expenses 197.09 162.54
Other Operating Expenses 0.21 1.53
Total Expenses 314.67 377.27
Profit Before Tax (43.48) 135.26
Tax 0.17 21.95
Profit After Tax (43.30) 113.31
Other Comprehensive Income = -
Total Comprehensive Income (43.30) 113.31
STATUTORY AUDITORS

B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 116231W/W-100024) were appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of your Company from the Financial Year 2019-20 till the Financial Year 2022-23.
The Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being the Auditors of the Company.

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statement of the Company is part of this Report. There is no
qualification, reservation, adverse remark, or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report.

COST RECORDS / COST AUDIT

During the Financial Year under review, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder relating to maintenance of Cost Records / Cost Audit were not applicable to the Company.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Ernst & Young LLP were appointed as the Internal Auditors of your Company for the Financial Year 2021-22.
The Internal Audit plan is approved by the Audit Committee at the beginning of the year and the audit is oriented
towards the review of internal controls in the Company’s business operations including Infosec / Cyber review
and review of related party / shared services transactions. The Audit Committee is presented with quarterly
updates on the audit along with a summary of audit observations, if any and follow-up actions thereon.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

D V Rao & Associates, Company Secretaries, were appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of your Company for
the Financial Year 2021-22. The audit includes inter-alia review of compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, and applicable regulations prescribed by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India and prescribed under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999. The Report
given by the Auditors on the Secretarial Audit of the Company is enclosed as Annexure 4 to this Report. There
is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark, or disclaimer given by the Secretarial Auditors in their Report.



ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Annual
Return as on March 31, 2021, is available on the website of the Company at https://www.kfintech
.com/disclosures/.

DEPOSITS

During the Financial Year under review, the Company has not invited or accepted any deposits as covered under
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

LOANS / GUARANTEES / INVESTMENTS

During the Financial Year under review, the Company has not provided any loan, guarantee or security covered
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

During the Financial Year under review, the Company had, under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made there under, acquired securities of body corporates, as under:

Date of allotment / Subscription / Security Amount (INR)

acquisition Purchase

KFin Services Private Limited

01 April 06, 2021 Subscription Equity Shares 4,50,00,000.00
02 December 06, 2021 Subscription Equity Shares 1,00,00,000.00
Hexagram Fintech Private Limited

03 February 07, 2022 Purchase Equity Shares 1,49,00,000.00
04 March 05, 2022 Subscription Equity Shares 6,50,00,000.00

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Financial Year under review, all transactions entered into with related parties were in the ordinary
course of business and at arm’s length.

The relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder relating to disclosure of
particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section
(1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Annual
Report on CSR activities for the Financial Year under review is enclosed as Annexure 5 to this Report.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and the projects approved by the Board are available on the website
of the Company at https://www kfintech.com/.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee monitors the implementation of the framework of the Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy of the Company.



INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
fraud, error reporting mechanisms, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

Your Directors’ report that your Company has adequate internal controls commensurate with its size and nature
of operations. There are suitable monitoring procedures in place to provide reasonable assurance for accuracy
and timely reporting of the financial information and compliance with the statutory requirements. There are
proper policies, guidelines and delegation of power issued for compliance across the Company.

For the purpose of ensuring accuracy in the preparation of the financials, your Company has implemented
various checks and balances like periodic reconciliation of major accounts, review of accounts, obtaining
confirmation of various balances and proper approval mechanism. There is proper reconciliation of the
transactions captured to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the transaction posted in financial accounting.

Your Company has documented all major processes in the area of revenue, expenses, bank transactions,
payments, statutory compliances and period end financial accounting processes. Your company is continuously
putting its efforts to align the processes and controls with the best practices in the industry.

The Audit Committee periodically reviews the important matters and findings of the internal audit.
VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company has adopted a Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy as a channel for receiving and
redressing complaints from employees and Directors, as per the provisions of Section 177(9) and (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Under this policy, your Company encourages its employees to report any reporting of
fraudulent financial or other information to the stakeholders, and any conduct that results in violation of the
Company's code of conduct, to the management (on an anonymous basis, if employees so desire). Further, your
Company has prohibited discrimination, retaliation or harassment of any kind against any employees who, based
on the employee's reasonable belief that such conduct or practice have occurred or are occurring, reports that
information or participates in the investigation. The Policy is appropriately communicated within the Company
across all levels. The said policy is also available on the website of the Company at https://www.kfintech.com/.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has developed and implemented Risk Management Framework including identification of key
risk elements which may threaten the existence of the Company. The implementation is periodically reviewed
by the Audit Committee of the Board.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

During the Financial Year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by Regulators/
Courts/ Tribunals impacting the going concern status of the Company and its future options.

FRAUD REPORTING

During the Financial Year under review, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013.



MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company subsequent
to the close of the Financial Year to which the Financial Statement relates and the date of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

A. Conservation of Energy:

The Company uses electric energy for its equipment such as air conditioners, computer terminals, lighting
and utilities on the work premises. All possible measures have been taken to conserve energy.

Sr. Particulars Details

No.

(i)  The steps taken or impact on conservation of The company’s operation does not consume a
energy significant amount of energy.

(i)  The steps taken by the company for utilizing Not applicable, in view of comments in clause (i)
alternate sources of energy.

(iii) The capital investment in energy Notapplicable,in view of comments in clause (i)
conservation equipment

B. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation:

Sr. Particulars Details
No.
(i)  The effort made toward technology absorption Not applicable

(i)  The benefits derived like product improvement cost reduction product  Not applicable
development or import substitution

(iii) In case of imported technology (important during the last three years  Not applicable
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)

(a) the details of technology imported

(b) the year of import;

(c) whether the technology has been fully absorbed

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and
the reasons thereof

(iv)  The expenditure incurred on research and development Not applicable

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: (In Rupees Lakh)

Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21

Inflow 6,390.90 5,908.00
Outflow 562.00 120




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company believes in adopting best practices of corporate governance, which form the core values of your
Company. These guiding principles are also articulated through the Company's code of business conduct,
Corporate Governance guidelines, charter of various sub-committees and disclosure policy.

CONTRIBUTION TO THE GO-GREEN INITIATIVE

In its commitment to help the environment, during the Financial Year under review, your Company has taken
all necessary steps to reduce the usage of paper. Your Company, in many areas, has made necessary changes in
the existing processes to move further towards a paperless work environment.

EDUCATION, TRAINING AND QUALITY ASSESSMENT

Your directors wish to inform that your Company has been continuing training programs for overall
development of the employees. New schemes have been introduced to recognize and reward the best talent.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual
working in the premises through various interventions and practices. The Company always endeavors to create
and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

Your Company has framed a Policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace in accordance with the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Policy has
set forth the guidelines on the redressal and enquiry process to be followed by complainants and the Internal
Complaints Committee, whilst dealing with issues related to sexual harassment at the workplace towards any
women employee. All women employees (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees) are covered under
this policy. All employees are treated with dignity, with a view to maintain a work environment free of sexual
harassment whether physical, verbal, or psychological.

During the Financial Year under review, no complaints with the allegation of sexual harassment were filed with
the Company. Your Company has conducted awareness and training programmes as under:

i.  Induction sessions for new joiners on the subject of Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace;
ii.  E-Learning module on Prevention of Sexual Harassment was made mandatory for all employees;

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors confirm that:

a. in preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year under review, applicable Indian accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and profit of the Company for that period;

c. they have taken proper and sufficient care towards the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;



d. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
e. they have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and are operating effectively;

f. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board
of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company.

APPLICATION / PROCEEDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE

During the Financial Year 2020-21, the Company had filed an Application/Petition before the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Bengaluru Bench at Bengaluru (“Hon’ble Tribunal”) under Section 9 of the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against ITI Limited for non-payment of Rs. 10,87,43,944/- due to the Company for
the services rendered by the Company. During the Financial Year under review, the Company has withdrawn
the said application filed before the Hon’ble Tribunal as ITI Limited had settled its outstanding dues in full.

During the Financial Year under review, except the aforesaid, neither the Company had filed any application
nor any proceeding was pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

During the Financial Year under review:
a. there was no reportable event relating to the one-time settlement with Banks or Financial Institutions;
b. there was no reportable event relating to revision of the Financial Statement or Board’s Report;

c. the provisions of Section 67(3) of the Companies Act 2013, is not applicable to the Company.
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On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
KFin Technologies Limited
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DIN: 02284165 DIN: 08659728
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Details of Options Granted under the ESOP Schemes as on March 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014]

Particulars KFin Employee Stock KFin Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 - Option Plan 2020 -
Scheme A Scheme B
01  Options granted 18,20,249 20,15,054
02  Options vested 209,828 1,28,461
03  Options exercised NIL NIL
04  Total number of shares arising as a result N/A 200 Equity Shares
of exercise of option

05 Options lapsed 7,63,974 3,96,114
06  Exercise price N/A Rs.70.36 and Rs. 91.98 per

option
07  Variation of terms of options N/A N/A
08  Money realized by exercise of options N/A  Rs.19, 685 (excluding tax)
09  Total number of options in force 16,10,421 18,86,593

10 Employee wise details of options granted to:

Key Managerial Personnel 5,03,009 4,64,344

Any other employee who receives a 4,85,296 3,006,900
grant of options in any one year of option

amounting to five percent or more of

options granted during that year

Identified employees who were granted NIL NIL
option, during any one year, equal to or

exceeding one percent of the issued

capital (excluding outstanding warrants

and conversions) of the company at the

time of grant




Particulars KFin Employee Stock KFin Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 - Option Plan 2020 -
Scheme C Scheme D

01  Options granted 18,44,292 19,30,966
02  Options vested NIL NIL
03  Options exercised NIL NIL
04  Total number of shares arising as a result N/A N/A

of exercise of option
05 Options lapsed 633,983 25,073
06  Exercise price N/A N/A
07  Variation of terms of options N/A N/A
08 Money realized by exercise of options N/A N/A
09  Total number of options in force 18,44,292 19,30,966
10 Employee wise details of options granted to:

Key Managerial Personnel 4,64,344 2,51,027

Any other employee who receives a 3,006,900 1,00,234

grant of options in any one year of option

amounting to five percent or more of

options granted during that year

Identified employees who were granted NIL NIL

option, during any one year, equal to or
exceeding one percent of the issued
capital (excluding outstanding warrants
and conversions) of the company at the
time of grant

Particulars

KFin Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 -

Scheme E

KFin Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 -
Scheme F

Options granted

01 3,96,353 4,09,497

02  Options vested NIL NIL

03  Options exercised NIL NIL

04  Total number of shares arising as a result N/A N/A
of exercise of option

05 Options lapsed 11,183 11,183

06  Exercise price N/A N/A




Particulars KFin Employee Stock KFin Employee Stock

Option Plan 2020 - Option Plan 2020 -
Scheme E Scheme F
07  Variation of terms of options N/A N/A
08 Money realized by exercise of options N/A N/A
09  Total number of options in force 3,96,353 409,497

10  Employee wise details of options granted to:

Key Managerial Personnel 2,46,057 2,36,116

Any other employee who receives a 59,180 1,40,840
grant of options in any one year of option

amounting to five percent or more of

options granted during that year

Identified employees who were granted NIL NIL
option, during any one year, equal to or

exceeding one percent of the issued

capital (excluding outstanding warrants

and conversions) of the company at the

time of grant

Particulars KFin Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 -

Scheme G
01 Options granted 1,98,340
02 Options vested NIL
03 Options exercised NIL
04 Total number of shares arising as a result of N/A

exercise of option

05 Options lapsed NIL
06 Exercise price N/A
07 Variation of terms of options N/A
08 Money realized by exercise of options N/A
09 Total number of options in force 1,98,340

10 Employee wise details of options granted to:

Key Managerial Personnel NIL

Any other employee who receives a grant of 198,340
options in any one year of option amounting to five
percent or more of options granted during that year




Particulars KFin Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 -

Scheme G

Identified employees who were granted option, NIL
during any one year, equal to or exceeding one

percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding

warrants and conversions) of the company at the

time of grant

On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
KFin Technologies Limited

Vishwanathan Mavila Nair Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
Chairperson Whole-time Director and CEO
DIN: 02284165 DIN: 08659728

June 06, 2022 | Mumbai
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ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration

[Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel’) Rules, 2014

Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees for the Financial
Year 2021-22 and the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, if any, during the
Financial Year 2021-22

Ratio of remuneration to Percentage increase
median remuneration of in remuneration
employees
01  Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth 1:113 58.30%
Nadella,

Whole-time Director and Chief
Executive Officer

The percentage increase in remuneration of Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary in the Financial Year 2021-22

Percentage increase in remuneration

01  Mr. Vivek Mathur, Chief Financial Officer 10.00%
02  Ms. Alpana Kundu, Company Secretary 33.33%

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees during the Financial Year 2021-
22

The median remuneration of employees during the Financial Year 2021-22 increased by 8.2%.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company

There were 5,334 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2022.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration

Not applicable

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company

The Company affirms that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.



Statement of Employees Remuneration as on March 31, 2022
[Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel’) Rules, 2014]

% of Relative
equity of
shares Director

Date of
commencement
of employment

Last
employment
held

Nature of Qualifications

Employment

Remuneration
received

Age

Designation Experience

(in years)

held in
the
company

01  Venkata 43 Whole-time 2,60,71,658.00 Permanent CA 20 28/06/2018 Karvy Negligible No
Satya Naga Director and Computershare
Sreekanth CEO Private
Nadella Limited
02  Vivek 55 Chief 18,976,099.00 Permanent CA 26 23/01/2020 Bajaj Capital Negligible No
Narayan Financial Limited
Mathur Officer
03  Sathish 47 Chief 13,469,110.00 Permanent B.E/B.Tech 24 01/12/2020 Virtusa NIL No
Kumar Technology Corporation
Nuggu and
Operations
Officer
04  Venkata Giri 52 Chief Data 8,095,845.00 Permanent MBA 23 03/08/2020 Michelin India NIL No
Vonkayala Officer
05 Chetna 48 Senior Vice 7,731,503.00 Permanent ML/LLM 20 24/08/2020 Cognizant NIL No
Suresh President
Mulani
06  Ajit Kumar 43 Chief 6,790,875.00 Permanent MBA 09 28/06/2021 Oppo Mobile NIL No
Strategy India Private
Officer Limited
07 Meena 52 Senior Vice 6,367,556.00 Permanent MBA 30 19/10/2020 Stock Holding NIL No
Prashant President Corporation of
Pednekar India Limited




Designation Remuneration  Nature of  Qualifications Experience Date of Last % of Relative

received Employment (in years) commencement employment equity of
of employment held shares Director
held in
the
company
08  Giridhar G 58 Chief 6,271,900.00 Permanent BA, LIII 25 23/07/2004 Karvy NIL No
Business Computershare
Development Pvt Ltd
Officer
09  Suresh Babu 41 Senior Vice 6,055,251.00 Permanent ICWA 18 30/06/2016 Aditya Birla NIL No
Vutukuri President Retail Limited
10 Deepak 45 Senior Vice 5,955,000.00 Permanent B.E/B.Tech 22 15/03/2021 Accenture NIL No
Parasiya President Services
Private
Limited

On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
KFin Technologies Limited

Vishwanathan Mavila Nair Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
Chairperson Whole-time Director and CEO
DIN: 02284165 DIN: 08659728

June 06, 2022 | Mumbai



ANNEXURE 3 TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Form No. AOC -1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries / Associate
Companies / Joint Ventures
[Pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Part A: Subsidiaries
Amounts in Rupees Lakh

Sr. Particulars Details

No.

01 | Name of the Subsidiary KFin Services Private Limited KFin Technologies (Malaysia)
SDN. BHD.

02 | Date since when | January 06, 2020 November 17, 2018

Subsidiary was acquired

03 | Reporting period for the | April to March April to March
subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding

company's reporting

period
04 | Reporting currency and | INR (Indian Rupees) MYR (Malaysian Ringgit)

Exchange rate as on the Exchange Rate:

last date of the relevant 1 MYR = INR 18.0523

financial year in the case

of foreign subsidiaries
05 | Share capital 551.00 178.47
06 | Reserves and surplus (106.65) 237.30
07 | Total assets 449.50 850.28
08 | Total liabilities 5.15 434.51
09 | Investments NIL NIL
10 | Turnover NIL 2,038.46
11 | Profit before taxation (103.59) 153.62
12 | Provision for taxation NIL (87.55)
13 | Profit after taxation (103.59) 66.07
14 | Proposed dividend NIL NIL

% of shareholding 100.00% 100.00%




Amounts in Rupees Lakh

Sr. Particulars Details

No.

01 | Name of the Subsidiary KFin Technologies (Bahrain) Hexagram Fintech Private Limited
W.L.L.

02 | Date since when | November 17, 2018 February 07, 2022

Subsidiary was acquired

03 | Reporting period for the | April to March April to March
subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding

company's reporting
period
04 Reporting currency and BHD (Bahraini Dlnar) INR (Indian RupeeS)

Exchange rate as on the Exchange Rate:

last date of the relevant | { BHD = INR 197.9017
financial year in the case

of foreign subsidiaries

05 | Share capital 79.16 799.00
06 | Reserves and surplus 268.28 (67.37)
07 | Total assets 487.39 899.41
08 | Total liabilities 139.94 167.78
09 | Investments 247.38 91.08
10 | Turnover 325.34 574.50
11 | Profit before taxation 10.36 (61.42)
12 | Provision for taxation NIL NIL
13 | Profit after taxation NIL (76.79)
14 | Proposed dividend NIL NIL
15 | % of shareholding 100.00% 100.00%

Amounts in Rupees Lakh

Particulars Details

01 | Name of the Subsidiary Hexagram Fintech SDN. BHD.

02 | Date since when Subsidiary was acquired February 07, 2022

03 | Reporting period for the subsidiary | April to March
concerned, if different from the holding
company's reporting period

04 | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on | MYR (Malaysian Ringgit)

the last date of the relevant financial year in Exchange Rate: | MYR = INR 18.0523
the case of foreign subsidiaries




Sr. Particulars Details
No.

05 | Share capital 96.33
06 | Reserves and surplus 5.32
07 | Total assets 216.88
08 | Total liabilities 115.23
09 | Investments NIL
10 | Turnover 271.20
11 | Profit before taxation (43.48)
12 | Provision for taxation 0.17
13 | Profit after taxation (43.30)
14 | Proposed dividend NIL
15 | % of shareholding 100%

Company Country of

Incorporation

A] Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations

None

B] Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year

None

Part B: Associates and Joint Ventures — None

On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
KFin Technologies Limited

Vishwanathan Mavila Nair Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
Chairperson Whole-time Director and CEO
DIN: 02284165 DIN: 08659728

June 06, 2022 | Mumbai



ANNEXURE 4 TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Form No. MR -3

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022

To

The Members

KFIN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

(formerly KFIN TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED)
Hyderabad.

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by KFIN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (formerly KFIN TECHNOLOGIES
PRIVATE LIMITED) [CIN: U72400TG2017PLC117649] (hereinafter called ‘‘the Company") for the year
ended 31% March, 2022. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March, 2022 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

V) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the year under review)

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;



d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
(Not applicable to the Company during the year under review) and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not
applicable to the Company during the year under review)

vi) The following other laws, rules and regulations as may be specifically applicable to the company:

a. Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority Act and Pension Fund Regulatory and
Development Authority (Central Recordkeeping Agency) Regulations, 2015.

b. The International Financial Services Centres Authority Act, 2019 including Rules, Regulations
and Guidelines made thereunder.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
a. Secretarial Standards issued and amended by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (applicable to the extent of issue of Debt Securities, upto December 29, 2021)

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations and Guidelines and standards etc., mentioned above subject to the following observations:

I further report that

a. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions
of the Act.

b. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at the Board meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings
of the Board of Directors. No dissenting views were expressed by the directors during the Board meetings
held during the year.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, the Company has the following specific events/actions having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, regulations, guidelines and
standards:



The Company has allotted:

i. 1,67,25,100 (One Crore Sixty-Seven Lakhs Twenty-Five Thousand One Hundred) Equity Shares on 10"
November, 2021 on Private Placement basis.

ii. 1000 (One Thousand) non-convertible redeemable preference shares (RPS) on 25" October, 2021 on
Private Placement basis.

iii. 200 (Two Hundred) Equity shares on 18" January, 2022 under KFin Employee Stock Option Plan 2020
- Scheme B to the eligible employees

The Company has carried out early redemption of debentures aggregating to Rs. 400,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Four Billion) on 29" December, 2021; the same has been intimated to BSE Limited on December 30, 2021..

The Company has altered the Articles of Association of the Company by deleting the provisions of the
terminated Share Purchase Agreement entered on 3™ August, 2017 by passing a special resolution at the
Annual General Meeting held on 30™ September, 2021.

The Company has altered the Capital clause of Memorandum of Association by way of reclassification
of Share Capital i.e., Cancellation of un-issued Equity shares and simultaneous creation of Preference
Shares by passing an ordinary resolution approved at the Annual general meeting held on 30" September,
2021;

The Company has altered the existing Clause “14 A” of the Articles of Association by way of assigning
power to the Board of Directors to convene a General Meeting at shorter notice than as prescribed under
the Act, and to exclude the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 by passing a special
resolution approved at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 12" October, 2021;

The Company has acquired 100% stake in Hexagram FinTech Private Limited (“Hexagram™) (CIN:
U72900KA2020PTC135994) and consequently Hexagram has become Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Company w.e.f. 7" February, 2022.

The Company has converted its status from “Private Limited” to “Public Limited” w.e.f. 24™ February,
2022 and consequential amendments were made in Articles of Association and Memorandum of
Association of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company approved its Initial Public Offer through Offer for Sale at its
meeting held on 24™ March, 2022 and approved the issue size of up to Rs. 24,000 million at its meeting
held on 30% March, 2022.

For D V Rao & Associates
Company Secretaries

Date: 02/06/2022 CS Vasudeva Rao Devaki

Place: Hyderabad Practicing Company Secretary
FCS # 8888; COP # 12123
UDIN: FO08888D000454564

This Report is to be read with our letter which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of this
report.



To

‘Annexure-A’

The Members
KFIN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Hyderabad

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws and
maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed by me since the same have
been subject to review by statutory auditors and other professionals.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Under the situation of Covid-19 pandemic prevailing during certain part of audit period, the audit for that
part of the period was conducted with the verification of all the documents, records and other information
electronically as provided by the management.

For D V Rao & Associates
Company Secretaries

Date: 02/06/2022 CS Vasudeva Rao Devaki
Place: Hyderabad Practicing Company Secretary

FCS # 8888; COP # 12123



ANNEXURE 5 TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Annual Report on CSR Activities

For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

1. BRIEF OUTLINE ON CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY

KFin Technologies Limited (‘KFintech’ or ‘the Company’) has developed a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy (hereinafter to be referred as ‘CSR Policy’) in alignment with its objective, principles
and values, for delineating its responsibility as a socially and environmentally responsible corporate citizen.
The Policy lays down the principles and mechanisms for undertaking various programs in accordance with
Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013.

It is the Company's philosophy, firm belief, and intent to effectively implement CSR and make a positive
difference to society. It recognizes that it cannot do it all; so that if there are choices to be made, bias will
be towards doing fewer projects with better outcomes and good impact and will focus initiatives on
communities in which the Company lives, operates and particularly forming community whose
development is the basic mission of the Company.

2. COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE

Name of Director Designation / Number of Number of
Nature of Meetings of CSR Meetings of CSR
Directorship Committee held Committee
during the year attended during
the year
01 | Ms. Sonu H Bhasin Independent Director Four Four
02 | Mr. Prashant Saran Independent Director Four Four
03 | Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik Nominee Director Four Four

3. WEB-LINK WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY AND
CSR PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE
WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

The Composition of the CSR Committee is available at https://www.kfintech.com/about-us/

The CSR Policy approved by the Board is available at https://www.kfintech.com/wp-
content/uploads/2021/03/KFintech_Corporate-Social-Responsibilties-Policy.pdf

The CSR projects approved by the Board are available at https://www kfintech.com/disclosures/

4. DETAILS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS CARRIED OUT IN
PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014


https://www.kfintech.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/KFintech_Corporate-Social-Responsibilties-Policy.pdf
https://www.kfintech.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/KFintech_Corporate-Social-Responsibilties-Policy.pdf
https://www.kfintech.com/disclosures/

During the financial year under review, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder relating to impact assessment of CSR projects, were not applicable to the Company.

S. DETAILS OF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR SET OFF IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-
RULE (3) OF RULE 7 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014 AND AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR SET
OFF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY

Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off for
preceding financial years (in Rs) the financial year, if any (in Rs)
01 2020-21 32,000 NIL
02 2019-20 NIL NIL
03 2018-19 NIL NIL
Total 32,000 NIL

6. AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER SECTION 135(5)

Average net profit of the Company for the previous three financial years is Rs. 3,454.92 Lakh.

7.

Sr. Particulars Details

No.

01 | Two percent of average net profit of the company 69,10,000
as per Section 135(5)

02 | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or NIL
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years

03 | Amount required to be set off for the financial NIL
year, if any

04 Total CSR obligation for the financial year 69,10,000
(7a+7b-7c)

8. (a) CSR AMOUNT UNSPENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the

i . Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
AL EER CO8 Unspent CSR Account as per  Schedule VII as per second proviso to section

(in Rs.) section 135(6) 135(5)
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
69,10,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(b) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT AGAINST ONGOING PROJECTS FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR



Sr. Name Item Local Location of the Project A t A t A t Mode of Mode of
No. of the from the area project duration = allocated = spentin transferred Implementation Implementation -
Project list of (Yes/No) for the the to Unspent - Direct Through
activities project current CSR Account (Yes/No). Implementing
in (in Rs.) financial for the Agency
Schedule State | District Year (in | project ‘as per Name CSR
VII to Rs.). Section Registration
the Act 135(6) (in number
Rs.)
Not Applicable

(c) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT AGAINST OTHER THAN ONGOING
PROJECTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

@ (2) (€)) 4) ©) (6) (7) 8 ‘
Sr. Name of the Item Local Location of the project Amount Mode of Mode of
No. Project from the area spent for = Implementation Implementation -
list of (Yes/No) the - Direct Through
activities project (Yes/No). Implementing
in (in Rs.). Agency
SN State District Name CSR
VII to the Regi .
egistration
Act
number
01 COVID-19 Promoting Yes Telangana Rangareddi 36,430 @ Yes N/A N/A
vaccination healthcare (in collaboration
drive including with  Corporate
preventive Hospital)
health
care
02 | School Promoting Yes Telangana Medak 68,73,570 | Yes N/A N/A
Transformation | education
Program
Total 69,10,000

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads

NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

During the financial year under review, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules

made thereunder relating to impact assessment of CSR projects, were not applicable to the Company.

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)

Rs. 69,10,000 (Rupees Sixty-Nine Lakh Ten Thousand only)

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
(1) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 69,10,000
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 69,10,000




Sr. Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

No.

(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)] NIL

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of NIL
the previous financial years, if any

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] NIL

9. (a) DETAILS OF UNSPENT CSR AMOUNT FOR THE PRECEDING THREE

FINANCIAL YEARS
Sr.  Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount
Financial transferred spent in fund specified under Schedule  remaining to be
Year to Unspent the VII as per section 135(6), if spent in
CSR reporting any succeeding
Account Financial Nemoal | Aronm | et ol financial years.
under section = Year (in transfer (in Rs.)
135 (6) (in Rs.)
Rs.)
01 2020-21 NIL
02 2019-20 NIL
03 2018-19 NIL
Total NIL

(b) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR FOR
ONGOING PROJECTS OF THE PRECEDING FINANCIAL YEAR(S)

Sr. Project Name Financial Project Total Amount spent Cumulative Status of
No. ID of the Year in duration amount on the project amount spent the
Project = which the allocated in the at the end of project-
project was for the reporting reporting Completed
commenced project = Financial Year & Financial Year. @/ Ongoing.
(in Rs.). (in Rs). (in Rs.)

01 Not Applicable

02 Not Applicable

03 Not Applicable

Total

10. CREATION OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL ASSET, FURNISH THE DETAILS
RELATING TO THE ASSET SO CREATED OR ACQUIRED THROUGH CSR
SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR (ASSET-WISE DETAILS)



Sr. Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

No.

(a) | Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) N/A

(b) | Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset N/A

(c) | Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose N/A
name such capital asset is registered, their address etc

(d) | Details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete N/A
address and location of the capital asset)

11. REASON(S), IF THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND TWO PER CENT OF THE
AVERAGE NET PROFIT AS PER SECTION 135(5)

Not Applicable

Chairperson of the CSR Committee

On Behalf of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Sonu Halan Bhasin Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella

Whole-time Director and CEO

DIN: 02872234 DIN: 08659728

June 06, 2022 | Mumbai



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Company believes in adopting best practices of corporate governance, which form the core values of your
Company. These guiding principles are also articulated through the Company's code of business conduct,
Corporate Governance guidelines, charter of various Committees, sub-committee and disclosure policy.

The Company strives to ensure compliance with the various Corporate Governances and considers it as its
inherent responsibility to protect the rights of Company’s stakeholders and disclose timely, adequate and accurate
information regarding the financials and performance, as well as the leadership and governance of the Company.

The Board ensures the strategies adopted to promote the sustainability of the company and also ensures the
Company’s compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, governance, guidelines and regulations and
establishes the systems to effectively monitor and control compliance across the Company.

This report highlights the Company’s practices for the Financial Year 2021-22.
Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted the policy on Code of Conduct and Business Ethics for its employees to observe and
exhibit high degree of professional ethics, fairness & transparency in conducting themselves in discharge of their
duties and responsibilities in line with the Company’s Code of Conduct including all other organizational policies,
codes and the laws in force in this regard. The Company believes that we must always act with integrity to ensure
we are trusted by its business partners, customers and our stakeholders. It is always expected that the employee
acts with a high degree of integrity to ensure that trust is maintained by the business partners, customers and the
Company’s stakeholders.

The Company has also adopted the Code of Conduct for its Directors. The Code is a professional conduct
guideline for Directors of the Company. Adherence to this Code by Directors and fulfilment of their
responsibilities in a professional and faithful manner which promotes confidence of various stakeholders
including various regulators. Implementation of best Corporate Governance practices by Directors enhances the
Company’s governance and management efficiency which improves its image and contributes to the overall value
growth of the Company’s shareholders.

A declaration signed by the Whole-time Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company stating that the
members of Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct is enclosed as Annexure 1 to this Report.

Both the Codes of Conduct are available on the website of the Company at https://www kfintech.com/disclosures/
Prohibition of Insider Trading

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015, as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors (‘the Board’) of the Company has adopted the Code
for Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, Code of conduct to
regulate, monitor and report trading by designated persons, Code of conduct as intermediaries and fiduciaries to



regulate, monitor and report trading by designated persons, policy and procedures for inquiry in case of leak of
unpublished price sensitive information and policy for determination of legitimate purposes.

All our Promoters, Directors, Employees of the Company who are identified as Designated Persons, and their
Immediate Relatives and other Connected Persons such as auditors, consultants, bankers amongst others, who
could have access to the unpublished price sensitive information of the Company are governed under these Codes
and Policies.

These codes and policies are available on the website of the Company at https://www.kfintech.com/disclosures/.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company is responsible for overseeing the corporate governance framework. The Board adopts
strategic plans and policies, monitoring the operational performance, establishing policies and processes that
ensure integrity of the Company’s internal controls and risk management. The Board establishes clear roles and
responsibilities in discharging its fiduciary and leadership functions and also ensures that the management
actively cultivates a culture of ethical conduct and sets the values to which the institution will adhere.

Composition of the Board

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board for its success. As on March 31, 2022,
the Board comprised of an Executive Director and Eight Non-Executive Directors including three Independent
Directors one of whom is a Woman Director.

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity with Section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and size. Detailed profiles of
our Directors is available on the website of the Company at https://www.kfintech.com/about-us/.

Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
along with rules framed thereunder. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board
of Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and that they are independent of the management. Further, the Independent Directors have
in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, confirmed that they have enrolled themselves in the Independent Directors’ Databank maintained by
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs and either completed the proficiency test or exempted from undergo with
such test.

The Company has issued formal letters of appointment to the Independent Directors and their appointments are in
compliance with the Act. The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors including their role,
responsibilities and duties are available on our website at https://www.kfintech.com/disclosures/.

There are no inter-se relationships between our Board Members.

The composition of the Board as on March 31, 2022 along with details of Directorship(s)/ Committee
Membership(s)/ Chairmanship(s) and their shareholding in the Company are as under:



Director Shareholding Directorship(s) in other Membership(s) of Board Directorship(s)

in the Indian Listed Companies Committees of other in other listed
Company Indian Listed entity
Companies” (Category of
Chairperson | Member Chairperson = Member Directorship)
01 Mr. Viswanathan 50 Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Mavila Nair Shares

Non-Executive
Director and

Chairperson

02 Mr. Venkata Satya 50 Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Naga Sreekanth Shares
Nadella

Whole-Time Director
and Chief Executive

Officer

03  Mr. Prashant Saran NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Independent Director

04 Mr. Kaushik NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Bishnu Mazumdar

Independent Director

05 Ms. Sonu Halan NIL NIL Four NIL Three One
Bhasin
Independent Director

06 Mr. Sandeep NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Achyut Naik

Non-Executive
Nominee Director

07 Mr. Shantanu NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Rastogi

Non-Executive
Nominee Director

08 Mr. Srinivas 50 Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Peddada Shares
Non-Executive
Director

09 Mr. Jaideep NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Hansraj

Non-Executive
Nominee Director

# Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee



Selection of New Directors and Board Membership Criteria

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) works with the Board to determine the appropriate
qualifications, positive attributes, characteristics, skills and experience required for the Board as a whole and its
individual members with the objective of having a Board with diverse backgrounds and experience in business,
government, education and public service.

Directors Qualifications, Skills, Expertise, Competencies and Attributes

The chart setting out the skills/ expertise/ competencies of the Board of Directors is as under:

Director Expertise in specific functional area

01  Mr. Viswanathan Mavila Nair

Non-Executive Director and Chairperson

Financial Services and mentoring Fintech start ups

02  Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
Whole-Time Director and Chief Executive Officer

IT and ITES industry

03  Mr. Prashant Saran
Independent Director

Regulatory and other functions.

04  Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar Finance, Operations, technology and infrastructure

Non-Executive Director

Independent Director verticals
05 Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin Financial and non-financial sectors in India and
Independent Director overseas
06  Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik Operations in India and Asia Pacific
Non-Executive Nominee Director
07  Mr. Shantanu Rastogi Financial Services, Technology, Healthcare, and
Non-Executive Nominee Director Consumer sectors in the India & Asia-Pacific region
08  Mr. Srinivas Peddada IT applications and infrastructure to provide

strategic support and advice to the investment teams

and portfolio companies in the Technology sector in
India & Southeast Asia

09  Mr. Jaideep Hansraj Banking and Securities expertise.

Non-Executive Nominee Director

Board Evaluation

The Board evaluation framework has been designed in compliance with the requirements under the Companies
Act, 2013 and in consonance with Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by SEBI in January 2017. The
Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board’s committees and individual Directors
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the recommendation of the NRC, the Board laid
down the criteria for evaluation. This exercise was carried out through a structured questionnaire prepared



separately for the Board, Committees, Chairperson of the Board and individual Directors. The questionnaires
were uploaded at the online tool for the Board members to carry out the evaluation for the Financial Year ending
March 31, 2022.

The outcome of evaluation process forms part of the Report of the Board of Directors.
REMUNERATION POLICY FOR BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board has approved the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) and all other
employees of the Company.

The same is available on the website of the Company at https://www.kfintech.com/disclosures/.

Details of remuneration of Directors for the F.Y. 2021-22 are as under:
Amounts in Rupees Lakh

Director Fixed Salary Commission / Sitting Fees Total

Perquisite / Total Fixed Bonus Compensation

Allowance Salary

Independent Directors

Mr. Prashant NIL NIL NIL 24.00 NIL 24.00
Saran

Mr. Kaushik NIL NIL NIL 24.00 NIL 24.00
Bishnu
Mazumdar

Ms. Sonu NIL NIL NIL 22.50 NIL 22.50
Halan Bhasin

Executive Director

Mr.  Venkata 72.00 95.22 167.22 153.50 NIL 320.72*
Satya Naga

Sreekanth

Nadella

Non-Executive and Nominee Directors

Mr. NIL NIL NIL 75.00 NIL 75.00
Viswanathan

Mavila Nair

Mr. Sandeep NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Achyut Naik

Mr. Shantanu NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Rastogi

Mr. Srinivas NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Peddada

Mr. Jaideep NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Hansraj




* Inclusive of variable pay paid for F.Y. 2020-21 amounting to Rs. 33.50 Lakh and provision for variable pay
payable for H.Y.E. March 31, 2022 amounting to Rs. 60 Lakh.

Details of options granted to the Directors during the Financial Year 2021-22, under the KFin Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020, are as under:

Sr. Director Options granted
No.
01  Mr. Viswanathan Mavila Nair Scheme D 1 54,053
Non-Executive Director and Chairperson Scheme E 140,541
Scheme F 140,541
02  Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella Scheme D : 1,20,000
Whole-Time Director and Chief Executive Officer = Scheme E : 90,000
Scheme F : 90,000
03  Mr. Prashant Saran N/A
Independent Director
04  Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar N/A
Independent Director
05  Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin N/A
Independent Director
06  Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik NIL
Non-Executive Nominee Director
07  Mr. Shantanu Rastogi NIL
Non-Executive Nominee Director
08  Mr. Srinivas Peddada Scheme D : 20,000
Non-Executive Director Scheme E : 15,000
Scheme F : 15,000
09 Mr. Jaideep Hansraj NIL
Non-Executive Nominee Director

Board Meetings

All agenda papers for the Board and Committee meetings are disseminated electronically on a real-time basis, by
uploading them on a secured online application. The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly
financial results and other items on the agenda. Additional meetings are held, as and when necessary. Committees
of the Board meet before the Board Meeting or whenever the need arises for transacting the business. The
recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for necessary approval and/or noting, as the case
may be.

During the Financial Year under review, eighteen (18) meetings of the Board were duly convened and held on
May 27, 2021, June 24, 2021, September 06, 2021, September 15, 2021, September 24, 2021, October 14, 2021,



October 21, 2021, October 25, 2021 (two meetings), November 01, 2021, November 10, 2021, November 11,
2021, November 30, 2021, December 31, 2021, March 02, 2022, March 11, 2022, March 24, 2022, and March 30,
2022, respectively.

Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the F.Y. 2021-22, is as under:

Director No. of Board Meetings No. of Board

held during the F.Y. Meetings Attended
01  Mr. Viswanathan Mavila Nair Eighteen Eighteen

Non-Executive Director and Chairperson

02  Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella Eighteen Eighteen
Whole-Time Director and Chief Executive Officer

03  Mr. Prashant Saran Eighteen Eighteen

Independent Director

04  Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar Eighteen Seventeen

Independent Director

05 Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin Eighteen Seventeen

Independent Director

06  Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik Eighteen Fourteen

Non-Executive Nominee Director

07  Mr. Shantanu Rastogi Eighteen Seventeen
Non-Executive Nominee Director

08  Mr. Srinivas Peddada Eighteen Eighteen

Non-Executive Director

09  Mr. Jaideep Hansraj Seven Seven

Non-Executive Nominee Director

Meeting of the Independent Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(8) read with Schedule IV to the Act, a meeting of the Independent
Directors was held on February 25, 2022 without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of the
Management to inter-alia evaluate the performance of non-Independent Directors, the Chairperson of the Board
and the Board as a whole.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors have constituted statutory and non-statutory Committees viz. Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, [IPO Committee, IT Strategy Committee, IT Strategy
Committee, Business Development and Strategy Committee and Sub-Committee for Operational Risk and
Compliance.



Audit Committee

The primary object of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors (“Board”) in the effective discharge
of its responsibilities for corporate governance, financial reporting and internal control system. In the discharge of
its functions, the Committee exercises the powers and responsibilities vested on it under the Act, any re-
enactment thereof, Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) Regulations or any other applicable statutory
provisions.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. The Committee also assists the Board in fulfilling
its corporate governance and overseeing responsibilities in relation to Company's financial reporting, internal
control system, recommends to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or
removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees, reviews with the management, the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval, efc.

The scope and function of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and Terms of Reference (‘“the Charter’”).

During the F.Y. 2021-22, the Committee met six (6) times on June 17, 2021, September 17, 2021, November 11,
2021, November 29, 2021, March 09, 2022 and March 21, 2022.

The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022, and the attendance of the members at the meetings held
during the F.Y. 2021-22 is as under:

Director Category No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
during the tenure Attended
01 Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar Chairperson Six Six
Independent Director
02  Mr. Prashant Saran Member Six Six
Independent Director
03 Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin Member Six Five

Independent Director

04  Mr. Shantanu Rastogi Member Six Six
Non-Executive Nominee Director

Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar, Chairperson of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2021.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The purpose of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘Committee’) is to assist the Board of Directors
(“Board”) in designing compensation policies, including terms of appointment and tenure, for the directors, key
managerial personnel and senior management of the Company that will reward their performances and also retain
talented people.



The Committee also recommends to the Board a policy, relating to the appointment, tenure and remuneration for
the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, fixes suitable remuneration package of all the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Employees and officers i.e. salary,
perquisites, bonuses, stock options, pensions efc., determines fixed component and performance linked incentives
along with the performance criteria for all senior employees of the Company, devising a policy on Board
diversity, design an effective Employees Stock Option Scheme that covers the grant, vesting and the exercise of
the options, specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its Committees and individual
directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an
independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance, efc.

The policy of the Company relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and other
employees, is available on the website of the Company at https://www kfintech.com/disclosures/.

The scope and function of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in accordance with the provisions of
the Act, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Terms of Reference (‘“the Charter’”).

During the F.Y. 2021-22 the Committee met seven (7) times on May 25, 2021, September 15, 2021, October 28,
2021, November 24, 2021, February 25, 2022, March 08, 2022 and March 21, 2022.

The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022, and the attendance of the members at the meetings held
during the F.Y. 2021-22 is as under:

Director Category No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings

during the tenure Attended

01  Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin Chairperson Seven Seven

Independent Director

02 Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar Member Seven Seven
Independent Director
03 Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik Member Seven Seven

Non-Executive Nominee Director

Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin, Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was present at the last
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2021.

Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors

Based on the recommendation of the NRC, the Board laid down the criteria for evaluation. The criteria for
evaluation of performance of Independent Directors includes participation at Board/ Committee Meetings,
managing relationship, knowledge and skill, personal attributes, etc.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The purpose of the Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) Committee is to assist the Board of Directors
(“Board”) in formulating and monitoring Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (‘CSR Policy’) and to
recommend the amount of CSR expenditure to be incurred on the activities as per focus areas identified under the



CSR Policy. In the discharge of its functions, the Committee exercises the powers and responsibilities vested on it
under the Act, any re-enactment thereof, rules made thereunder or any other applicable statutory provisions.

The Committee also formulates and recommends to the Board, a CSR Policy indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the company in areas or subject, specified in Schedule VII to the Act; recommend the amount of
CSR expenditure to be incurred on the activities, monitor the CSR Policy of the company from time to time
including monitoring the progress of projects or programmes against which CSR expenditure is contributed,
ensure that the activities as are included in CSR Policy of the company are undertaken by the Company, efc.

The scope and function of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is in accordance with the provisions of
the Act, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Terms of Reference (“the Charter’”).

The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company at https://www .kfintech.com/disclosures/

During the F.Y. 2021-22, the Committee met four (4) times on May 25, 2021, September 15, 2021, November 24,
2021 and March 08, 2022.

The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022, and the attendance of the members at the meetings held
during the F.Y. 2021-22 is as under:

Director Category No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
during the tenure Attended
01 Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin Chairperson Four Four
Independent Director
02 Mr. Prashant Saran Member Four Four
Independent Director
03 Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik Member Four Four

Non-Executive Nominee Director

Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin, Chairperson of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was present at the last
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2021.

Risk Management Committee

The purpose of the Risk Management Committee (‘RMC’) is to assist the Board of Directors (“Board”) in
formulating a detailed risk management policy, ensuring that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are
in place to monitor and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company, monitoring and overseeing
implementation of the risk management policy, periodically reviewing the risk management policy, at least once
in two years, including by considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity including
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems, keeping the Board of Directors informed about the nature
and content of its discussions, recommendations and actions to be taken, reviewing appointment, removal and
terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer of the Company.

The scope and function of the Risk Management Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Terms of Reference (“the Charter’”).



As the Committee was constituted by the Board on March 24, 2022, no meetings of the Committee were held
during the F.Y. 2021-22. The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022 is as under:

Director Category No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
during the tenure Attended

01 Mr. Prashant Saran Chairperson NIL NIL
Independent Director

02 Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar Member NIL NIL
Independent Director

03  Mr. Sathish Kumar Nuggu Member NIL NIL
Chief Technology & Operations
Officer

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The purpose of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (‘SRC’) is to assist the Board of Directors (“Board”) in
Redressal of all security holders’ and investors’ grievances such as complaints related to transfer of shares,
including non-receipt of share certificates and review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of shares and
debentures, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of annual reports, etc.,
and assisting with quarterly reporting of such complaints, Reviewing of measures taken for effective exercise of
voting rights by shareholders, Reviewing the adherence to the service standards by the Company with respect to
various services rendered by the registrar and transfer agent of our Company and to recommend measures for
overall improvement in the quality of investor services etc.

The scope and function of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Terms of Reference (‘“the Charter’”).

As the Committee was constituted by the Board on March 24, 2022, no meetings of the Committee were held
during the F.Y. 2021-22. The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022 is as under:

Director Category No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
during the tenure Attended

01 Mr. Prashant Saran Chairperson NIL NIL
Independent Director

02 Mr. Viswanathan Mavila Nair Member NIL NIL
Non-Executive Director

03 Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Member NIL NIL
Sreekanth Nadella
Whole-Time Director and Chief
Executive Officer

Ms. Alpana Kundu, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer is the Compliance Officer for resolution of
Shareholders’ complaints. During the F.Y. 2021-22, no complaints were received from the shareholders.



TIPO Committee

The purpose of the IPO Committee is to assist the Board of Directors (“Board”) in carry on various activities
related to proposed IPO of the Company which, inter-alia, include to finalise and amend the terms of participation
by the selling shareholders in the IPO for Sale, including to allow revisions in the Offer for Sale portion, in
accordance with Applicable Laws, to decide, negotiate and finalize, in consultation with the merchant bankers to
the IPO, all matters regarding any pre-IPO placement, including entering into discussions and execution of all
relevant documents with investors, take all actions as may be necessary in connection with the IPO, including
extending the Bid/ IPO period, revision of the Price Band, in accordance with the Applicable Laws, to approve
suitable materiality policies in relation to the IPO or on a post-IPO basis efc.

The scope and function of the [IPO Committee is in accordance with the Terms of Reference (“the Charter’”)

During the F.Y. 2021-22, the Committee met three (3) times on November 29, 2021, March 09, 2022 and March
31, 2022.

The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022, and the attendance of the members at the meetings held
during the F.Y. 2021-22 is as under:

Director Category No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
during the tenure Attended
01  Mr. Shantanu Rastogi Chairperson Three Three
Non-Executive Nominee Director
02 Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Member Three Three
Sreekanth Nadella

Whole-Time Director and Chief
Executive Officer

03  Mr. Jaideep Hansraj Member Three Three

Non-Executive Nominee Director

IT Strategy Committee

The purpose of IT Strategy Committee (“IT&SC”) is to provide insight and advice to the Board of Directors
(“Board”) in various areas that may include developments in IT and alignments with the same from investor
services perspective, scalability of operations, etc. In the discharge of its functions, the IT&SC shall exercise the
powers and responsibilities vested on it under Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”’) Regulations or
any other applicable statutory provisions.

The IT&SC also provides insight and advice to the Board in various areas on developments in IT, alignments with
the same from investor services perspective, scalability of operations, etc., review Fintech blueprint, IT partners
strategy, competitive strategy / positioning and IT annual plan and goals, SAAS, API, forward and backward
integration and platform strategy and pricing, for both domestic and international markets, monitor to ensure that,
at all times, the Company maintain adequate technical capacity to process twice the peak transaction load
encountered during past six months, monitor to ensure implementation of Data Access and Data Protection Policy
as per SEBI requirement, etc.



The scope and function of the IT&SC is in accordance with Terms of Reference (“the Charter’”).

During F.Y. 2021-22, the Committee met four (4) times on June 16, 2021, September 14, 2021, November 23,
2021 and March 07, 2022.

The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022, and the attendance of the members at the meetings held
during the F.Y. 2021-22 is as under:

Director Category No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
during the tenure Attended

01 Mr. Srinivas Peddada Chairperson Four Four
Non-Executive Director

02 Mr. Kaushik Bishnu Mazumdar Member Four Four
Independent Director

03 Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Member Four Four
Sreekanth Nadella

Whole-Time Director and Chief
Executive Officer

Mr. Srinivas Peddada, Chairperson of the IT Strategy Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on September 30, 2021.

Business Development and Strategy Committee

The purpose of the Business Development & Strategy Committee (‘BD&SC’) is to review and oversee the
business development and implementation of the Company’s growth strategies and make recommendations to the
Board with respect to potential acquisition, joint venture or divestment opportunities for which the Board’s
approval is required.

The ‘BD&SC’ also reviews and oversee the business development and implementation of the Company’s organic
& inorganic growth strategies, review and make recommendations to the Board with respect to potential
investment, acquisition, joint venture, mergers or divestment strategies of the Company, analyse the principal
trends in relation to the Company’s activities and communicate relevant information to the Board of Directors,
develop and update the Company’s customer pricing framework, ensure that the pricing framework adequately
contributes to the long-term financial viability and profitability of the Company and evaluate all proposals for
material changes in the contractual or commercial terms for the existing customers, efc.

The scope and function of the BD&SC is in accordance with Terms of Reference (“the Charter’”).

During F.Y. 2021-22, the Committee met seven (7) times on May 25, 2021, July 12, 2021, August 06, 2021,
September 21, 2021, November 29, 2021, February 15, 2022 and March 07, 2022.

The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022, and the attendance of the members at the meetings held
during the F.Y. 2021-22 is as under:



Director Category No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings

during the tenure Attended

01  Mr. Shantanu Rastogi Chairperson Seven Seven

Non-Executive Nominee Director

02 Mr. Viswanathan Mavila Nair Member Seven Seven
Non-Executive Director

03  Mr. Srinivas Peddada Member Seven Six
Non-Executive Director

04 Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Member Seven Seven
Sreekanth Nadella

Whole-Time Director and Chief
Executive Officer

Mr. Shantanu Rastogi, Chairperson of the Business Development & Strategy Committee was present at the last
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2021.

Sub-Committee for Operational Risk and Compliance

The sub-committee for Operational Risk and Compliance was constituted in view of the renewed compliance
focus in the Company and the increased volume of transaction in the Company, for further institutionalizing risk
and compliance management across business lines and organisational functions of the Company.

The sub-Committee also to identify the key operational risks that could affect the ability of the Company to
achieve its strategies, establish an Operational Risk Management Program to identify, measure, monitor and
report on the operational risks that Company faces, establish a operational Compliance mechanism that seeks to
ensure the Company’s compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations governing its business, review and
approve the Compliance Risk Management Program, which establishes the framework and requirements to
manage compliance risk for the Company, review with management progress and results of key operational risk
and compliance management projects, oversee management’s efforts to manage operational risks through
effective governance and management leadership structures and evaluate senior executives’ performance as it
relates to operational risk and compliance efforts, efc.

The scope and function of the sub-committee is in accordance with Terms of Reference (“the Charter’).

During F.Y. 2021-22, the Committee met four (4) times on May 26, 2021, September 09, 2021, November 26,
2021 and February 23, 2022.

The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022, and the attendance of the members at the meetings held
during the F.Y. 2021-22 is as under:

Director Category No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings

during the tenure Attended

01 Mr. Prashant Saran Chairperson Four Four

Independent Director




Director Category No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings

during the tenure Attended

02 Mr. V Uma Mahesh Member Four Four
GM & Head — Internal Audit

03 Mr. Srinivas Yadav Karri Member Four Four
Chief Information Security Officer

04 Mr. P M Parameswaran Member Four Four
General Manager - Operations

05 Mr. Vivek Narayan Mathur Member Four Four
Chief Financial Officer

06 Mr. Sathish Kumar Nuggu Member Three Three

Chief Technology & Operations
Officer

07 Mr. Anshul Kumar Jain Member Two Two

Chief Compliance Officer and
Head — Legal

08 Mr. Mario Roche Member One One
Chief Operating Officer

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

General Body Meetings

Details of last three Annual General Meetings and the summary of Special Resolutions passed therein are as
under:

Financial Date and Time Special Resolution(s) passed
Year ended
March 31, July 02, 2019 Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot i. Payment of commission to Mr.
2019 03:00 p.m. No.31 & 32 Financial District, Kaushik  Bishnu = Mazumdar,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Independent Director of the
Hyderabad, Telangana - 500032 Company.

ii. Payment of commission to Ms.
Sonu Halan Bhasin, Independent
Director of the Company.

March 31, July 06, 2020 Through  Audio - Video No Special Resolution was passed at
2020 11:00 a.m. Conferencing (“VC”) or other this meeting.
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”)
March 31,  September 30,2021 Through  Audio - Video i. Alteration of  Articles of

2021 Conferencing (“VC”) or other Association of the Company.




Financial Date and Time Special Resolution(s) passed

Year ended
10:00 a.m. Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”)

No Special Resolution was passed by the Company last year through Postal Ballot. No Special Resolution is
proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot as on the date of this report.

Annual General Meeting 2022

Particulars Details ‘
Financial Year 2021-22
Date August 04, 2022
Time 02:30 p.m. (IST)
Venue Annual General Meeting will be held through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual

Means as set out in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

Deemed venue of the Meeting is the registered office of the company i.e. Selenium,
Tower B, Plot No.31 & 32 Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad, Telangana - 500032

Book Closure Dates None

Means of Communication

The Annual Report containing, inter-alia, Audited Annual Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial
Statements, Board’s Report and other regulatory reports is circulated to the Members and others entitled thereto.
The Annual Report for Financial Year 2021-22 shall be available on the website of the Company at
https://www kfintech.com/.

The Company’s website provides details of its leadership, management, policies and codes, corporate social
responsibility, shareholder relations, products and processes and updates and news.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the Financial Year.

Listing Details

As on March 31, 2022, none of the securities of the Company are listed on any Stock Exchange.

Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent

Particulars Details

Name Bigshare Services Private Limited has been appointed as the Registrar to an
Issue and Share Transfer Agents by the Company




Particulars Details

Address 1** Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol,
Andheri East, Mumbai — 400 059

Investor Grievance Email ID investor @bigshareonline.com

Website www.bigshareonline.com

Share Transfer System

Share Transfer requests, if any, are processed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder.

Distribution of Shareholding

Categories of Shareholders as on March 31, 2022, are as under:

Category Category of Shareholder No. of No. of fully paid-up Equity Percentage
Shareholders Shares held
(A) Promoter & Promoter Group 02 12,71,88,903 75.90
B) Public 09 4,03,79,980 24.10

© Non Promoter — Non Public

(ChH Shares underlying depository - - -

receipts
(C2) Shares Held by Employee - - -
Trust
Total 11 16,75,68,883 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Company provides the facility to its shareholders to hold their shares in dematerialised mode.

Particulars Details ‘
Equity Shares ISIN INE138Y01010
Preference Shares ISIN INE138Y04014

Address for Correspondence

Particulars Details

Registered Office Selenium, Tower B, Plot No.31 & 32 Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500032

Website https://www kfintech.com/




To serve the investors better, the Company has a dedicated e-mail address for investor complaints:
compliance.corp @kfintech.com which is continuously monitored by the Company’s Chief Compliance Officer.

Credit Rating

The rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures issued by the Company on November 16, 2018 were
rated as [ICRA-AA] by ICRA Limited and the same have been redeemed during the Financial Year under review.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Corporate Identity Number

The Corporate Identity Number of the Company is U72400TG2017PLC117649.
Related Party Transactions

All transactions entered into with related parties as defined under the Act and Accounting standard and IND-AS
24 during the Financial Year under review were on an arm’s length price basis and in the ordinary course of
business. These have been approved by the Audit Committee. The Company has not entered into any materially
significant related party transaction that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the revised Policy on materiality of and dealing with
Related Party Transactions on June 06, 2022, and the same is available on the website of the Company at
https://www kfintech.com/.

During the F.Y. 2021-22, the Company did not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non-
Executive Directors apart from paying Director’s remuneration. Further, the Directors have not entered into any
contracts with the Company or its subsidiaries, which will be in material conflict with the interests of the
Company.

The Board has obtained necessary disclosures from Directors and Key Managerial Personnel relating to material,
financial and commercial transactions where they and/or their relatives have personal interest, if any.

Penalties / Strictures

During the Financial Year under review, the Company has paid the fine levied by BSE Limited for delayed
submission made under Regulation 52(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy as a channel for receiving and
redressing complaints from employees and Directors, as per the provisions of Section 177(9) and (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Under this policy, your Company encourages its employees to report any reporting of
fraudulent financial or other information to the stakeholders, and any conduct that results in violation of the
Company's code of conduct, to the management (on an anonymous basis, if employees so desire). Further, your
Company has prohibited discrimination, retaliation or harassment of any kind against any employees who, based



on the employee's reasonable belief that such conduct or practice have occurred or are occurring, reports that
information or participates in the investigation. The Policy is appropriately communicated within the Company
across all levels and no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

The said policy is also available on the website of the Company at https://www.kfintech.com/.
Policy on Material Subsidiaries

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the Policy on Material Subsidiaries and the same is
available on the website of the Company at https://www.kfintech.com/.

Secretarial Audit

The Company’s Board of Directors appointed D V Rao & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, to conduct
Secretarial Audit of its records and documents for the Financial Year 2021-22.

The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the Company has complied with the Act and the rules made
thereunder, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder, Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment,
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings, the Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and other applicable laws including PFRDA Act and
regulations framed thereunder, efc. for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. The Secretarial Audit Report
forms part of the Board’s Report.

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretaries

Certificate from D V Rao & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries certifying that none of our Directors
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by SEBI or
MCA or such other statutory authority, is enclosed as Annexure — 2 to this Report.

Recommendation by Committees

During the Financial Year under review, all the recommendations of the Committees have been accepted by the
Board.

Consolidated Fees to Auditors

The total fees for all services availed by your Company and its Subsidiaries from M/s. B S R & Associates. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2021-22 is Rs. 204.46 Lakh.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual
working in the premises through various interventions and practices. The Company always endeavors to create
and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.



Your Company has framed a Policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace in accordance with the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Policy has
set forth the guidelines on the redressal and enquiry process to be followed by complainants and the Internal
Complaints Committee, whilst dealing with issues related to sexual harassment at the workplace towards any
women employee. All women employees (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees) are covered under this
policy. All employees are treated with dignity, with a view to maintain a work environment free of sexual
harassment whether physical, verbal, or psychological.

During the Financial Year under review, no complaints with the allegation of sexual harassment were filed with
the Company.

Compliance with Discretionary Requirements

All mandatory requirements of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 up to the date of delisting of its non-
convertible debentures, have been complied with by the Company. The status of compliance with the
discretionary requirements as stated under Part E of Schedule II to the SEBI Listing Regulations, is as under:

Modified Opinion(s) in Audit Reports
The Auditors have expressed an unmodified opinion in their report on the financial statements of the Company.
Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer

As on date, the positions of the Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer / Whole
Time Director are separate. Mr. Vishwanathan Mavila Nair is Non-Executive Chairperson of the Board and
Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella is the Whole-time Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

Reporting of Internal Auditor

The Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee and presents with quarterly updates on the audit along with a
summary of audit observations, if any and follow-up actions thereon.

DECLARATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

A declaration signed by the Chief Executive Officer stating that the members of Board of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Board of Directors and Code
of Conduct and Business Ethics, respectively as on March 31, 2022, is enclosed as Annexure — 1 to this Report.



CONTRIBUTION TO THE GO-GREEN INITIATIVE

In its commitment to help the environment, during the Financial Year under review, your Company has taken all
necessary steps to reduce the usage of paper. Your Company, in many areas, has made necessary changes in the
existing processes to move further towards a paperless work environment.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
KFin Technologies Limited

Vishwanathan Mavila Nair Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
Chairperson Whole-time Director and CEO
DIN: 02284165 DIN: 08659728

June 06, 2022 | Mumbai



ANNEXURE 1 TO THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Declaration by Chief Executive Officer

I, Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella, Whole-time Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company
hereby confirm that all members of Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their
compliance with the Director Code of Conduct and Code of Conduct and Business Ethics, respectively for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2022.

Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN: 08659728

June 06, 2022



ANNEXURE 2 TO THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

KFin Technologies Limited

(Formerly KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Selenium, Tower B, Plot No- 31 & 32,

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad, Rangareddi-500032, Telangana, India

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
KFin Technologies Limited having (CIN:U72400TG2017PLC117649) and having registered office at Selenium,
Tower B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi -
500032, Telangana, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para-C Clause 10(i) of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified

from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Name of Director Date of appointment in

Company
01  Mr. Kaushik Mazumdar 00397815 16/11/2018
02 Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik 02057989 16/11/2018
03  Mr. Jaideep Hansraj 02234625 10/11/2021
04  Mr. Viswanathan Mavila Nair 02284165 22/11/2018
05  Ms. Sonu Halan Bhasin 02872234 16/11/2018
06  Mr. Shantanu Rastogi 06732021 16/11/2018
07  Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella 08659728 12/06/2020
08  Mr. Prashant Saran 08747512 26/05/2020
09  Mr. Srinivas Peddada 08755240 02/07/2020




Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification.
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For D V Rao & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Hyderabad CS Vasudeva Rao Devaki
Date: 04/06/2022 Practicing Company Secretary
FCS # 8888; COP # 12123

UDIN: FO08888D000463221



B S R & Associates LLP

Chanered Accountants

Salarpunia Knowleage City, Telephone: +81 40 7182 2000
Orwell, B Wing, 6™ Fioor, Unit-3, Fax +81 40 7162 2398
Sy No BY1 Plot No 02, Raidurg,

Hyderabad - 500 061 - india

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as
KFin Technologies Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at
31 March 2022, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
standalone statement of ehanges in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hercinafier referred as “standalone financial statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and in the context of the overriding effect of the provision in the scheme of arrangement
as approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (*NCLT’), regarding accounting of the amalgamation
of Karvy Computershare Private Limited (KCPL) and the *RTA Undertaking® of Karvy Consultants Limited
(KCL) into the Company, as explained in para A in the Emphasis of Matter section below, give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Principsl Office:
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B SR & Associates LLP

KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on standalone financial statements (continued)

Emphasis of matter

A. We draw attention to Note 45 of the standalone financial statements, regarding the amalgamation of
Karvy Computershare Private Limited (KCPL) and the ‘RTA Undertaking’ of Karvy Consultants
Limited (KCL) into the Company accounted for in financial year 2018-2019 with effect from 17
November 2018. In accordance with the scheme approved by National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT) the amalgamation had been accounted for as per Accounting Standard 14 — *Accounting for
Amalgamations’. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of KCPL and of the RTA Undertaking of
KCL had been recorded at their respective existing book values. The difference between the book
values of the net assets so recorded and the consideration (being the face value of equity shares issued
by the Company to the shareholders of KCL and cost of investment in equity shares of KCPL)
amounting to INR 67,491.55 lakhs had been debited to goodwill. This goodwill was being amortised
over a period of ten years as per the terms of the scheme and was also being tested for impairment
every year. Such accounting treatment of this transaction was different from that prescribed under
Ind AS 103 —*Business Combinations’ which became applicable to the Company from the year ended
31 March 2019 and which requires assets, liabilities and consideration to be measured at fair value
and goodwill to be tested only for impairment.

During the current year, the Company has obtained approval of NCLT on 02 March 2022 for not
amortising goodwill with effect from 01 April 2021.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

B. We draw attention to Note 37 of the standalone financial statements, where the pre-amalgamated
Company was the Registrar and Transfer Agent (“RTA") of a past client (“the Client”) until 5 April
2021. The Client had a demat account with one of the Depository Participants (“DP") for depositing
its shares in escrow for the purposes of its initial public offering (*IPO"). The Company identified
that 1,294 489 shares were transferred by the DP (in 2011 and 2020) from the said escrow account of
the Client to the DP’s own demat account and to a Third Party’s Demat account through an of market
transaction without any authorisation from the Client. The Board of Directors of the Company afier
considering legal advice transferred 1,294,489 shares to the escrow account of the Client on a *good
faith and no fault’ basis, after reducing the amount payable upon redemption, in future, of the
Redeemable Preference Shares (refer Note 20 to the standalone financial statements) issued in
October 2021, by INR 3,000 lakhs (Refer Note 20(ii)(b) to the standalone financial statements).
pursuant to an indemnity clause contained in the agreement for the issuance of such Redeemable
Preference Shares. The dividend received on such shares by the Company in the financial year 2021-
22 of INR 40.77 lakhs was also transferred back to the Client.

The Company has recognised an amount of INR 700 lakhs as a provision in the standalone financial
statements related to potential claims by the Client (including dividends on such shares for the earlier
periods). Pending the final settlement of terms to be agreed with the Client, the Company has
measured the said provision at its best estimate. The Company will initiate proceedings against the
concerned parties, including certain minority sharcholders, for recovery of the amount paid and
payable by the Company to the Client in connection with this matter upon completion of final
settlement with the Client.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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B SR & Associates LLP

KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on standalone financial statements (continued)

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors’ report but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thercon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone linancial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on standalone financial statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required 1o draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company 10 cease Lo continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central

Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A™ a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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Report

on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

¢)

as it appears from our examination of those books.
The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other

comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements, read with the matter referred to in

para A of Emphasis of Matter section above, comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 1 April 2022 taken on

(B)

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according 1o the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 36 (B) to the standalone
financial statements;

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. other than
as disclosed in the Note 54 to standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
Kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall:

« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like 10 or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on standalone financial statements (continucd)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

(ii) The management has represented, that. 10 the best of its knowledge and belief. no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entitics, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall:

o directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party
or

« provide any guarantce, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

(C) With respect to the matter 1o be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate AfTairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231 W/W-100024

G kash

Partner

Membership No: 099696
UDIN: 22099696AKIBCQ7729

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 06 June 2022
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KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 March 2022

With reference 1o the Annexure A referred 1o in our Report of even date to the members of KFin Technologies
Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) (“the Company™) on standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property. plant and equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
Property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased
manner over a period of two years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and
equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard 1o the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly,
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment
(including Right of use assels) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company is engaged in the business of rendering services, and it does not hold any physical
inventories. Accordingly. clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from a bank on the basis of security of current assets. However, based on
the e-mail confirmation received from the bank, the Company is not required to file any quarterly
returns or statements since the Company has not availed the working capital limits so sanctioned at
any point of time of the year. Accordingly. clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) and
3(iii)(c) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. The Company has made investment
in companies during the year. The Company has not made any investments in firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that investments made during the year are, prima facie, not
prejudicial 1o the interest of the Company.
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KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of'l'he
records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security
as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of the
investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been

complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly. clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services rendered by the
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value
added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues have been subsumed into
Goods and Services Tax (‘GST").

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-
Tax, Cess and other statutory dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by
the Company; -

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund,
Employees” State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

(b) According 10 the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the statute | Nature of the Amount Period to Forum where dispute is
dues which the pending
(mINR Lakhka) amount relates

Income Tax Act, Income taxes 47.51 FY 2007-08 | High Court of Telangana
1961
Income Tax Act, Income taxes 9.09 FY 2015-16 | The Commissioner of

1961 Income Tax (Appeals)
Income Tax Act. Income taxes 10.89 FY 2016-17 | The Deputy Commissioner
1961 of Income Tax
Income Tax Act, Income taxes 31.06 FY 2017-18 | The Deputy Commissioner
1961 of Income Tax

As explained to us. the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.
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KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

(x)

(xi)

records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has
not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or 1o meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. The Company
does not hold any investment in any associate or joint venture (as defined under the Act) during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. The Company does not hold any investment in any associate or joint venture (as defined
under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any private placement or preferential allotment
of fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. The Company has not made any
preferential allotment of any shares during the year. In our opinion, in respect of private placement of
equity shares and preference shares made during the year, the Company has duly complied with the
requirements of Section 42 of the Act. The proceeds from issue of equity shares and preference shares
have been used for general business purposes of the Company as specific purpose for the funds so
raised is not recorded.

(a) Based on the examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit after considering the incident mentioned in Note 37 of the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, which Management has concluded is not a fraud
by the Company or on the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us. no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.




F ISTERAW s 1T

b and bs 8 4

B S R & Associates LLP

KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related
parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details of the
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence,
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required 1o be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause
3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not part
of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

(xX)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. lhcn_: is no unpspent amount
under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly. clauses 3(xx)(a)
and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm's Registgation No: 116231 W/W-100024

Parmer

Membership No: 099696
JCAI UDIN No.: 22099696AKIBCQ7729

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 06 June 2022
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the standalone financial statements of KFin
Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) for the year ended 31
March 2022,

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 )
(Referred 1o in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of KFin Technologies
Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence 1o company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness ol the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred 1o as “the Act™).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, 10 the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company”s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial contrals with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on

the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject
10 the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231 W/W-100024

G kash

Partner

Membership No: 099696
UDIN: 22099696AKIBCQ7729

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 06 June 2022




KE Technologies Limited {Tormerly known as "KFin Technologies Private Limited')

Standalone Balance Sheet
(AN amannis are in INR Jakis, unless otheinise stated)

o As at Asat
Hanfitulars P 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
I. ASSETS

(1) Non-current rasets

Property, plant and equipment 3 33629 2,343.08

Capital work-in-progress 3 6332 -

Right-of-use assels G 3,226.96 33T

Goodwill 4 51,625.60 51,625 60

Other imlangible assets 3 4.664.91 4280 21

Tntangible assets under development 3 335435 25115

Financial assels

(1) Investments in subsidieries 7 5,381.61 1,522 96
{ii} Qther financial assets B 61433 52019
Mon-current ax essets [net) 9 3,63092 339566
(Other non-current assels 13 120,42 21847
Total non-current assets 76,0858 67.974.59
{2) Current asscin
Financial assels
(i} [nvesimenis " 9,308.31 2,490.92
(i) Trade receivables T2 10,706.37 10,786.95
(iiiy Cesh and cash equivalenls 13 3,092.24 1.471.44
{i¥) Bank balances other thean eagh and cash equivalents above 14 12,30 54,34
{v} Loans 15 14.0% 2688
(vi) Other financial assets 16 1,870,284 1,226.04
Dther current assels 17 84894 14630
Toral curvent nssets 25,853.07 23.802.88
TOTAL ASSETS 101.948.45 91.777.47
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
Equity share capital 18 16,756 89 13,084 36
Other equity 19 4781788 19272 08
Totsal equity 64,574.77 3435644
LIABILITIES
{2) Non-current liahilitieg
Financial linbilities
(i} Borrowings 20 12,251 42 29,388.97
(i) Lease liabilities 6 241936 2.603.83
Provisicns 21 806 26 T49.27
Deferred tax liabilities (et} 35 12,185.62 i2495.81
Total pan-current liabilities 2?.6&6(. 45,237.58
{3) Current Jinbilitiey
Financie] liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 - 522442
(ii) Lease liabilities 6 1,145 42 98138
(1ii} Trade payables 23
- Total dues of micro enterprisas and small enterprises 885 3050
- Total duss of creditors other than micro enterprises end small enterprises 2,384.66 2474 45
(iv) Other financial lisbilities 4 3,059.87 1,807 0%

Other current liabilities 25 1,56618 1,139.92

Pravisions 26 140 28954

Current tax liabilities {net) 27 122341 135,85
Total current liabilities 9,711,02 12,183.158
Total liabilities ITAI3.68 57.421.03
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10194845 91,777.47
Significant accounting policies 1&2

1l e il

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these f
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KFin Technologics Limited (formerly known as ‘KFin Technelogies Private Limited")

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(Al amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

\ For the year ended For the year cnded
Particulars Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income
1. Revenye from operations 28 62,470.87 47,178,956
11 Other income 29 891.62 469.12
111. Total Income (111 = I+IT} 63,362.49 47.648.08
IV, Expenses
Employee bencfits expense 30 22,494 57 18,358.64
Finance costs K] 5283.08 5,191 .27
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 361644 9,791.28
Other expenscs 33 11,205.27 7,866.01
TV. Total Expenses (IV) 42,599,36 41,207,200
V. Profit before tax (Y=III-TV) 20,763.13 6,440.88
V1 Tax expcnse:

Current tax 35 5,745.98 207.00
Deferred tax 35 (284.37) 12,965.28
5,461.61 13.172.28
VTI, Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI} 15.301.52 (6.731.400
VIIL Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit ar loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (102,597 47.57
Income tax on above 2582 {11.97)
Total other comprehensive {loss)/ income for the year, net of tax (VIIL) (76.77) 35.600
IX. Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (VII+VIII) 15,224.75 (6,695.80)
X. Earnings per equity share {Tace value of INR 10 each, fully paid-up) 34
- Basic 972 (4.46)
- Diluted 9.64 (4.46}
Significant accounting pelicies 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our Report of evern date attached

Sor BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered dccountants
[CAl Firtn Registration No.: 116231 W/W-100024

G kash Vishwanathan M Nair

Pariner Chairman
Membership Mo.: 099696 DIN: 02284165

Place: Mumbai
Date: 06 June 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 06 June 2022

I

Jfor and on behaif of Board of Divectors af
KFin Technologies Limited
*IN; U72400TG2017PLC117649

Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 08659728

Place: Mumbai

Date; 06 June 2022

Narayan Mathur
Chief Financial Officer
Membership no.: 4089454

Flace: Mumbai
Date; 06 June 2022

Alpana Uttam Kundu
Company Secretary
Membership no.; F10191

Place: Mumthai
Drate: 06 June 2022



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technalggics Private Limited')

Standalane Stalement of Changes in Equity
(AN amonnts are in INR lakhs, nnless otherwise stared)

Equity share capital and other equity

Other equity
Particulars Equity'shara Securities Capital Cap!n!I Debenture Retained General Share bosed | Tolal Fther
capital . redem ption redemption s payment equity
premium reserve et resery earnings reserve e,
Opening halance ns at 1 April 2020 1508436 21H24.33 1.0 1,498.78 50,001 G007 168.10) 25,946.28
Changes n equity sharc cepital due to prior period errots - - - - X - S - =
Restated balance at the heginning ol the current reporting peried 15.084.36 2132433 100 149878 750.00 604,07 168,70 15,846,249
Loss for the vear . = - - - (6,73 .40 - - (6.731 400
Share based pavments {Refer Nate 47} - - - - - - 12164 121 60
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tas) . - - - - 33.60 - - 35 641
B a at 31 March 2021 15,084 3/ 22A2433 1.0 1.498.78 750,00 {6.051.73) = 289.70 19.272.08
Opening balance as al 1 April 2021 15,084 38 2282433 1.00 1,498.78 750, {6,051.73) - 18970 19.272.08
Changes in cquity share capital dus 1o prior perigd eoors - - - - = - - . -
Restated balgnee af the beginning of the currént reporting period 15,084 38 2282433 1.00 1,498.78 750, {6,091.73) - 189.70 19,272.08
Profit for the year - - = . - 1530152 - - 15,300 52
Isgue of shaee capital L7253 29,321.69 - - - E - 2932768
Share isgue cxpenses . [2.092 75) - - - - (2,092, T8
Extinguisk af rights under sharchalders ag|
|Refer Mote 18 and Note 2] : g ) (14.829.33) - ) (14,829.35)
Transfor to general resarve on repay of Non-C. ibke Deb s - - - - {75008 750 0) -
Excreisc of stock options not = - - (0.07)] -
Sharg hased pavments [Refor Note 47] - s - a14 54 914 34
Share based pryments of the options issued to the employres of subsidiary - = - - 11 ] 093
Remeacnrsmeont of defined benef! ahligation [net of 1ax) - - " - (7677 = = 17677}
Balance as ot 31 March 2022 16, 75689 AN059.33 1.00 1.458.78 - (5,696.33) TS50 [.205.10 47.817.58

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial starements

As per our Report of tven date attached
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KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as "KFin Technologies Private Limited')
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
CAIF comennry are in INR fakhs, unfess ofherwise siafed)

Particulars

For the year cnded
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

A, Cash flows frem operating activities
Net profit before tax

Adjustiment for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Profit on sale of property plant & equipment, net

Interest income on deposits

[uterest income on income-lax refund

Dividend income from current investments

Dividend inceme from subsidiary

Unwinding of discount on deposits

Liabilities no longer required written hack

Income on derecognition of Right-ol-use assets and Lease liability
Rent consession income

Foreign exchange loss (net)

Tnierest expenses

Allowance for credit loss on trade receivables and other financial assets
Credit impaired trade receivables written-off

Deposits wrilten off

Share based payment

Fair value (gain)f loss on {inancial assets measured

Operating profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjostments:

Increase in trade receivables

[nerease in other curren! financtal assets
Decrease in loans

Increase in other non- current financial assets
Increase in other assets

{Decreasc) Increase in trade payables
Increase in ether current financtal liabilities
Increase in other current liabilities
{Decrease)f Increase in current provisions
Cash generated from operations

lncome taxes paid, net

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-propress, capital advances and creditors)
Purchase of intangible assets {including intangible asscts under development)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investmenl in subsidiaries
Fixed deposits redeemed with banks, net
Investments in mutual funds {net}
Investments in equity shares of other companies
Interest income
Dividend income from rutual funds
Dividend income from subsidiary
Net cash used in from investing activitics (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of leasc liabilities
Repayment of debentures
Interest paid on debentures
Expenses towards issuc of shares
Proceeds fiom issue of equity shares
Securities premium on issue of equity shares
Issue of redeemable preference shares repayable at premium
Net eash used in financing activities (C)

D. Net increase in cash and cash equivalenis (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and rash eqoivalents at the end of the year

20,763.13 6,440.88
3,616.44 9,791 28
(14123 (9 86)
(2.63 (10.05)
- (81.97)
(450,69 {159.03)
(303.42) :
(27.88) (24.57)
(56.38) .
(6.87) (8.84)
(3.58) (11803
9.16 47.06
5,283 08 519127
570.81 89.92
237 88 38.44
2045 -
914.54 121.60
(72.08) 7208
30,477.84 21,340.13
{737.54) (2,562.94)
{644.80) {289.94)
12.81 2.17
(6333) (0.05)
(4.03) (268.46)
(111.44) 416.82
1,181 48 1,373.85
426,36 150.34
{17.11) 23727
30,520.74 20,399,24
(4,893.68) (161.40)
25,627.06 20,237.84
(2.051.27) (626.73)
{4,625.21) (2.405.60)
14.83 64.80
(3,867.72) =
18.66 254 46
(2,725.46) £5.22847)
- (2,980.15)
2.63 10.05
450,69 199.03
0342 -
(12,479.43) {10,712.61)
(1,314,09) (1,124.71)
{35.200.00) {3,200.00)
(3.92227) (4,562.17)
(2,092.76) .
1,672.53 3
2932776 3
2.00 -
{11,526.83) (3,886.88)
1,620.80 638.35
147144 833.09
3.092.24 1,471.44




KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technologies Private Limited')
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
(Al amonnis are in INR Jakhs, umiess otherwise stated)

Particulars

Far the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

E. Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Standatone Balance Sheet (Refer Note 13)
Cash on hand
Balance with banks:
{1} i1 current accounts

F. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Opening balance

Mon-comvertible Debentures (secured)

Tnterest accrued and not due on non-convertible debentures
Leasc lighilities

Redeemable preference shares

Premium on redeemable prefercnce shares

Cash movemcent

Non-convertible Debentures (secured)

Interest accrued and not due on non-convertible debentures
Lease liabilities

Redeemable preference sharcs

Premiurn on redeemable prefercnce shares

Nan-cash movement

Non-convertible Debentures (secured)

Interest accrued and not due on non-convestible debentures
Lease liabilities

Redeemable preference shares

Premium on redcemable preference shares

Closing balance

WNon-convertible Debentures (secured)

Interest accrued and not due on non-convertible debentures
Lease liabilities

Redeemable preference shares

Premium on redeemable preference sharcs

Non-cash movement represents:

309224 147144
3,092.24 1.471.44
34,588.97 37,531.17
2442 12.60
3,58521 367381
(35,200.00) (3,200,009
(3.922.27) (4,562.17)
£1,314.20) (1,124.71)
2.00 .
611.03 25780
3,897.85 457390
129777 1,036.11
12,249.42 .
: 34,588.97
- 24,42
3,568.78 3,58521
2.00 :
12,249.42 .

- with respect to non-convertible debentures (secured), amortisation of processing fees paid as per effective interest ratc, Refer Note 20 for details
- with respect to interest accrued and not due on non-convertible debentures, amortisation of provessing fees paid as per effective interest rate, Refer Note 20 and Note 22,
- with tespecl 10 Jease liabilities, additions of new |eases, rent coneession received, deletions of existing leases and acerual of interest on lease labilities. Refer Note 6{C).

- with respect to redeemable preference sharcs, premium payable on redernption. Refer Note 20 for details

Nates;

13 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Tndirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard {IND AS) 7 - "Cash Flow Statements”

Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks, Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily converiible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

As per out Report of even dalc attached

for BS R & Assoclates LLP
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KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Standalone Financial Statement

1. Reporting entity

KFin Technologies Limited (“the Company™) (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private
Limited) was incorporated on 08 June 2017 at Hyderabad, India. The Company’s registered office is
at Selenium, Tower B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serllmgampally
Hyderabad, Rangareddi Telangana 500032, The Company is engaged in providing service of
Registrar to the Public Issue of Securities, Registrar to the Securities Transfers, and back office
operations to mutual fund houses and data processing activities.

The Company was converted into a public limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 on 24
February 2022 and consequently, the name was changed to “KFin Technologies Limited”

2. Significant Accounting Policies

A. Basis of preparation and measurement of Standalone Financial Statement

The Standalone Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31 March 2022, the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity, and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the
Significant accounting policies and Other Financial Information (together referred to as ‘Standalone
Financial Statement’) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”} read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rule, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Standalone Financial Statement have been prepared on a going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to atl the pericds presented in the Standalone Financial Statement.

The Standalone Financial Statement have been prepared under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis except for the following items:
s Defined benefit liability/(assets): fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obligation
+  Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value or amortised value

This Standalone Financial Statement was authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6 June
2022

Functional and presentation currency

These Standalone Financial Statement are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR’), which is the
Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
stated.



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Standalone Financial Statement

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
A. Basis of preparation and measurement of Standalone Financial Statement (continued)

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received from sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either —

s In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Standalone Financial
Statement are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole-

+ Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

+ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs),

The Company’s CFO determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable
market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a Jiability fall
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. Any change in the fair value of each asset and liability is
also compared with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reagonable.

For changes that have occurred between levels in the hierarchy during the year the Company re-
assesses categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these Standalone Financial Statement, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in
the preparation of the Standalone Financial Statement are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial estimates in the period in which changes are made
and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the Standalone Financial Statement.

a) Judgements

Information about the judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the Standalone Financial Statement have been given below:

*  Note R - Classification of financial assets: assessment of business medel within which the
assets the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial
asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

»  Note D - Lease Classification and identification of lease component



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Standalone Financial Statement

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

A. Basis of preparation and measurement of Standalone Financial Statement (continued)

Use of judgments and estimates (continued)

b} Assumpiions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment in the Standalone Financial Statement for every period ended is included below:

Employee benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plans and the present value of the obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may
differ from actual developments in the future. These includes the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates However, any changes in these assumptions may
have impact on the reported amount of obligation and expenses. (Refer note K).

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect 1o the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. The Company establishes provisions,
based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of assessment by the tax authorities of
the jurisdiction in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experience of previous tax assessment and differing interpretations of tax laws by the
taxable entity and the respomsible tax authority. The Company assesses the probability for
litigation and subsequent cash outflow with respect to taxes.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses 1o the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. (Refer note S)

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assels

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after estimating the asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The depreciation method, useful
lives and residual values of Company’s assets are estimated by Management at the time the asset
is acquired and reviewed during each financial year. (Refer note E, F and H)

Impairment of finanicial assets

Analysis of historical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and
current economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional
allowances may be required. (Refer note R)

Provisions and contingencies
Assessments undertaken in recognizing the provisicns and contingencies have been made as per
the best judgment of the management based on the current available information. {(Refer note Q).

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgments is required in
establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments. (Refer note R).



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technelogies Private Limited)
Standalone Financial Statement

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
A. Basis of preparation and measurement of Standalone Financial Statement {continued)
Use of judgments and estimates (continued)

*  Impairment of non-financial assets: Key assumptions for discount rate, growth rale, efc.
The determination of recoverable amounts of the CGUs assessed in the annual impairment test
requires the Company to estimate their fair value net of disposal costs as well as their value-in-
use. The assessment of value-in-use requires assumptions to be made with respect to the operating
cash flows of the CGUs as well as the discount rates. (Refer note I}

C) Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

«  Expected ta be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

= Held primarily for the purpose of frading

= Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reperting period, or

+  Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Defetred tax assets are classified as non-current assets.
A liability is treated as current when:

+ Tt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

* Ttis held primarily for the purpose of trading

* 1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting petiod.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current

Operating Cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of the assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating
cycle.

D) Leases
i As aqlessee

As a lessee, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases — i.e. these
leases are an-balance sheet. The Company decided to apply recognition exemptions to short-term
leases.

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116. At inception
or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices,
However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Company has elected not to
separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease compaonents as a single lease
component.



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Standalone Financial Statement

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D) Leases (continued)
i Asalessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property,
plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at lease commencement date.
Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

a. Fixed payments including in-substance fixed payments

b. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date

¢. Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee

Shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shori-term leases
of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.

The Company presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in the balance sheet and lease liabilities in
‘Financial liabilities® in the Balance sheet.

ii. As a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease fransfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment,
the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-
lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-
lease as an operating lease.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term as part of ‘other income’.



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technoiogies Private Limited)
Standalone Financial Statement

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

E) Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition or construction less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment Josses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as a separate item (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain
or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit
and loss.

Capital work-in-progress

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work-in-
progress. Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date are disclosed as other non-current assets.

Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

The Company provides depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment, other than vehicles and
leasehold improvements based on the useful life specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013,

The depreciation is provided under straight-line method. The management based on the actual usage
of vehicles has provided depreciation at the estimated useful life of 5 years as against the useful life
of § years as specified under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of the lease or the estimated useful
life of the assets, whichever is lower.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on
which asset is ready for use {disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management
believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

Asset category Estimated useful life (years)
Plant and machinery 5-15
Electrical installations 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 3
Office equiprment 5
Vehicles 5
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

F) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any.
Intangible assets are amortised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated

useful iives from the date they are available for use based on the expected pattern of economic
benefits of the asset. Intangible asset is amortised on straight line basis

Asset category Estimated useful life (Years)
Computer software 3-10
Customer relationships 5

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure are recognised in the Standalone
statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted if appropriate.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

G) Intangible assets under development

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed as
incurred unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demanstrated, future economic
benefits are probable, the Company has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell the
software and the costs can be measured reliably. The costs which can be capitalized include the cost
of software purchased, direct salary and overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the
asset for its intended use.

H) Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisitions of businesses is reported separately from intangible assets.

i) As stated in the approved scheme of amalgamation and arrangement approved by National
Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad goodwill is being amortised over period of 10 years (Refer
Note 44 and Note 45(B)). Further this Goodwill is also tested for impairment at each reporting
period and is carried at cost less accumulated amottization and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

The Company has obtained approval from its Board, shareholders, creditors, National Company
Law Tribunal (*NCLT"} or any other appropriate authority to modify the accounting treatment for
Goodwill mentioned (i) above with effect from | April 2021. As per the scheme filed and NCLT
order received the treatment of Goodwill with effect from 1 April 2021 shall be done as per
applicable accounting standards and / or other applicable accounting policy. Accordingly, as per
Ind AS 36 — Impairment of Assets, the Company is required to periodically test the impairment on
Goodwill.

i) Goodwill generated through Business Transfer Agreement (Refer Note 44 and Note 45(A)) is
tested for annual impairment at each reporting period and is carried at cost less accumulated
impainnent, if any,
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I) Impairment of non—financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication on impairment.
If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest Company of assets that generates
the cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets
or Cash generating unit (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of a CGU {or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific fo the CGU (or the asset).

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of individual asset, the Company
estiates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment loss in respect of assets is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

J) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date when the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates
prevailing at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date of initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss.

K) Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefils

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected te be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to
Government administered provident fund scheme, which is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service,

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions inte a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts.
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K) Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

Gratuity

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. The contributions made to the fund are recognised as plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation as reduced by fair value of plan assets is recognised in the Standalone Balance
Sheet. Re-measurements are recognised in the other comprehensive income, net of tax in the year in
which they arise.

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to
the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan, To calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements,

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. Net interest expense (income) on the net
defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined
liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into
account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year, Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Standalone
Statement of profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtaited, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. The cost of providing benefits is
determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they occur.
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L) Revenue

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind
ASs. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or
services. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue from registry and related services and communication services is recognised on the basis of
services rendered to customers, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contracts entered
into by the Company with each customer provided, the revenue is reliably determinable, and no
significant uncertainty exist regarding the collection.

Income from pension fund solutions represents services which are recognised as per the terms of the
contract with customers, when such related services are rendered.

Revenue from data processing services is recognised based on the services rendered, in accordance
with the terms of the contract, either on a time cost basis or on the basis of number of enumerations
processed.

Recoverable expenses represent expenses incurred to related to service performed and are recognised
on the basis of billing to customers, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreements
entered into by the Company with each customer,

Work-in-progress (unbilled revenue) represents revenue from services rendered, recognised based on
services performed in advance of billing based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the
agreements with the customers,

M) Other income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition, Interest income is included in
other income in the Standalone Statement of Profits and Losses.

Dividends are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit or Loss only when the right to receive
payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

N) Borrowings and related cost

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reperting period.
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0} Contract balances

Contract assets: The Company classifies its right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as
either a receivable or as unbitled revenue, A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditicnal
upon passage of time. Revenues in excess of billings is recorded as unbilled revenue and is classified
as a financial asset where the right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time.

Contract liabilities: A contract liability (which we referred to as Unearned Revenue) is the obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is received.

P) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services rendered in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditiona} unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Company holds trade receivables with the objective 1o collect the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost, less provision for expected credit loss,

Q) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable (“more likely than not™) that it is required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision
is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the crease in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more future events not wholly
within the control of the entity. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Standalone Financial Statement but disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the fower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision
is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that
contract,
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R) Financial instruments

Business model assessment

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts
such as foreign currency forward contracts, embedded derivatives in the host contract, etc.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

The Company initially recognises trade receivables and debt securities issued on the date on which
they are originated. The Company recognises the other financial assets on the trade date, which is the
date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset except assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Classifications and subsequent measurement

Classifications

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value depending on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management.

Assessment whether contractual eash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Debt instrument at amortised cost

A fmancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at Fair value though profit and less (FVTPL):

a) it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss.
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R) Financial instruments (continued)
Debt instrument at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI only if both of the following conditions are met:

a) it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income is recognised basis
EIR method and the losses arising from ECL impairment are recognised in the Standalone Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as
FVOCT, is classified as at FVTPL.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and lesses, including any interest or
dividend income are recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit or Loss

Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Derecognition of finanecial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financia assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation 1o pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transfetred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

e a breach of contract;

e it is probable that the barrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
o the disappearance of an active market for security because of financial difficulties.
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R) Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected
life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recoghition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company’s historical experience and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presemtation of alfowance for expected eredit losses in the Standalone Balance Sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amertised cost are deducted from the gross catrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due.
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R) Financial instruments {continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair vajue and, in the case of amortised cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Classification and subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
intetest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amottised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The ELR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the Standalone Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include firancial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Standalene Statement of Profit
or Loss.

Financial lizbilities

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains and losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains and losses are not subsequently transferred to
profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit or
Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and a new financial liability with modified terms is
recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Standalone Financial Statement

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

S) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination or to an itlem recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the corresponding 1ax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance shest date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the period
in which the liability is seitled or the asset tealised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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T) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

The Board of directors of the Company have been identified as being the Chief operating decision
maker by the management of the Company. Refer Note 39 to Annexure VI for segment information
presented.

) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
cash with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of
cash and deposits with banks and interest accrued on deposits,

V) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

W) Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share (“EPS™) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit after tax for the
year and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be
converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have been issued at a later date,

X) Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of
Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the
assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Company. The cost of acquisition
also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration, 1dentifiable asseis acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
on the date of acquisition. Transaction cost that the Company incurs in connection with business
combination such as finders fees, legal fees, due diligence and other professional fees are charged to

equity.

Goodwill is measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used
to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment stilt results in an
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the
gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear
evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve,
without routing the same through OCI.

In case of business combinations taking under scheme of amalgamation approved by Courts in India,
the accounting treatment as specified in the court order is followed for recording such business
combination.
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Standalone Financial Statement

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

X) Business combinations (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to
those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Y) Employee Stock option plan (ESOP)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation model, That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in ‘Share based payment’ reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effect of cutstanding
options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

7Z) Non-current Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and sale is considered highly probable.
A sale is considered as highly probable when decision has been made to sell, assets are available for
immediate sale in its present condition, assets are being actively marketed and sale has been agreed or
is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the date of classification. Non-current assets held for
sale are neither depreciated nor amortised, Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost of sale and are presented
separately in the Standalene Balance Sheet.

AA)  Recent accounting developments and accounting prenouncements

MCA vide notifications dated 24 March, 2021 has amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of certain disclosures required to be made by the Company in its financial statements. These
amendments are applicable to the Company from the financial year starting 01 April 2021, The
Company has incorporated the changes as per the said amendment in the financial statements and has
also changed the comparative numbers wherever applicable,

Previous year figures have been re-grouped/re-classified to conform to below requirements of the
amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, effective from 01 April 2021 ;

(a} Interest accrued but not due on borrowings and current maturities of long term debt is re-
grouped to Current borrowings (Note 22) which were earlier grouped under Other financial
liabilities (Note 24)

(b) Rental deposits is re-grouped under Other financial assets (Note 16} which were earlier
grouped under Loans (Note 15)
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
AB) Recent accounting developments and accounting pronouncements (continued)

On 23 March 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) amended the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from | April 2022 as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These
changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Tnd AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for
its intended use, Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.
The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property,
plant and equipment in its financial statements,

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts —Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’, Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company
does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements,

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the *10 percent” test of Ind AS
109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does net expect the
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 106 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leaseheld improvements by the
lesser in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise becanse of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. The Company does not
expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Computers amld . . .
g M be-in-
Pariiculars . Leascheld siher related Turniture and D (2] P]anf and Vehid Total Capital work-in
improvements axseks fixtures equipment Machinery pProgress

Gross carrying amount

Dalance as at 1 April 2020 161544 2,703 62 214 60 31943 7303 137 5,099.83 -
Additinns 156 94 430 8] - k0] - 54 89 681,34 .
2] | - . (1.23) (3.66) (1.61) (0 T7Y 196,97} -
Bal usat 31 Mareh 2021 1,772.34 3,134.43 213.37 d14,47 71.42 T8.13 5,84.20 -
Addifions 3 1,793,12 189 68,60 . 79 45 1,946,368 6332
Dispasaly - (64 82) - {4.24) - (124) {7234) .
as at 3 March 2022 1,775.69 4,862.73 215.26 47TH79 ThA2 1538 7,554.24 (3.32

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at | April 2020 431 51 Q18 57 48 24 171 9% 1035 36 9% 1667 59

Depreciation For the year It 09 263 3392 T8 &9 7354 12 69 1,215 56

Thsposglé - - {0.53) (3.00) 11.29) (37.21) (42.03) -

Binlance as at 31 March 2021 851,60 1,631.20 81.63 247.65 16.40 12,44 2,841.12 -

Depreciation for the year 39941 #9755 34.72 &7 52 645 2014 1,425 79 .

Disposals - (e h 1y - (4.28) . (3.24} {7163} -

Bl as at 31 Mn[c_h 222 125101 246,64 11535 310.89 23.05 2934 4,19528 =

Brlance as al 31 March 2022 524.68 2,398.09 25,01 167,90 4837 125.01 336196 63.32

Balance as at 31 March 2021 92078 1,501 23 131 166 82 54 52 65 69 2,543 N8 -
ing of Capital work in progress:

Barticulars Less Ihan 1 year 1 to 2 yeArs 2in 3 years Move then 3 Tntal

I VORTS

Balanec as nf 31 March 2022
Projects m progress 6312 . . ¥ §3.32
Projects ferporanly suspended . X -

As ar 31 March 2021
Projects in progress : 3
Progects femporatily suspenderd

Notes:

(a) Refer Nate 20 Far the details of property, plant and equipment thal has been plediged as security against borrowings of the Company
(b} The Company has nol carried out any revalualion of its Property, plant and equipment

{£) The Company does not hold any immevable property in its own name
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4 Goodwill

ted")

Particulars Amonnt
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 67,627 56
Additions -
Deletions =
Balance as at 31 March 2021 67,627.56
Additions :
Deletions -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 67,627.56
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2020 925835
Atnortisation for the year 6,743 61
Balance as at 31 March 2021 16,001,986
Amortisation for the vear { Refer Note (1i1) below) -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 16,001.96
Carrying amounts (net)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 51,625,60
Balance as at 31 March 2021 51,625.60
Note:
(i) The Company has not carried out any revaluation of its Goodwill.
(ii) Refer Note 44 for the impairment assessment carried out by the Management.
(ifi) Refer Note 45(B) for details of NCLT order received by the Compary in respect of amortisation of goodwill,
5 Other Intangible asseis
Computer  Customer Total Intangible
Particulars Software relationships assets under
development*
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 1,236.41 2,189 78 342619 830
Additions 216274 - 216274 476,93
Disposals™ - - - {237.08)
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2021 3,399.15 2,189.78 5,588,93 251.15
Additions 1.482.01 - 1,482.01 4,065,50
Disposals® - - - {322 30
Balance as at 31 March 2022 4,881.16 2,189.78  7,070.94 3,394.35
Accumulated amertisation
Balance as at | April 2020 36348 170.20 533.68 -
Amortisation lor the year 337.56 437.48 775,04
Balance as at 31 March 2021 701.04 607.68 1,308.72 -
Balance as at 1 April 2021 701.04 607.68 1,308.72 -
Amortisation for the year 659.84 437 47 1,097 .31
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1.360.88 1,045.15 2,406.03 -
~ Disposals with respect 1o Intangible assets under development represents transfer to Computer Software by way of capitalisations.
*Intangible assets under developoment represents internally developed softwares for business purposes.
Carrying amounts {net)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3.520.28 1,144.63 4,664.91 3,394.35
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,698.11 1,582.10 4 280.21 251.15
Ageing of Intangible assets under development is as under:
Particulars Lessthan 1 | 1to 2 years| 2 to 3 years | More than 3 Total
VEa - YCANS
Balance as at 31 March 2022
- Projects in progress 3,163.69 23066 - - 3,394 35
- Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021
- Projects in progress 251.15 5 - 25115
- Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Note:

{a) The Company has not carried out any revaluation of its Gther intangible assets.

{b) There are no projects where completion is overdue or has cxceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
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6 Right-of-use assets
A Following are the changes in the carcying values of right of use assets:

Particulars

Cutegory of ROU

Building premises
Balance as at U1 April 2020 4.341.94
Prepayments 23.51
Additions 990,58
Deletions {28084
Balance as at 31 March 2021 507519
Balance as at 01 April 2021 507519
Prepayments 3.48
Additions 1.068.93
Deletions (107.52)
Baolance as at 31 March 2022 i+,040,08
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2020 794,62
Depreciation for the year 1,057.07
Deletions (9377
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,757.92
Balance as at &1 April 2021 1,757.92
Drepreciation for the year 1,053.34
Doletans (38.14)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,813.12
Carrying amounts
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,226.96
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,317.27

The aggregate depreciation expense for the year on right-of-use assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the standalene starement of profit

and logs, (Refer Note 32)

'The following is the rental expensc recorded for short-term leases, variable lease paymcents and low value leases.

Particulacs For the year caded For the vear ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Short- tenn leasc cxpenss 283 42 598,65
Low value lease expense = e
Variable lease expense - -
Total 289.42 S98.68
Followinp, are the chanpes in the lease liabilities:
Parficulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Balance 3,585.21 3,673.81
Additions 1.068.93 990,58
Finance cost accrued during the year 305.08 359.48
Deletions {72.66) (195 92}
Payment of lzase liahilitias {1,314 20} {1,124 71)
Rent concession {3.5R) {118.03)
Closing balance 3,568.78 3,585.21
Current lease labilities 1,149 42 98].38
Wen-current tease liahties 241936 2,603 B3

The following are the amounts recognised in standelone

t of profit and loss

For the yenr ended

For the year ended

el 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 1,093.34 1,057 07
Interest expenses 305,08 354 48
1.398.42 1.416.55
The following is the cash cutflow on lgases;
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Payment of lease liabilities 1,209 01 76523
laterest on Jease liabilities 30508 359 48
Tartal cash outflow on leases 1.314.09 1.124,71
The 1able below provides detuils regarding the coritractual marurities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

s As at As ut
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Less than 1 year 1,392.02 1,177.78
1to 5 years 2,110.57 282320
Over 3 years 84777 146,53

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard o its lease liabilitiés ns the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease

liabilities as and when they fall due.
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7

10

11

Pariiculars

As at
31 March 2022

Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in equity instruments - unqooted- at cost

800 (31 March 2021: $00) equity shares of KFin Technologies (Bahrain) W.L L, of BHD 50 cach, fully paid-up

100,000 (31 March 2021; 100,000} equity shares of KFin Technologies (Malaysia) SDN.BHD ol MYR | each fully paid-up

5,510,000 (31 March 2021: 10,000 ) equity shares of KFin Services Private Limited of INR 10 each fully paid-up
79,500,000 {31 March 2021: Nil J equity shares of Hexagram Fintech Private Limited of INR 1 each fully paid-up

Agprepate amount of un-quoted non-current investments
Apgregate amount of provision for impaiment in value of non-current investments

Other non-current financial assets

Rental deposils

Electricity deposits

Telephone deposits

Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 momths from balance sheel date}®

As at
31 March 2021

1,354.61 1,354 61
167.35 167.35
551.00 1.00

3.318.65 LS

539161 1.522.96

5,391.61 1.522.96
528.87 45715

51.90 52.47
0.66 1.05
3290 9.52
614,33 520.19

*includes fixed deposits amounting to INR 32.79 lakbs (31 Mareh 2021: INR 9.52 lakhs) which is not freely remissible because of contractual restrictions.

The Company’s exposurc to credit risks are disclosed in Note 42,

There are no debts due to Company by Directors either individually, severally or jointly with another person, by firms or private companies in which any director is a partner ar

director or member .

Mun-current tax assets (net)

Advance income-tax including tax deducted at source {net of provision for tax INR 4,643.00 lakhs; 31 March 2021: INR 4,643.00 lakhs)

Other non-current nssets
{thsecured considered pood)
Capital advances

Prepayments

Current investments

[nvestments in equity instruments of other companies - quoted - at FVTPL
Nil {31 March 2021: 1,294,489} equity shares of Petronet LNG Limited of INR 10 each, fully paid-up

Envestments in mutual funds - quoted - at FYTPL

65,538 (31 March 2021: 63,6113 units of DSP Blackrock Liquidity Fund - Regular Plan -Daily Dividend

136,979 (31 Mareh 2021: 53,014} units of L&T Liquid Fund - Regular Liquid Daily Dividend Reinvestment Plan
152,643 (31 March 2021: 114,164 ) units of TATA Liquid Fund Regular Plan - Daily Dividend

115,048 (31 March 2021: 92,549) units of Kotak Liguid Regular Plan Daily Dividend

122,848 (31 March 2021: 93,156 } units of HDFC Liguid Fund-Regular Plan Daily Dividend Reinvestment
1,472,968 (31 March 2021: 1,027,309 } units of ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Daily Dividend

148,753 (31 March 2021: 111,271} units of SBI Liquid Fund - Regular Daily Dividend

Agprepate amount of quoted current investments and market value thereof
Agprepate amount of impainient in value of investments

3.630.92 3.395.66
3,630,92 3,395.66
455 199
115.87 21448
120.42 218.47

E 2.908.07

- 2,908.07

635.99 636.71
1,389.44 53638
1,528.75 1,143.38
1,406.32 1,131 .70
1,252.83 95002
1,474.56 1,028.83
1,599.92 1,155.83
9,308.31 6,582.85
9,308.31 5,490.92
9,308.31 9,490.92

Note: The Company holds certain shares of its customers as a trusice. The Company is in process of transferring those shares to the relevant account based on the instructions to

b received from respective cuslomers,
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Partical As at As at
articulars 31 March 2022 31 Mayeh 2021

Trade receivahbles

{a) Trade receivables considered pood - unsecured® 12,720.37 12,23015
(b1 Trade receivables considered good - secured - -

{¢) Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
{d) Trade receivables - credit impaired . -

Total 12,720,37 12,230.15
Allowance for eredit Joss (2.014.00) (1443193
Total trade receivables 10.706.37 10,786.96

*Includes receivables from related partics Refer Note 41

Movements in the allowance for credit loss are as follows:

Opening balance 1,443.19 1,291.32
Balance transferred to trade receivables fram retention money % 118.08
Provision for loss allowance 570.81 33.79
Closing balance 2,014.00 1443.19

Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue from operations i.e. fee revenue and recoverable expenses revenue. No inlercst is charged on the outstanding
balance, repardiess of the age of the balance. The Compnay applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) modei for measurement and recognition of impairment loss towards expected risk
of delays and default in collection. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected eredit lass allowance based on a provision matrix. Management makes
specific provision in cases where there are known speeific risks of customer default in making the repaynients The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the reccivables are due and the rates as per the

Ageing of gross trade receivahle as at 31 March 2022 is as onder:

Outstanding for following period from the due date of receipt

Particulars Less than 6 | 6 months - lio2 2.3 More than 3 Total
Unbilled Not due Maonths 1 vear O Eears] Ao yEats vedrs
(1) Undisputed Trade rescivables — considered good 78917 7,824.57 1,744.22 £67.75 25926 21772 1,017.68 12,720.37

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables —which have significant - - - - - - - =
increase in credit risk
(iil) Undisputed Trade receivables — credit iinpaired - - - - - - 2 .
{iv) Disputed Trade receivables — considered pood - - - - - - - 2
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables—which have sipnificant - - = - - - 5 E
increase in credit nsk
(+11 Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - = - - = < s

Ageing of gross trade receivable as at 31 March 2021 is as nnder;

Outstanding for following period from the due date of roceipt

Particnlars Less than & | 6 months - 1taZve 2.3 vears More than 3 Tatal
Unbilled Neot duc Months 1 year HEATHpIoe YE years*

lincrease in credit nisk

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 799.00 4.662.26 323736 844,79 61548 | 2,071.27 - 12,230.16
{111 Undisputed Trade receivablas —which have significant - - - - -

increase in credit nisk
(iii} Undisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - . - - - - - =
(iv) Disputcd Trade receivables—which have sipnificant - - - - - - - =

{vi1 Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - = - = = = =

There are no trade receivables due to Company by Directors either individually, severally or jointly with another person, by firms or private companies i which any dircetor 1s a
partner or director or member,

The Company™s exposure to credit and currency risks, and oss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 42.

*Refer Note 45 in respect of amalpamation and accordingly trade receivable aging has been considered from the date of amalgamation,

Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks:
(1) in current accounts 3,092,324 1,471.44
3,092.24 1,471.44
The Company’s exposure to credit risks are disclosed in Note 42.
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance in deposit accounis (having original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months from reporting date)® 12,30 54,34
12.30 54.34

* Tncludes fixed deposits amounting to TNR 12 30 lakhs (3| March 2021; TNR 46,13 lakhs) which is not freely remissible because of contractual restrictions,
The Company’s exposure o credit risks are dizselosed m Note 42,
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Particul As at As at
ol 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
15 Loans

Loans to employees 14.07 26.88

14,07 26.88

Break up of security details

{a) Loans considered good - Secured -
(b Loans considered good - Unsecured 1407 26,88
(&) Loans which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
(d’ Loans - credit impaired - F
Total current loans 14.07 26,88

The Company’s exposure to eredit risk are disclosed in Note 42,

There are no debts due to Company by Directors either individually, severally or jointly with another person, by fioms or private companies in which any director is a partner or
director or member .

16 Other current financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Stamp duty receivables 945,09 98518

Rental deposits 4212 9.32

Other receivables 1524 19996

PO related expenses (Refer Note 50) 244 .49 -

Others 22.90 ils8
L87T0.84 1,226.04

Unsecured, considered donbtful

Other receivables 56.13 56,11

56,13 56,13
Less: Allowance for credit loss
COther receivables (56.13) {56.13)
(56.13) (56.13)

1,870.54 1,226,04

Movements in allowance for eredit loss of ather financial asscts are as follows:

Opening balance 56.13 -

Allowance for credit loss created during the year - 3613

Closing balance 56,13 56.13

The Company's exposure to credit risks are disclosed in Note 42.

17 Other current assets

Advances to vendors for supply of goods/ services 239.13 236.96

Prepayments 605.19 45739

Advances to employess 4.62 5145

848.94 74630
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Equity share capital
) As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised share capital
a) 175,980,000 {previous year; 176,000,000) equity sharcs ol INR 10 each 17,598.00 17,600.00
£ 1,000 (31 March 2021: Nil) non-convertible redeemable preference shares (RPS) of INR 200 each 2.00 -
17,600.00 17.600.00

Issued, subseribed and paid-up
(a) 167,568 883 (31 March 2021: 150,843,583} equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up 16,756,885 15,084 36
{1 1,000 (31 Maich 2021: Nil} RPS of INR 200 cach. fully paid up (Refer Note 20)

16,756.89 15,084.36

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of INR. 10 per equity share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and im the
Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time I the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity sharcs held Each holder
of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share,

Upto previous year, onc of the sharcholder of the Company had been granted a right to additional shares which were exercisable upon meeting various performance and other
parameters as defined in the Shareholders Agreement (SHA) During the year, the Company has entered into an amendment agreement to the original $HA dated 3 Aupust 2017
wherein each of the Parties has agreed that, notwithstanding anything contained in the Existing SHA, on and from: the Effective Date, the Existing SHA (including any rights, duties
and obligations of the Parties under or incidental to the Existing SHA) shall stand wncenditionally and irrevocably terminated and shall cease to have any force or effect without any
further action being required from any Party Alse Refer Note 20,

Employee stock pptinns:
The Company has granted certain stock options to their employees For details of shares rescrved for issue under the Employee Stock Options Plan, of the Company, Refer Note 47.

Recenciliation of number of equity shares of INR. 10 each, fully paid up ling at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars No. of shares Amount
Asat 1 April 2020 150,843,583 15,084.36
Shares issued during the year - .
As at 31 March 2021 150,843,583 15,084,356
Shares issued during the year 16,725,100 1.672.51
Shares issucd during the year under Emplovee Stock Option Plan {ESOP" (Refer Note 47) 200 0.02
As at 31 March 2022 167,568,883 16.756.89
Details of shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding cempany including shares held by subsidiarics er associates of the holding company or the ultimate
holding company in aggregaie
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Particolars Percentage of Percentage of

| R total slm%'cs ogotishages total sllagres
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid op, held by:
General Atlantic Sinpapore Fund Pte Ltd 125,580.400 74,94%) 125,580,400 83,25%
General Atlantic Singapore KFT Fre Lid 1.608,503 0.96%| - -
Total 127,185,903 75.90% 125,580,400 83.25%
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2021

Particulars Percentage of Percentage of

Mo, of shares o shag}es No. of shares total shag:zs
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up, held by:
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pe Lid 125 580,400 74.94% 125,580,400 83.25%
Coimpar Estates and Apencies Private Limired 18,414,296 10.99% 18.414,29 12.21%
Kotak Malhindm Bank Limited 16,725,100 9.98% - -
Total 160,719,796 95.91% 143,994,696 95.46"%
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Percentage of
change during | No. of shares

Pereentage of
Promoter name t; f
Percentage o change during the

No. of shares Percentage of

total shares total shares
the year ycar
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up, held by:
General Atlantic Singupore Fund Pte Lid and its associates 127,188,903 75 90% -8.83% 125,580,400 8323% -
Total 127,158,903 75.90% 125,580,400 83.25% -

During the period of five years immediately preceding the respective balance sheet date, no shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to a contract without payment being
received in cash other than 110,000,015 equity shares of INR 10 each

The Company has nat allotted any shares as fully paid by way of bonus shares during the five year period immediately preceding the respective balance sheet date.
During the period of previous five years immediately preceding the respective balance sheet date, the Company has bought back 14,987,848 equity shares under Buy-back Plan 2019,

Enforcemont Directorate (ED) vide its order dated 24 September 2021, has instructed the Company nol to facilitate the alicnation/ sale/ creation of any lien or liability in respect of
equity shares held by certain shareholders, On 11 March 2022, the Company has received Provisional Atachment Order No 06/2027 dated 8 March 2022 issued by the Deputy
Director, Directorate of Enforcement, Hyderabad Zonal Office, whereby the ED has provisionally attached the equity shares held by those shareholders
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19 Other equity

Capital reserve a

Balance at the beginning of the year 1.00 1.00
Addition during the year < -
Balance at the end of the year 1.00 1.00
Securitics premium b

Balance at the beginning of the year 32.824,33 22 824 33
Add: Premium received upon issue of equity share capital 29.327.69 -
Less: Expenses incurred on issue of shares {2,092.76) -
Add: Transfer from securities premium on exercise of stock options 0.07 -
Balancce at the end of the year 50,059.33 22,824.33
Debenture redemption reserve (DRR) c

Balance at the beginning of the year 750.00 750.00
Less: Transfer 1o General reserve (Refer Note 19(g)) {750.00) -
Balance at the end of the year - 750.00
Retained earnings d

Balance at the beginning of the year (6,091.73) 604.07
Add: Profit/ (loss) for the year 15,301.52 {6,731.40)
Less: Premium payable on RPS recognised as financial liability (Refer Note 20(ii)) (14,829.35) -
Add/ (less):Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation for the year {76.77) 35.60
Balance at the end of the year {5,696.33) (6,091.73)
Share based payment reserve ¢

Balance at the beginning of the year 289.70 [68.10
Add: Charge For the year 014,54 121.60
Add: Share based payments of the options issued to the employees of subsidiary. 0.93 -
Less; Transferred to securities premium on exercise of stock options (0.07) -
Balance at the end of the year 1,205.10 289.70
Capital redemption rescrve f

Balance al the beginning of the year 1,498,78 1,498.78
Add: Movement during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,498.78 1,498.78
General reserve g

Balancc at the beginning of the year . -
Add: Transferred during the year from DRR {Refer Note 19(c)) 750.00 -
Balance at the end of the year 750.00 -

Total other equity {at+btetd+etitg) 47,817.88 19,272.08
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(a)

(b)

(c}

(d)

(&)

ity

(@

Other equity (continued)

Nature and purposc of other reserves

Capital reserve
Rescrve created was on cancellation of equity shares pursuant to Scheme of amalgamation approved by National Company Law Tribunal during the year
cnded 31 March 2019.

Securities premium
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recogniscd in Securities Premium Reserve. It can be utilised in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Debenture redemption reserve {'DRR")

According to Section 71 of the Companies Act 2013, where a Company issues debentures, it is required to creatc a debenture redemption rescrve for the
redemplion of such debentures. The Central Government on 16 August 2019 has amended the Companies (Share Capital and Dcbentures) Rules 2014 to
exclude listed companies having privately placed debentures from the requirement of maintaining DRR. Accordingly, the Company has not transterred any
amount to DRR from the year ended 31 March 2020.

On 29 December 2021, the Company has early repaid the debentures and thereby the reserve is no longer required and hence transferred to general reserve.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the net profits after all distributions and transfers to other reserves.

Other comprehensive income comprises of

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans represents the following as per Ind AS 19, Employee Bencfits:

{a) actuarial gains and losscs

{b) the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); and

(c} any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined bencfit liability (asset)
(d) wax effect of the above adjusimenis

Share-bascd payment reserve
The Company has cstablished various equity-settled sharc based payments plans for certain categories of employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. Refer
Note 47 for further details on these plans.

Capital redemption reserve
Represents reserve created for cancellation of 14,987,846 equity shares bought back under buy back plan in financial year 2019-2020,

Gencral reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits/ reserve from retained earning/ other component of equity (such as DRR) for appropriation
purposes. There is no policy of regular transfer. As the general rescrve is created by a (ransfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of
other comprehensive income, items included in the general rescrve will not be reclassified subscquently to standalone statement of profit and loss.



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technologies Private Limited')
Wetes to standalone financial statements {cantinued})
£AH amennes are in INR ok, unless otherwise staied)

20

21

22

Particolars RO Aslat
31 Maych 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current borrowings

Mon-convertible Debentures {secured) - Refer Mote (1) below - 34,588.97
Less: Current manarities of long tenn debt (Refer Note 22) - {5,200.00)
- 29,388.97

Redsemgble preference shares (Refer Note (1) below) 2.00 -

Premium payable on redemption of RPS {Refer Note (ii) below) 12,249.42 -

l:ﬁsl A2 -
1225142 25,388.97

{i) In FY 2018-2019, the Company had issued 4,000 non-canvertible debentures (NCDs) of INR. 1,000,000 each to Nomura Singapore Limited and Standard Chartered
Bank., Singapore far an amount of TNR 40,000,00 lakhs, Transaction costs ameunting te INR 1,198.69 lakhs had been nettcd off against the amount of NCDs. The
NCDs are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange, India with offeet from 29 November 2018, The NCDs were repayable in 10 half yearly instalments commensing from
30 September 2019 to 16 November 2023 and carry an interest rate of 11.5% per anmum payable half yearly The loan was utilised for the purpose for which is was
raised,

O 29 December 2021, the Company has prepaid the entire NCD including interest and prepayment charges. The Company has incurred a prepayment charges of INR
847.14 lakhs which is debited to the standalone statement of profit and loss as 'Other interest cost’. The Company has informed and obtained approval for delisting the
NCDs from the Bombay Stock Exchange,

Security

The debenturce were secured by :

(&) & first ranking exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Acconnt Assets under the [PA Desd of Hypothecation,
{b) a first ranking charge by way of hypothecation on afl the Company Assets under the Company Deed of Hypothecalion

{ii) Redecmable preference share (unsecured)

(8} Terms and rights attached to RPS:-

On 25 October 2021, the Company has issued 1,000 non-convertible redeemable proforence shares having face value of INR 200 each share ("RPS”) at paron a private
placement basis for a maximum period of 20 years from the date of issue. These RP3 shall not carry any voting rights. The RPS shall be subordinated to the existing
indebtedness of the Company and any funure senior debt that the Company may take.

The RPS shall be redeemed by the Company in accordance with the provisians of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Share Subscription Agreement (“SSA”) dated 28
May 2021 on or after 25 October 2023 (“the Targe! Redemption Date") and & redemption premium of INR 13,400.00 lakhs shall be payable by the Company subject to
satisfaction of the conditions prescribed under the $SA. These RPS camies preferential non-cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per anmum {“Preferential Dividend™),
which shall be applicable until 25 Ocrober 2023, The dividend shall be due only when declared by the Board. In the event that the RPS are not redecmed on the Target
Redemption Date or within 60 (sixty) days therefrom, in accordance with the $8A, then the dividend rate applicable on the RPS for the period after the Targer
Redemption Date, shall stand revised to a preferential cumulative dividend rate of 7% per annum, which shall further inerease by 200 bps per annum ar every
anniversary of the Target Redemption Date, subject to a maximum of 13% per annum. The payment of such dividend shall be subject to deduction and withholding of
taxes by the Company as per applicable law. The RPS shall be non-participating in the surplus funds and surplus assets. The RP'S are transforable subject to the
conditions mentioned under S3A.

{b) Pursuant to a subscription apreement dated 28 May 2021 between the Company and certain individuals, who were minerity shareholders of the Company at such
time, with repard to termination of rights of such shareholders and Permitted Assignees (other than such sharchelders), in terms of the said agreement, whe were also
shareholders of the Company, under the then existing Sharsholders Agreement dated 3 August 2017 (as amended pursuant to a supplemental agreement dated 3 Aprl
2020), the Company was obligated for an amount of INR, 16,400.00 lakhs The net amount payable after recovering, in terms of the said agreement, an indemnity of TNR
3.000.00 lakhs is INR 13,400 00 lakhs payable after a period of two years i.e. on or after 25 October 2023. The Company has issusd RPS carrying matority amount of
INR 13,400.00 lakhs {INR 16,400.00 lakhs offset by TNR 3.000.00 lakhs) through agreement dated 28 May 2021, Accordingly, an amount of INR 14.829.35 [ekhs
(amortised cost of INR 16,400.00 lakhs} has been debited to other equity representing the ebligations to the shareholders with a corresponding credit of INR 11,829.14
lakhs and INR 3,000.00 lakhs to non-current borrowings (representing amount payable to the said shareholders under RPS net of indemnity of INR 3,000.00 lakhs) and
current financial liability (representing amount payable to the past Client {Refer Notc 37), respectively. The cument financial liability has been settled by mansfer of
investments as mentioned in Refer Note 37 The balance of INR 1,570 86 lakhs {INR 13,400.00 lakhs less INR 11,829.14 lakhs) will be charged to standalone
statement of profit and loss over the period of bormowing as intcrest cost under effective interest rate method as prescribed under Ind AS |09 - Financial Instruments.
Durine the vear ended 31 March 2022. out of INR 1.570.86 |akhs. INR 420.28 lakhs is expensed in the standalone statement ol orofit and loss as interest cost.

Non-current pravisinns
Provision for employee benefits

- Gratuity £49.73 61347
- Compensated absences 156.53 135.80
805.26 14927

Refer Naote 40(ii) for disclosure related to employee benefits

Short-term borrowings
Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 207 - 5,200.00
Intercst acerued and not due on non-convertible debentures - 24 42

= 5,224.42
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23 Trade payables

Total dues of micro enterprises and small enterpriscs® 883 30.50
Total dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,384 o6 247445
2.393.51 1.504.95
Ageing of trade pavables as at 31 March 2022 is as under:
Qu Jing for following period from the due date of payment
Particolars Less than 1 1t 2years | 2-3years Mare than 3 Total
vear years
Micro, Small and Mediuny Enterptise R85 - . . 885
Others than Micto, Small and Medium Enterpnse 2,172.82 20974 032 1.72 2,384 66
Disputed dues - Miero. Small and Medinm Enterpnse - - . - -
Disputed dues - Others thun Micro. Small and Medium Enterprise - - - - -
Ageing of trude payables as at 31 March 2021 is as under:
Quistanding for follvwing period from the due date of payment
Porticulars Less than I 1w2years | 2-3years More than 3 Total
year Years
Migro, Small and Medium Enterprise 30.50 E - - 30.50
Others than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprize 1,720.75 11.40 742,30 - 247445
Disputed dues - Micro, $mall and Medium Enterprise - - - - ¥
Disputed dues - Others than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise - - - - -
* Refer Nate 38 for disclosure relating to Micro entarprises and siall enterprises
24 Other current financial liahilites
Security deposit payable 31,83 32.87
Employee payables 711 96 38).28
Capital ereditors
Total ducs of micro enterprises and small cnterprises® L8 -
Total dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 57.08 139.87
Stamp duty payable 1,477.82 1,225.60
Other liabilities” 73944 127 47
3,059.87 1,907.09
Agpeing of capital creditors as at 31 March 2022 is as under:
LY ling for following perigd from the due date of payment
Particolars Less than1 | T o2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
yEAT VEAFS
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 1.78 - - - 178
Ohers than Micro, Small and Medium Enierprise 9708 - - - 97.08
Disputed dues - Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise . - - - -
Disputed dues - Qthers than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise - - - - =
Agpeing of capitul creditors as a¢31 March 2021 is as under:
Ou ding for following period from the due date of payment
Particulars Lessthan1 | 1ta2ycars 2.3 years More than 3 Total
VEHr VCATS
Micra, Small and Medium Enterprise = = = -
Others than Micro, Smell and Medium Enterprise 139.87 - - - 139.87
Disputed dues - Micro, Small and Medium Emterprise - v - 5 =
Disputed dues - Others than Micro, Small and Medium Enrerprize - = - = =
* Refer Mote 38 Tor disclosure relatiing to Micro enterprises and small enterprises
~ Ralance as at 31 March 2022, includes an amount of INR, 700,00 lakhs towards claim from a past client Refer Note 37 for further details
The Company's exposure to liquidity risks related to above financial liabilities s disclosed in Note 42.
25 Qther current liabilities
Centract liabilities { Advance from customers)® 411.67 290,63
Seatutory ducs payable 108007 72373
Contract liabilities (Uneamed income)* 75.04 12556
1.566.78 1,139.92
*Refer Mote 48
26 Current previsions
Provigion for employee benefits:
- Gramity 1812 17.09
- Compensated absences 299.91 27243
315,03 189.54
Refer Note 40 for disclosure related to provistons for employee benefits
27 Current tax liubilities {net)
Provision for tax (Net of advance tax INR 13,935.94 lakhs (3] March 2021: 9,278 38 lakhs)) 1,223 41 135,85
1,223,4% 135.85
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29

30

31

32

Particalars For the yearended  For the year ended
31 March 2032 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations®
Sale of services 60,172.52 45.191.94
Total {A} 60,172.52 45,191.94
Other vperating revenues
Recoverable expenses 2.298.35 1.987.02
Total {B) 2,298.35 1,987.02
Total {A+B) 62,470.87 47,178.96
*Refer Note 48
Other income
Interest income from:
- Bank deposits (calculated using effective interest method on finaneial assets at amortised cost) 263 10.03
- Unwinding of discount or deposits 27.88 24.57
- Ineome-tax refund - 81.97
Dividend income from:

- lnvestment in subsidiary 203.42 -

-~ Investments in mutual funds 450,69 199.03
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 1412 9.86
Liabilities no longer required written back 56,38 -
Income on derseognition of right-of-use assets and lease liability 6.87 8.34
Rent coneession 3.58 118.03
Miscellaneous income 26,035 16.77

891.62 469.12
Employee benefits expense®
Salaries and wapes 19.413.05 16,555.49
Cantribution 1o provident and other funds (Refer Note 40013} 1,686.65 1,365.94
Share baged payment expenses {Refer Note 47) 214.54 121.60
Staff wellarc expenses 480,33 315.61
22,494.57 18,358.64

*The Company has capitalised salary cost of INR 2,520.06 lakhs (31 March 2021; TNR 1,416.8 lakhs) to the Other intangible assets/ intangible assets

under development

Finance costs
Interest cost on financial liabilities measured ar amortised cost
- on debentures
- on reedemable preference shares (Refer Note 2001 )b}
Unwinding of interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note &)
(Other interest costs (Refer Mote 20(1)

Depreciation and amertisation expense
Depreciation on propetty, plant and equipment
Amortisation of goodwill {Refer Note 45(B))
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Depreciation of fght of use asset { Refer Note &)

3,710.58 4,831.79
420.28 -
305.08 359.48
34714 -

5,283.08 5,191.27

1,425.79 121556

E 6,743.61

1,097.31 775.04

1,093 .34 1,057.07

3.616.44 9,791.28
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34

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Oither expenses

Power and fuel

Rent

Repairs and maintenance - Others

Rates and taxes

Legal and professional fee®

Consultancy charges

Office maintenance

Security services

Computer and software maintenance
Corporate social responsibility**

Allowance for credit loss on trade receivables and other financial assets
Credit impaired trade receivables written-off
Deposits written-off

Printing and stationery

Travelling and conveyance

Shared services cost

insnrance

Staff recruitment

Sales promotion and advertisement
Drepository charpes

Claims™

Water charges

Fair value pain/ (loss) on financial assets measured at FYTFL
Bank charges

Foreign exchange loss {net)

Miscellaneous expenses

~ Expense for the year ended 31 March 2022, includes an amount of INR 700.00 lakhs towards claim from a past client. Refer Note 37

* Payment to anditers {included in [egal and professicnal expenses above)
As auditor

Statutory audit

Limited review

Certification

Others
Out of pocket expenses

#aCorporate social responsibility

363.17 482,96
289.42 59868
77.64 111.87
2995 2256
3,307.76 202022
1,766.19 704.04
316.16 357.00
132.46 109.47
40720 656.79
69.18 3352
57081 89.92
237388 38.44
20.45 -
2,294.83 2233.63
29422 122,65
0.20 18.79
60.90 34.78
95.01 39.19
43.87 36.56
534 227
85156 7.58
13.67 9.00
(72.08) 72.08
6.34 463
6.94 47.06
15.70 12.32
11,205.27 7,366.01
30.00 26.00
6.00 400
2.00 7.50
150.00 3.00

S 2.89
188,00 43.39

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a TSR committee has been formed by the Company. The proposed areas for CSR activities, as per
the CSR pelicy of the Company are promotion of education of underprivileged children which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act,

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
b) Amount spent during the year {in cash) :
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset
ii) On purposes other than (i) above
¢) (Shortfall}/ excess at the end of the year
d) Total of previous years shor Fall
) Reason For shortfall
f) Related party transactions.

Earning per share (EPS) .

Profit/ (loss) attribulable to equity shareholders {A)

Shares

MNumber of shares at the beginning of the year

Add: Equity shares issued during the year

Number of shares at the end of the year

Weighted average nunber of equity shares for Basic EPS (B}
Effect of potential equity shares on employee stock options outstanding
Weighted average nwunber of equity shares for diluted EPS (C}
Basic EPS - par value of INR 10 per share (A/B) {in INR)
Diluted EPS - par value of INR 10 per sharg { A/C) (in INR)

69.10 33.10

6918 3352

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

No shortfall No shortfall

il il

15,301.52 6,731.40)

150,843,583 150,843,583
16,723,300 -

167,568,383 150,843,583

157,350,374 150,843,583

1,357,625 71,069

158,707,999 150,914,652

9.72 {4.46)

9.64 (4 46)
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A

Income tax

a1

A recognised in the of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Current tax expense
Current tax

Deferred tax (credit) charge
Change in recognised temporary differences

Tatal tax expense

Amounis recognised in Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Tax (cxpense)/income

. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax
Enacted tax rate in India
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax ate

Tax effect of:

Impact of change in Finance Act, 2021*

Timpact of differencial tax rate on dividend income from subsidiaries
Permanent differences

Others

574598 207.00
3,745.98 20700
(284.37) 12,965.38
(284.37) 12,%65.28
5,461.61 13,172.28
(2580 11.97
20,763 13 6.440.88
235 168% 25.168%
5,225 66 1,621.04
- 11,192.85
(29.03) (6.90)
26718 IVT.H0
(220} (11.81)
5,461,61 13,172.28

*During the financial year 2020-2021, the Finance Act, 2021 has introduced an amendment to Scetion 32 of the ncome Tax Act, 1961, wherchy poodwili of a business will not be
considered as a depreciable asset and depreciation on goodwill will not be allowed as deductible expenditure effective 1 April 2020. In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 12
Inceme Taxes, the Company has recognised one time tax expense as the outcome on the difference between Goodwill as per the books of sccount and its updated tax base of Nil resulting

from the alorementioned amendment,

. Movement in deferred tux balances

Particulars Asgat ::::gf:? oI: Recognised in other As at
1 Aprit 2021 comprehensive income 31 March 2022
prafit and loss
Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill and other intangible assets (12,890 59) 11.95 - {12.875.64)
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables and certain other financial assets 377.3% 143 66 - 521,01
Provision for employee benefits and certain other |iabilities 304.79 73.86 2582 404,47
Others {287 36) 54 90 = {232.46)
Deferred tax linbilities, net {12.495,81) 284.37 25.82 (12,185.62)
Particulars Asgat ';::;g;:;d;fn Recognised in other A at
1 April 2020 comprehensive income 31 March 2021
profit and loss
Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill and other intungible assets {3,463.88) (542671 - (12,890.59}
Provision for expected eredit loss on trade regeivables and certain other financial assets 35478 2260 - 37T7.35
Provision for ermployee benefits and certain other liabilities 276.65 40,11 (1197 304.79
Carry forward losscs 311407 (3, 01407 - -
Others 199.85 (487.21) - {287.36)
Deferrcd tax asscisf (liahilities), net 451.44 (12,965.28) (11.97) (12,495.81)
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36 Commitments and contingent liabilities

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
A. Commitments
(1) Capital commitments as on balance sheet datc 686.81 306.19
B. Contingent liabilities As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) Customer claims not acknowledged as debts 980.52 -
{b) Income-tax matters* 241933 98.56
(c) Service tax matters** - 929.46
{d} Goods and service tax matters 126.35 -

* Amount for the year ended 31 March 2022, primarily includes show cause notice received from the income tax authorities relating to tax treatment of
depreciation on goodwill claimed in AY 2020-21 aggregating to INR 14,801.51 lakhs (Tax impact INR 2,320.77 lakhs). The Company has submitted
its responsc to the income tax authorities. The Company has evaluated thesc netices and has concluded that any consequent income tax claims or
demands by the income tax authoritics will not succeed.

Further, the Company periodically receives notices and inquiries from income tax authorities related to the Company’s operations and retums filed.

*+During the financial year 2011-12, the Karvy Computershare Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor Company”} had received an
order from the Commissioner of the Customs, Central Excise and Service Tax under Section 73(1) of the Finance Act, 1994 demanding scrvice tax of
INR 1,146.11 lakhs on reimbursement of expenses and penalty and interest thereon, pertaining to period from 10 September 2004 to 31 January 2007,
The Service tax on Repistrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent services was introduced vide Finance Act 2006 and the netification 13/2006 dated
25 April 2006 with cffect from 1 May 2006, The rules for determination of value of taxable service was notified vide Notification No 12/2006 dated 19
April 2006, wherein Rule 5 prescribes for the inclusion of expenditure or cosl incurred in the course of providing "taxable service”, hence such
inclusion was prescribed only for the "taxable scrvice” which in this case, is applicable with effect fiom | May 2006. The Transferor Company, by way
of abundant caution, had deposited an amount of INR 216.65 lakhs and interest thereon, pertaining to period from 1 May 2006 to 31 Janvary 2007,
The Transteror Company preferred an appeal to the Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT), Bengaluru and obtained stay
order on the above order and the matter is pending disposal. As per the above mentioned notification, the Service Tax on Registrar to an Issue and
Share Transfcr Agent was made applicable only with effect from 1 May 2006.

This matter was finally heard in October 2021 and an order was passed in favour of the Company with no outllow of resources and therefore the matter
stands closed as at 31 March 2022,

(e) The Company is a party to certain pending cases with rcgulatory authorities relatifig 1o the initial public offerings of ils cuslomers that have taken
place in earlicr years. These cases are pending at varjous levels of legal disposition. In the assessment of the management and as legally advised, these
matters arc unlikely to have a material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

{f) The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC™) by their order dated 28 February 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s EPFO, set
out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation
of Provident Fund contribution. The Company has started complying with this prospectively from the month of March 2019, In respect of the past
period there are significant implementation and interpretative challenges that the management is facing and is awaiting for clarity to smerge in this
regard, pending which, this matler has been disclosed under the contingent liability section in standalone financial statements. The impact of the same

(g) In September 2018, the Company has received show-cause notice from Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority ('PFRDA') letter
alleging the Company for undertaking a regulated activity of Peint of Presence (POP) — Service establishment and serviced UT! POP without any
approval from PFRDA to act in that capacity. The Company has submitted its responses to PFRDA and all hearings have been attended.

During the year, the inquiry proceedings were dispossed off without requiring any further action as no contravention as alleged in the show cause
notice were found established. The malter is concluded without levy of any penalty.

(h) The Company has rcceived a letter dated 24 Augusi 2021 from PFRDA secking compensation amounting to TNR 263.00 lakhs towards breach of
SLA for the delay in dispatch of PRAN kits and Annual Statement of Transactions (SOT} to the subscribers during Covid 19 lockdown. The Company
has submitted its response stating (he Factual position and reasons for the delay and that no loss has been suffered by any subscriber, thercfore, there
should not be any compensation claim. The matter is under further discussion.

{i) Subsequent the year cnded 31 March 2022, the Company, on 3 April 2022, has received a show causc notice from SEBI dated 31 March 2022
secking explanation as to why an inquiry aleng with penalty should not be Initiated under certain provisions of the regulations in relatien to RTA
inspection held for the period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019, On 10 May 2022, the Company has filed a settlement application with SEBI in
accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India {Scttlement Proceedings) Regulations, 2018, The final outcome of the matter is not yel
concluded and therefore the penalty, il any is not quantifiable. Management believe that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have any
matcrial adverse effect on the standalone financial statement of the Company.
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Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets(continued})

{j¥ The Company is party to certain cases relating to customer complaints which are at various levels of resolution and litigations. The management is
confident of resolution of these cascs in its favour and does not expect any material impact on the standalone financial statements. Further, the
Company is proforma party to certain cases relating to succession matters, partition suits, ete. which are at various levels of resolution and litigations.
There is no direct involvement of the Company in these matters and accerdingly having no material impact on the standalone financial statcments.

The Company is contcsting the above mentioned demands and the Management believes that its position will Iikely be upheld in the appellate process
and accordingly no expense has been accrued in the Company's standalone financial statements for the demand raised/ show cause notice received as
the ultimatc outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the standalone financial statements.

The pre-amalgamated Company (Refer Note 45) was the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of a past Client (“the Client”) until 5 April 2021, The
Client had a demat account (“Escrow Account™) with one of the Depository Participants (“DP™) for depositing its shares in escrow for the purposes of
its inilial public offering. The Company identified in the financial year 2020-21 that 794,489 shares were transferred by the DP {500,000 shares in
2011 (which translated into 1,000,000 shares pursuant to a bonus issue undertaken by the Client in 2017) and 294,489 shares in 2020} from the
Escrow Accounl to the DP’s own demat account and to a third party’s demat account through an olf-market transaction without any authorisation from
the Client and without knowledge of the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company after considering legal advice purchased 1,294,489 shares
and transferred these shares to the Escrow Account of the Client on a ‘good faith and no fault' basis, after reducing the amount payable upon
redemption, in future, of the Redeemable Preference Shares (Refer Note 20) issued in October 2021, by INR 3,000 lakhs (Refer Note 20(ii)(b}). The
dividend received on such shares by the Company in the financial year 2021-22 of INR 40.77 lakhs was also transferred back to the Client. Intimation
letlers were sent to Lhe Client and SEBI on 15 November 2021 informing them of transfer of shares to the Client’s Escrow Account and refund of
dividend to the Client.

Further, the Board of Directors of the Company after considering legal advice, approved payment of up to TNR 700.00 lakhs (based on an estimation of
potential losses that may be suffered by the Client) by the Company to the Client, for the purpose of seitlement of any potential claims by the Client
{including dividends on such shares for earlier periods). The Company will initiate proceedings against the concerned partics, including certain
minertity sharcholders, for recovery of the amount paid and payable by the Company to the Client in connection with this matter upon completion of
final scttlement with the Client. Considering the assessment of recoverability, the Company has made a provision of INR 700.00 lakhs as on 31 March
20722. Pending the final settlement of terms to be agreed with the Client, the Management has measured the provision at its best estimate.

Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (*'the MSMED Act™) based on the information
available with the Company.

The Management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify inder the definition of micro
and small enterprises, as defined under the MSMED Act. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of thc amounts paysble to such enterprises as at
respective year end has been made in the standalone financial statements based on information reccived and available with the Company. The
Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said MSMED Act.

Particulars . ge e
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of the year. 10.63 30.50

Interest due thereon remaining outstanding as at the end of the year. ! =
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MEMED Act. = <

The amcunt of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed date
during cach accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period/ year of delay in making payment

{(which have been paid bul beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding - -
the intercst specified under the MSMED Act.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year, = =

The amount of further inlerest remaining due and payable even in the sncceeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expendilure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

Naote: The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Compan

Segment information

In accordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, segment information is disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements of the Company and
accordingly no separate segment disclosures have been furnished in these standalene financial statements of the Company.
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(i

(i)

Employee benefits
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit contribution in India.

Defined contribution plans:

Emplovee State Insurance

The Company makes contribution towards Employee state insurance for its employees. The Company's contribution to the Employees' State
Insurance is deposited with the government.

Provident fund:

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund for employees. The Company’s contribution to the Employees' Provident Fund is
deposited with the Government under the Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The contribution paid under the
plan by the Company is at the rate specified under the Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952,

During the year. the Company has recognised following amounts in the standalone statgment of profit and loss (included in Note 30):

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 21 March 20 y021
Contribution to provident fund 1,330.45 1,035.28
Contribution to employee state insurance 157.21 155.94

Defined benefit plan:

The Company makes annual contribution to a gratuity fund administered by trustees and managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).
Every employee is entitled to a benefil equivalent to fificen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with the Payment of
Gratuity Act 1972. The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement whichever is earlier.

A. Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised
in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:
. As at As at
Particulars 21
March2022 31 March 2021
Net defined benefit liability 667.85 630.56
- Current (Refer Note 26) 18.12 17.09
- Non Current (Refer Note 21} 649.73 61347
B. Movement in net defined henefit liability/ (asset)

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit {asset) liability and its
components:

(i} Defined benefit obligation

Particulars Bat G L
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year 1,389.02 1.405.76
Included in standalone statement of profit or loss
Current scrvice cost 156.23 146.42
Interest cost 84.70 50.17
240.93 236.59
Included in Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement loss/ (gain)
Actuarial loss/ {gain) arising from financial assumplions 102,59 (55.62)
- demographic assumptions - -
- experience adjusiment - -
- others ( OB difference) - -
on plan assets - -
102.59 {55.62)
Others
Benefits paid {260.94) (197.71)
(260.94) (197.71)

Ralance as at end of the year 1,471.60 1,389.02
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Fair valuc of plan assets

Balance as at beginning of the year

Included in standalone statement of profit or loss
Expected relurn on plan assets

Investment income

Included in Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement loss/ {gain}

Actuarial loss/ (gain) arising from:

- financial assumptions

- on plan assets

Others
Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid

Balance as at end of the year

Net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Balance as at beginning of the year

Included in standalone statement of profit or loss
Current service cost

Interest cost

Included in Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement loss/ (gain)

Actuarial loss/ (gain) arising from:

- financiaj assumptions

- on plan assets

Others
Benefits paid

Balance as at end of the year

C, Plan assets

Investment with Life Insurance Corporation of India

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{758.48) {902.34)
(27.42) (61.88)
(27.42) (61.88)
- 3.60
{14.51) 245
(14.51) 8.05
(264.30) -
260.94 197.71
{3.36) 197.71
(803.75) (758.46)
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 Marceh 2021
630.56 503.42
156.23 146.42
57.28 28.29
213.51 174.71
102,59 (50.02)
(14.51) 2.45
83.08 (47.57)
{264.30) -
{264.30) -
667.85 630.56
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
100% 100%

On an annual basis, an asset-liability matching study is done by the Company whereby the Company contributes the net increase in the actuarial

liability to the plan manager {insurer) in order to manage the liability risk.
D. Actuarial assumptions

a} Economic assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate, expecicd rate of return on plan asseis and salary growth rate. Financial and demographic

valuation assumptions arg as follows:

Discount ratc (p.a.}
Salary increasc (p.a.)
Withdrawal rates (p.a.)

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
7.17% 6.80%

4.00% 4.00%

1.00% 1.00%
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by D raphie assumptions gt —
emograp P 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i) Retirement age (ycars) 58 years 58 years

ii) Mortality table

E. Sensitivity analysis

TALM {2006-08} 1ALM (2006-08}

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would bave

affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate (1% movemcent)
- Increase (121.83) (118.00}
- Decrease 140131 136.37
Future salary growih (1% movement)
- [ncrease 175.37 169.77
- Decrease (151.35) (146.04)
Mortality rate {1% movement)
- Increase 2.86 14.09
- Decrease (2.87) {2.62)
Adtrition rate (1% movement)
- Incrcase {85.63) (89.75)
- Decrease 105.48 96,22
F. Expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted gratuity benefit is as follows:
Particulary . —
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Duration of defined benefit payments
Less than 1 year 78.26 -
Between 2 - 5 years 183.09 249.50
Between 5- 10 years 397.54 368.41
Over 10 years 812.71 771.11
Total 1,471.60 1,389.02

Expected contribution lo the post employee benefit plan during the next financial year is expccted to be 31 March 2022: INR 165.97 lakhs {31

March 2021: INR 173,92 lakhs).

G. Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the

estimated tcrm of the obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other

relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Other long-term employee benefits:

The Company provides compensated absences benefits to the employees of the Company which can be carried forward to future years. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
and are also not expected to be utilised wholly within twelve months after the end of such pericd, the benefil is classified as a long-term
employee benefit. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has incurred an expense on compensated absences amounting {o INR
175.66 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 139.49 lakhs). The Company determincs the expense for compensated absences basis the actuarial valuation
of the present value of the obligation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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41 Related parties

A. Names of related party and nature of relationship

i. U'ltimate holding company :
GASC MGP. LLC, Delaware (w.e.f 17 November 2018}

ii. Holding Company :
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Ltd

iii. Wholly owned subsidiaries;

a) KFin Technologies (Bahrain) W.L.L. (formerly known as Karvy Fintech (Bahrain) W.L.L)

b} KFin Technologies (Malaysia} SDN.BHD (formerly known as Karvy Fintech (Malaysia) SDN.BHD)
¢) KFin Services Private Limited

d} Hexagram Fintech Private Limited (w.c.f 7 February 2022)

iv. Step down subsidiary
a) Hexagram Fintech SDN. BHD (w.e.f 7 February 2022)

v. Enterprise where promoters/ promoter group held control:
a) Rubicon Research Private Limited

b) Advagen Inc.

¢} Advagen Pharma Ltd

d) Rubicon Consumer Healthcare Pvt Ltd
¢} Kia Biopharma Technologies Pvt Ltd

fy Rubicon Academy LLP

g} Rubicon Research Canada Lid

h) Rubicon Research Pvt Lid (Singapore)
i} Advagen Holding INC

j) Advatech Bie Pharma Ltd

k} Advagen Realty LLC

1y Genera! Atlantic Singapore KFT Pte Ltd

vi. Enterprise where promoters/ promoter group hold significant influence:

a) Ochre & Black Private Limited (w.e.f 31 December 2019)

b) Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limiled (w.e.f 31 December 2015 to 28 Junc 2021)

¢) lconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited {w.e.f 31 December 2019 to 28 June 2021}

vii. Key Management personnel (KMP)

a) V Ganesh , Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director {up to 12 Junc 2020}
b) Venkata Satya Sreekanth Nadella, Chief Executive Officer and Whale time Director (w.e.f 12 June 2020)
¢} Kaushik Mazumdar, Independent Director ,

d) Sonu Halan Bhasin, Independent Director

¢} Sandeep Achyut Naik, Director

) Vishwanathan Mavila Nair, Director

&} Shantanu Rastogi. Director

h) Vishesh Tayal. Director (w.e.f 24 March 2020 and upto 26 Max 2020)

i} Prashani Saran, Independent Director {w.e.f. 26 Max 2020)

i} Srinivas Peddada (w.e.f, 02 July 2020)

k) Jaideep Hansraj (w.e.f. 10 November 2021)

viii. Post-employment benefit plan
a} KFintech Emplovees Group Gratuity Assurance scheme
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B. Transactions with the related parties

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

i. Holding Company :
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Lid

Reimbursement of [PO relaled expenses (Refer Note 50) 844.49 =

ii) Wholly owned subsidiaries

a) KFin Technologics {Malaysia) SDN.BHD

Fec from investor service (1,090.38) (1,094.22)

b} KFin Technologies {Bahrain) W.L.L.

Dividend income received {303.42) -

¢} KFin Services Private Limited

[nvestment in equity shares 550.00 -

Reimbursement of legal and professional expenses 3597 54.45

d) Hexagram Fintech Private Limited

Investment in equity shares™ 650.00 -

ii) Enterprise where promoters/ promoter group hold significant influcnee:

Ochre & Black Private Limited

Fee from investor services (0.05) {0.01}

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Fee from investor services - {0.01)

jii} Key Management Personnel®

Short-term employee benefits
- Remuneration paid 312,72 426.25
- Incentives/ Bonus paid 153.50 147.51
- Share-based payment 347.29 115.62

*The managerial personnel are covered by the Company's gratuity policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with other employees of
the Company. The proportionate amount of gratuity and leave encashment pertaining to the managerial personnel has not been included in the
aforementioned disclosures ag these are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.
# Excludes the initial investment made i.e. purchase consideration paid towards acquisition of Hexagram Fintech Private Limited,

. Related party balances

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

i. Holding Company :
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Ltd
Reimbursement of IPO related expenses (Refer Note 50)

ii) Wholly owned subsidiaries
KFin Technologies (Malaysia) SDN.BHD
Trade receivables

KFin Services Private Limited
Other receivable

844.49

231.72

All related party transactions entered during the years were in ordinary course of busincss and are on arm's length basis.

Terms and conditions:

83.78

54.45

All transactions with thesc related parties are priced on an arm's length basis and resulting outstanding receivables and payables including
financial assets and financial liabilities balances are settled in cash within a range of 30-120 days of the transaction date. None of the balances

are secured,
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42  Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management
1. Fair value measurements

A. Financial inslruinents by category

The folluwing table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilides, including their levels in the fair value ierarchy Tt decs notl include the fair valuc information

for financial assets and financial liahilities not measured at fair value if the carying amount is a reasonablc approximation of fair value
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value Fair value through
A 2022
RSEGEL L through profit olher comprehensive  Amaortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
and loss ingome
Financial asseis
Non-current assels
Other non-current financial asscts - - 614.33 a14.33 . = x =
Corrent asscls
{urrent investments G308 31 - - 9,308 31 0308 3] - - 0,308 1]
Tradi receivables - - 10.705.27 10.706 37 . - - -
Cash and cash cquivalents - - 3,092.24 3002 34 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 1230 1230 - = - -
Loans - - 14.07 1407 - - - -
Oiher current financial a55e1s - - 1.870.84 1,811 84 - - - -
9.308.31 - 16,310.15 25.618.46 930831 - - 9.308.31
Financial liabilities
Non-currenl Liabilities
{i) Borrowings - - 12,251 42 12.251.42 - - - -
{ii} Lease Fabilities = - 241936 2.419.36 - - - -
Current Liabilities
Bomgwings - - - - - - - -
Lease liabilities - - 1,149 42 1149 42 - - - -
Trade payables - - 2,393 51 236351 - - - -
Other current (inancial liabilities - - 3,089.37 3,059.87 - - - -
- - 211,273.58 21.273.58 - = = =
Chrrying Fair value
i i tised % E
As nt 31 March 2021 Fair valne Fair value lhrnth Amartised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
thrvugh profit other comprehensive
and loss mcome
Financial assets
Non-curreni assels
Other non-currenl [inancial assets . - 520.19 52019 - - - .
Currenl assets
Current imvestmenls 0,450 91 - - 0,490 92 D400 92 - - 0,450 92
Trade receivables B : 16,786 96 10,786 96 . - - -
Cash and cash cquivalunts - - 1.471.44 1,471 44 - - = -
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents - - 54.34 54 34 - - - .
Loans - - 26,88 26,88 - - - -
Other currenr financial assets E - 1,226.04 1,226.04 - - - -
5,450.92 - 14,085.85 23,576.77 9,490.92 - - 9,490.92
Financial liabilitics
MNon-current Linbilitics
(1) Borrowings - - 25,388 97 29388 97 - - - -
(il) Lease liabilities - - 2.603 83 2603 §3 - - - -
Curreni Liabilities
Borrowinus - - 5,224 42 5,224 42 - = - -
Lease liabilitics - - 981 38 oE] 33 - - - -
Trade payables - - 2,504 95 250495 = - - -
Other (inancial liabitities - - 1,507 09 1.507 09 - - - -
= - 42.610.64 42,610.64 = = = =

B, Fair value hicrarchy
This scclion explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:
(a) recoznised and measured at fair value and
(b measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its fnancial instruments inlo three levels preseribed under the Indian Accounting
Standard 113 An explanation of ¢ach level follows underneath the table

Lewel 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices

Level 7 Tle fair value of ftnancial insiruments that are not traded in an active markel [for example. traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determined usiog valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on cnlity-specific estimates I all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are vbservable, the instrument is included in level 2

Level 3: 1f one or moce of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3
There are no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year
Valualion process

The: finance department of the Copmany perfarms the valuation of financial assets and liabilitics required for financial repurting purposes, including level 3 fair valucs This team reports directly to the
Chief Financial Officer Discussions of valuation processes and results are held hepween the finance controller and the [inance team at Jeast once cvery quarter
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continuerd)

. Fair value of financial asse1s and liabilities measured at amortised cost

As at 31 March 2022 As al 31 March 2021
. Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
P amonnt amount
Financial asseis (currenl and non cnrrent)
Losns 1407 14.07 26 RB 26 B8
Other non current financial assets 614 33 614,33 32019 520 19
Trade receivables 10706 37 1. T06. 37 10,786 96 L0786 06
Cash and cash cquivalents 3,092 24 309224 1,471 44 1.471 44
Tank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 1230 1230 54 34 34.34
Qiher current financial assets | .BT0.84 1,870 84 1.226.104 1,226 04
16.310.15 16,310.15 1408585 14.0185.85
Financial liabilities {current and non current)
Bormowings 12,251 42 12251 42 34413 39 34,613 39
Tradr payables 2393 5] 2,393 31 2,504 95 2,504 B5
Lease liabilities 356874 3.568 7% 3585210 3.585 21
Olher finaneial habilities 3,055 87 3,059 87 1,907 09 1507 02
21,273.58 21.273.58 42.610.64 4261064

The carrying amounts of (rade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash aquivalents und other payahle for capital goods are considered to be the same as their [air values due to their
short-term nature

. Financial risk management

Risk managemenl lrnework

The Company’s Board of Directars has overall responsibilily for the establist t and ighl of the Company’s nsk fr k The Board of Direclors has constiuted an Auodit
Committee which is responsible for monitoring the Company's risk mansgement policies The Company’s risk management policies are eslablished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to sel apprapriate risk limits and controls and to monttor risks and adherence to limils Risk management palicies and systems arc revinwed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company s activities The Company, through its training and managemenl standards and procedures, aims 1o maintain a disciplined and constructive conatrol environment in which all employces
undersiand their roles and obligations

The Company has exposure 10 Uhe follmwing risks arising from financial instrumenis:

#) Creditrisk |

by Liguidily risk ; and

c) Market risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company i a custemcr or counlerparty to a financial instrument fails Lo meel its contractual obligations resulling in a financial loss to the Company Credit
risk encompasses bath the dircst risk of default and the risk of deterioration of credit worthiness as well as concentration risks Credil risk arisas principally from trade receivables, loans, advances.
security deposits, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks

a. Loans
Tt consists of employee payables The Company does nol expect any risk for the said loans as Lhese are given to employces of the argenisation

b. Trade reccivables
The Company"s exposure to credit tisk is influenced maioly by the individual characteristics of cach customer However, management also considers (he factors that may influence the eredil risk of ils
customer base, including the default Hsk of the industry and country in which customers operate

The blishes an all for impaiimenl thal represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables The management uses a simplificd approach for the purpose of

computation of expested credit loss for trade receivables An impaitment analysis is performed at each reporting date

The managemenl has establisted a credit policy under which cach new customer is analysed individually for creditwerthiness before the standard payments and delivery torms and conditions are offered
The average credit period provided to customerss is around 40 days The Company review includes external retings, custamer's credil worthiness, if they are available, and in some cases bank references

The customer base of the Company comprises of various corporate, state governments and matual fund houses all having sound financial condition An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date on invoice wise receivables balances

Grographical concentrativn of eredil risk: Geographical concentration of irade receivables (oross) is as follows:

Particulars Ag[al Aqn

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Outsice Indla 69535 318.27
Within India [2.02502 11,901 88
Total 12,230.15
Geoyraphical ation of tinde receivables {gross) (s based on the Tecation of the customers

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks
Cash and cash equivalents of the Company are held with hanks which have high credit rating The Company cansiders that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external credil
ratings of the countorparties

Investmends in equity instrument of other companies and muteal Tunds
The ¢redil risk for the investments in cquity instrument of other companies and mutual funds is considered as negligiblc as Lhe counler parties are reputable Companics and mutual fund agencies with
high external credit ratings

Financial assets for which loss allawnnce is measured nsing lifelime expected eredit lnxses

Parlicul Ag at Asal
arliculars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivahles (pross) 12,720 37 12,230 15

The Company has made write-ofTs of trade receivables as disclosed in Note 33 a5 it does not expect Lo receive future cash flows or recoverles fiom collection of reecivables The Company's managerent
also pursue all |ewal opdons for recovery of dues, whercver necessary, based on its Internal assessment

Refer Note 12 for reconciliation of allowance for credit Joss on trade receivables
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42 Financia! instruments — Fair values and rishk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the oblipations assoctated with its financial Liahilities that are scitled by delivering cash or another financial asset The
Company's approach to managing liquidily Is 1o ensure. as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity (o meet its liabilities when they are due. under both normal and stressed condilions, without
incurring unaccepiable losaes o risking damage to the Company’s reputation

Prudent liquidily risk management implics maintaining sufficienl cash and marketable securities and the cash flows generated from operations to meet obligations when due and to close out markel
posilions Bue to the dynamic natwre of the underlying businesses, the Company's treasury maintains Aexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines

Management menitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position comprising cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expeeted cash flows This is generally carried wut in accordance with
practice und limits set hy the Company In addition, the Company's liquidity management policy invelves projecting ¢ash fosws in major currencics and considenng the level of liquid assets necessary to
meel these, monitoring balance shect liquidily ralins against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans As at 31 March 2022, the Company has a net current
asscts of INR §6,142 05 lakhs {31 March 2021: [NR L1619 73 lakhs)

Maturities of financial liabiliti
The follawing are the remaining contractual mannties of financial liabilities at the reparting date The mmounts are pross and undiscounted and exclude the impact of netling agreements

Larrymg Contractual cash Nows
Particulars ot Betwegn 1-2 Between 2- 5 More than 5
as al Total Upto 1 year
3§ March 2023 years yenrs year
Non-derivative linancial Rabilitics
Trade payablcs 2383 51 239351 2,393 31 - - -
Borrowings * 12,251 42 13,400 00 - 13,400 00 - -
Lease liabilities 3,568 TE 4,350 36 1,392 02 65 66 a4l 81 84777
Other financial liahilities 3.050.87 3052 87 3,059.87 - - -
Total 21,273.58 23.203.74 G.845.40 14,068.66 1,441.91 847.77
* The contractual Cash flows inctudes interest obligation on borrowings
Carrymg Comractual cash lows
. amount
Particulars T Total Up to 1 year Between1-  Belwetn 2-5 More than 5
2 years ¥LATS yenr

31 March 2021

Nom-derivative Mnancial liahilities

Trade payables 2,504 95 2504095 2,504 35 - -

Bomowings * 34,613 38 44 385 70 3,324 08 11,406 63 13,654 99

Lease liabilitics 3,585 2] 4,447 51 1.177 73 1,578 83 1,204 37 446 53
Other financial liabilities 1.907 09 1,907 0% 1.907 9% . = -
Total 42,610.64 53.245.25 14.913,90 12,935.46 2494936 446.53

* The vontractual Cash fiows includes Interest abligation on boirowings

Market risk
Murket sk is Ube risk that changes in market prices — such as Foreign cechange rates and interest rates — will affect the Company's revenue from operations or the value of its holdings of financial
imstrumients The objective of market risk management is (o nanage and control market risk exposures within acceplable parameiers, while optimising the return

Interest rate risk
The Company does not have any horrowings with variable rates Company has all of its borrowings ot fixed rate ‘The Company has issued Non convertible borrowings at fixed interest rate, the same has
been repaid during the year

Exposure tn interest rate rish
The intevest rate profile of the Company s interest-bearng financial ingtiments as reparted to the r # of the Company 35 as follows:

As at As al

e
Tarticulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Fixed-rufe insfrumems
Financial assets 45 20 4386
Financial liabilities 210 39613 39

Ciish flenw sensivivity anafpsis for variable-rate insornments
There are no variable rale borrowings of the company Hence, change in intercst rates would not have an impact on cash lows of the Company

Fafr value xensirivity analysis for fived-rate insinimenis
The Company does not account For any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilitics at fair valug through profit ar loss Therefore, a change in interest rates gl the reparing dace would not affeel profit
or |58
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued}

Currency rivk
“I'he Company is exposed (o foreign currency sk on certain transactions that are denominated in a currency other than entity’s functional cmrency, hence exposure to cxchange rate fluctuations ariscs

Exposnre te ciirrency risk
The summury quantitative data about the Company's unhedged exposure to significant currency risk in foreign currency and domestic currency as reported to (he management of the Company is as
follows:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Financial assels Amount in TC Aﬂ:?\u]:l in  Amountin FC Amount in INR
Trade recetvables

usp 538 406 07 130 935 43
CAD k17 10°3] 03z 1297
AUD P02 5813 ki) 122,
GEP LAl 1040 013 1318
MYR 164 209 54 474 2378

Sensitivity analpsis
A& reasonably possible strengthening [weakening) of the INR. against alt olher currencies al year-end would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominaled in a foreign currency and

alfected equity and prolit or loss for the year by the shown below This analysis that afl other variables, in patticulir intcrest fies, remain constant
Particulars Frofit or loss Equity (net of tax)
Strengthening  Wenkening  Strenpthoning  Weakening
For the year ended 31 March 2022
LISD {1% movement) (4.87) 4.07 (3 05) 305
CAD (3% movement) (0.52) 0.52 {039y 0390
ALUD { 1% movenent] {0.58) 058 {0443 fhadq
GBP {10% movement) (1.04) 104 (0.78) 078
YR (10% movement) (2093) 2095 (15.68) 15.68
Tor the year ended 31 March 2021
USD (1% movement) (093] 095 {07 o7
CAD (5% movement) {0.65) 055 [049) L49
AUD {1% movement} {123) 123 (0.8} 09z
GBP (10% movement) {132y 132 (099} 099
MYR (10% movement) (838} 538 (627} 627

Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to

a) safepaacd Iheir ability to continue as a going concem so that it can continue to provide return for shareholders and benefits For other stakehalders,

b} maintain an oplimal capital strueture to reducs the cost of capital; and

) ensure compliance with regulatory minimum netwaorth required ko be maintzined in accordance with SEBL puidelines

In arder to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders. retum capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell Lo reduce debt

Caonsistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the follawing gearing ratio:
Met debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and current equity i af other panies and in in mutal funds) divided by total 'equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet,
excluding Capital reserve, Capital redemption reserve, Diet reserve, Share based payment reserve and Statutory reserve). The gearing ratios were as follows:

Parliculars el -0

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Met debr* - 2365102
Tolal equity 61,569 849 31.816.90
Nel debi to equity ratio 0.00% 74.33%

* Net debt is computed as Borrowings |ess sum of Cash and cash equivalents, Bank balanced and Current Investments. As at 31 March 2022, Net debt position is newative and hence represented as Nil

Debt covenants

Under the terms of the debentures agrecment , the Company is required to comply wilh the following fnancial 15

2) DECRA not less than | ] times during the tenure of the debentures

by bMaximum Net Debt! EBITDA not ko cxceed 3 75 limes

The Company has complied with these covenants upto the date of repayment of debentures

Further, the SEBI (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents), Rules and Regulations, 1993 require the pany to maintain a mini net worlh of INR 50 lakhs at all ttmes. Such nct worth is

computed based on a furmula given in the SGBT guidelines as per which Met worth = Share capital + Free reserves and surplus - debil balance in the P&L - Preliminary cxpenses not wrilten of (" -
Tntangible assets - Deferred Tax assets For camputing this net worth, the camrying value of goodwill amounting to INR 51,625 60 lakhs thal has ansen on aceount of the business combinations is net
deducted by the This is consi with the methodology followed by the Company in the submissions made carlier to SEBI and is based on legal advice obiained by the Company Basis
such computation, the Company is in compliance with the minimum net werth criteria as per aforementioned SEBI guidelines
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44 Tmpairment test of goodwill
The Company is carrying goodwill agpregating to INR 51,625.60 lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021 : INR 51,625.60 lakhs) referred to in Note 4 and Note 45, The
Company as & whole has been identified as a single CGU. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the poodwill impairment has been assessed at the CGU level The recoverable
amount of the Goodwill has been determined as per value in use method nsing discounted cash flows
The values assigned to the key assumptions represent managerment's assessment of future teends in the relevant industrics and have becn assigned based on historical data
both from external and internal sourees
The projections cover a reasonable period that the Company believes is to be the most appropriate limescale over which to review and consider annual performances before
applying a fixed terminal value multiple to the final year cash flows, The growth rates used to estimate future performance are based on the conservative estimates from past
performance. The Compatiy performs an annual impairment 1est of goodwill. During the year, impairment test was performed and there were no trigger for impairment

The following growth and discount rales have been considered for the purpose of the impairment testing:

. As at As at
X T 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 14% 14%
Tenminal value rale 3% 5%
Budgeted EBTTDA growth rate for various revenue stream 19.31% t022.27%  266% t0 35.9%

- The discount rate is a post-lax measure estimated based on the historical industry average weighted-average cost of capital.

- The cash flow projections include specific estimates for five years and a terminal growth rate thereafer. The terminal growth rate has been determined based on
management’s esiimate of the long-term compound annual EBITDA growth rate, consistent with the assumptions that a market participant would make,

- Budgeted EBITDA has been estimated taking into account past experience and expected growih in the next five years.

The Company believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate carrying armount
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash - generating unit.

Also Refer Nate 45 in tespect of approval received from National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) towards testing the goodwill for impairment wgf 1 Aprdl 2021,

43 PRusincss combination

{A) Amalgamation of the 'RTA undertaking' of KCL into the Company and Amalgamation of KCPL into the Company
The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 2 August 2017 approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation between Karvy
Consultants Limited (KCL), Karvy Computershare Private Limited (KCPL), the Company and their respective shareholders under the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Scheme'} The Scheme has been approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide their order dated 23 October 2018 which has been flied with
the Registrar of Companies on 17 Novernber 2018, Therefore the Scheme has become effective on 17 November 2018,
As per the Scheme, the ‘RTA undertaking' of KCL (as explained below) and KCPL were amalgamated into the Company with effect from 17 November 2018, the details of
which are piven below:

Amalgamation of the '"RTA undertaking' of KCL into the Company

In the Scheme, the RTA undertaking’ of KCL is defined as the assets and liabilities relating to the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) business of KCL including the
investment held by KCL {50% equity stake) in KCPL. In accordance with the Scheme, this RTA Undertaking of KCL has been amalgamated into the Group with effect from
17 November 2018 in consideration of issue of 110,000,015 cquity shares of INR. 10 each of the Company to the sharcholders of KCL {as per the share swap ratio approved
itt the Schemea)

As specified in the Scheme, this amalgamation has accounted for in accordance with the Purchase method of accounting as per Accounting Standard 14 - on *Accounting for
Amalgamations’. Accordingly:

a) all assets and Tiabilities of the RTA Undertaking of KCL including the investment held by KCL in KCPL have been recorded at their cxisting book values as at November
16, 2018 {as certified by the independent auditors of KCL)

b} the consideration, being the face value of the said cquity shares issued by the Company to the shareholders of KCI. has been recarded at par value, and

¢} the difference belween a) and b) above amounting to INR. 10,937.50 lakhs has been recorded as Goodwill.

Amalgamation of KCPL into the Company

On 17 November 2018, the Company acquired a 50% stake in KCPL from an existing shareholder. Further, on 17 November 2018, the RTA Undertaking’ of KCL got
amalpamated into the Company, thus vesting the remaining 50% stake of KCPL to the Company. Accordingly, on 17 November 2018, KCPL became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. However, the amalgamation of KCPL. into the Company also became effective an the same day, and hence, KCPL got merged into KFPL on 17
November 2018,

As specified in the Scheme, the Company has accounled for the amalgamation as follows:

a) all assets and liabilities of KCPL have been recorded at their existing book values as at 16 November 2018;

b} the difference between the cost of investment in KCPL as appearing in the books of KFPL and the net book value of assets as per &) above amounting to INR 56,554.05
lakhs has been recorded as Goodwill

As per the Scheme, the cumulative goodwill arising on the transaction amounting o TNR 67,491.54 lakhs is being amortised over a period of 10 years Goodwill penerated on
1his transaction largely represents the value of the businesses acquired by the Comparty as reduced by the book values of the assets and liabilitics of the acquired businesses

The accounting treatment as specificd in ihe Scheme relating to amalgamation of the RTA Undertaking' of KCL and of KCPL into the Company and the subsequent
measurement of Goodwill is in accordance with Accounting Standard 14 on "Accounting for amalgamations' which is different from the accounting as per Ind AS 103 on
‘Business Combinations’. Under Ind AS 103, the Company would have been required to tecord the enlite business combination (the asseis, liabilities acquired and
consideration paid) at fair value

The fair values of the above assets and liabilities taken over is not expected to be materially different from their cattying values. The excess of fair valuc of the equity shares
issued as consideration over face value of such shares is INR 70,466, 10 lakhs with a consequential impact of Goodwill/ Intangible assets.

(B) The Board of Dirsctors of the Company at its meeting held on 01 September 2021, have approved the application filed with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT
application’) on 28 October 2021 for discontinuing amertisation of goodwill, As per the Scheme approved earlier in October 2018, the goodwill was being amortised over a
period of ten years. Pursuant (o the approval of the NCLT application via order dated 2 March 2022, the amortisation of goodwill has been discontinued with effeet [rom |
April 2021 As per Ind AS 36— Impairment of Assets, the Company continues to annually test the impairment on Goodwill. Also, Refer Note 44 for further detalls of
Impairment testing of goodwill
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Impact of COVID-19

The Company has taken into account the possible impacts o COV'ID-19 in preparation of these standalone hinancial statements, including bul not limited to its assessment of. hquidity and goiny concern
assumptions. recos erable values ol 1ts financial and non-financial assets The Company has carried out this assessment based on available internal and external sources of information up 10 the date of
approval of these standalone financial staiemetits and hehies ¢s that the impact of COVID-19 is nat material to these standalone financial statements and expects ta recover the carrying amount of its
assels The impact of COVID-19 on the standalone financial statements may difier from that estimaled as at the date of approval of (hese dal financial st s owing lo the nawrc and duration
of COVID-19

Share Based Payments

The shareholders of the Company vide their meeung held on 31 July 2019 have authorised the Board of Directors to introduce, offer and provide share-based incentives to chgible employ ees of the
Company under KFPL Employee Stock Opuion Plan 2019 (ESOP Plan 2019') The maximum number of shares that the Company can issue under the ESOP Plan 2019 were 9.593.839 equity shares
Subsequently, the members have approy edrenaming the plan as Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 (‘ESOP Plan 2020') and cancellation of 2,500,000 options in EGM held on 20 October 2020 The Board
and Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee (NRC) hay ¢ nonfied sex en schemes under the ESOP Plan 2020 up to 31 March 2022. The revised number of options available under the ESOP plan 2020
pool are 7.093,839 equily shares as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: 7,093,839) The options under these schemes vest 1o the employces based on various performance and other parameters
As at 31 March 2022 the Company has granted 6.502.763 (net) (31 March 2021: 2,666,728 (net)) oplions to eligible employees as identified by the NRC Thesc options vests belween a minimum ol |
10 3 65 \ ears from the date of wrant

A Description of shary hased paysient aveang=menis

Particulars Scheme A Scheme B Scheme C Scheme D Scheme E Scheme F Scheme G
8-Aup-19 8-Aug- 19 8-Aup-1901-Nov-21 01-Nov-21 {-Nov-2] 24-Mar-22,
13-Jan-20 i3-Jan-20) 13-Jan-20|24-Mar-22 24-Mar-22

Date of Grant 8-Sepl-20 8-Sept-20 8-Sepl-20

29-Dec-20) 29-Dec-204 29-Dec-20
1-Noy-21| 1-Nov-21]

Number of options in pool 7.093.839

Total number of options granted as al

As at 31 March 2022 1.002.514] 1.392.641 | 1,223.370 | 1.903.905 | 385.170 | 396.823 | 198.340

As at 31 March 2021 1.066.691 | 800.019] 800.018 | e | - - .

7 vears fiom the date of listing of shares on the stock exchange for ¢ ing employee or d i employee and a period of 3 years from the date of lisiing of shares

Exercise period on the stock exchane for ex-employees

Vesling condition

Time based vesting
condition

Achievement of
performance condition
and non-market based
condition

Achievement of non-
markel based condition

Time based vesting
condition

Achievement of
petformance
condition and non-

market based
Jcondilion

Achievement of non-
market based
condition

Achievement of
performance condition

15% - end of year |
15% - end of year 2

50% or 100% on
achievement of 1arget

100% on achievement of’
condition specified in

20% - end of year 1
20% - end of year 2

50% or 100% on
achievement of target

100% on achievement
of condition specified

100% on achievement of
condition specified in the

35%- end of vear 3|specified in the scheme |the scheme or 100% on 30%- end of year 3|specified in the in the scheme or 100%|scheme
Vesting period 35% - end of vear 4[or 100% non-market  |non-market based 30% - end of year 4|scheme or 100% non- |on non-market based
based condition condition market based condition
70 36 70 36 70 36| 185.00 185.00 185 00 18500
Exercise price WLy VDN ] 9_8|
110 00| 110 00 110 00|
185 00 185 00/
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47 Share Based Payments (continued)

B Mensurement of fair values

The fair value of the options grented during the peried and the inputs used in the measurement of (he prant-date fair values of the equity-settled share based paymenl plans
measurcd based an the Black Scholes valuation model are as lollows.

Particnlars Scheme A Scheme B Scheme Scheme I Scheme E Scheme F Scheme G
8-Ang-19 8-Aup-19 -Aup-19 01-Nov-21 01-MNov-21 1-Mey-2] 24-blar-23
13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 24-Mar-22 24-Muar-22

Date of grant 3-Sepr-20) B-Sep1-20 8-Sept-20

29-1ec-20 246-Dec-24 29-Dec-2{
1-Mov-21 1-Mow-21
3 . I il s

Fair Value of option {In INE) 33 5% ;2 _Slré ]3355;;23 2; 33355?'?;;; .:z 5256/ 5192 5256751 92 5256 5192

7036 7034 70349 18300 13500 18500 185 00
. . 91 98 91 o8 91 98
Exereieiprice 110,00 110,00 11000
1 B5 0F| 185 0¢)

Risk free interest rale 6 47540/ & B8% G 470 6 88% 6 47%/ 5 BB% 6 T79%¢ 7 12% G 7P T 12% & 790 T12%
6 40% 6 40%i6 7% 640008 644

R contractual life /3 years T 3 years 7/ 3 years T/ 3 years 74 3 vears 1/ 3 years 3 years

Expected |ifi: of shate options & 15/7 72 yeary & 157 72 years 8 15/7 72 yeorg| 4. 16 yoars/ 3 17 years| 4 16 years/ 3 77 years 4 16 years 3 77 years

(years) 706 years| 7 06 years/4 16 years T 06 yearsid 16 years

Expected volatility {weighted 14 61%¢ 13 96% 14 6194/ 13 96% 14 61%¢ 13 9% 17 6234 19 349 17 62%¢ 19 34% 17 62% 19 34%

averaps volatility %) L6 16% 16.16%%¢17 62% 16 16%/17 62%

Expected dividend yields (453

The fair value aof the options uranted during the period and the inputs used in the measurement of the granl-date fair values of the equity-settled share based payment plans measured based on the Black

Seholes valuation madel are as follows:

= The expected life of the share options is based on current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may oceur
> Smee there are no listed companies in the Indian market that are abselutely comparable to Parent Company, volatility of returns on the BSES00 index for historical period hes been considered The
expected volatility reflects the assumpiion that the historical volatility over a peried similar to the life of the aptions is indicative of future trends. which may not necessarily be the actual outceme

= The risk free interest rates are determined based on the zero-coupon sovereign bond yields with maturity equal te the expected term of the aption
The average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding is 3 77 years as al 31 March 2022 i ¢ 0 27 years post lock in period of | year and average life of 3 5 years fram the date of listing
131 March 2022 131 March 2021: 7 06 vears oost Tock in oeriod of 3 § vears and averase life of 3 5 vears from the date of listing

. Reconciliation of share options

Number ol pptions

Numhber of options

Particulars as al AS AL
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cutstanding at beginning of the year 2,606,128 2,735,038
Granted during the year 4,064,126 1.815.586
Forfeited during the year (228,001 {1,883.89¢)
Exercised during the year {200} -
Qutstanding, at end of the year 6,502,563 2,666,728

Exercisable al the end of the year

Diirtng the year ended 31 Mareh 2022, the Company has granted 4.064,126 uptions (31 March 2021: 1,815 586) under ESOP Plan 2019 to eligble employees as identified by the Momination and

Remuneration Committes (NRC)

D Effect of the Emplayee optien plan on the standalone statement of profil and loss and on its financial position

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Total employee compensation cost pertaining to stuck option plan (Refer Note 30)

Reserves- Employee stack oplion plan outstanding as at the year

914 54
1,205 10

121 60
18970
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48 Revenue [rom contract with costomers

: Timing of For fhe year ended For the yenr ended
{a) -LgyubSacie recognition 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fee from registrors and investor services Over the peniad 55,583 67 40,732.59
Ineome from dala processing Over the period 422435 4.0 82
Ineome from pension fund solutions Over the period 364 30 267 53
Recoverable eapenses (Over the period 229815 1,487 .02
Total 62,470,687 47,178.96

{b) Contrict balances:
Asat Asar
Firhouos 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Tride receivaliles, net® 10,706.37 10,786 96
Contract Liabilities funeamed income and advance from customers) 486 71 41619

*Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of payment of 40 days

(¢} Reconcilintion of revenoe with contract price

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Cantract price 62,470 87 4717896
Tess - Adiustments {or price concessions (285 43) -
Revenue lrym operations 62,185.44 47,178.96

Performance obligntion - The Graup enters 1o contracts With customers for rendering Corporare Regustry, Data Processing and Pension Fund Solutions services The performanee obligalion for all of
these services 1s satisfied over the period There is no complexity invelved in delermination of performance obligation in contract wath customers

Tranaaction price - Conlract price is delermined as per terms agreed with the customer and no further adjustments are made to the same
Payment terms - The amounts receivable from customers become due afier expiry of eredit period which on an average is less than 40 days The contracts entered with eustomers do nat have significan)

financing componant

Transaction price allocated to remaining perform ance obligalions - The company daes not have performance obligations thal are rematning/unsatisfied at the end of the reparting period There are

no contracls for sale services wherein, performance obligation is . isficd to which trar

price has been allocated

4% In Fy 2020-2021, the Cormpany vide Jetter dated 02 March 2021 has surrendered its license for operating as e Depositor Paniicipant (DP] as it does not plan to Taunch the DF operations duc to change m
the business plans/ strategy (o Central Depository Services Limited {C8DL) and National Depository Services Limited (NSDL),

50 During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has incurred expenses for various services in conneelion with proposed public offer of equity shares apgregating to TNR 844 49 |akhs for Inital Public
Offering (IPO) In aseordance wilh the Offer Asreement entered belween the Company and the selling shareholders, the selling sharcholders shall reimburse such offer related expenses Accordinply, the
Company will recover the expenses incurred in connection with the issue on completion of TPO The entire amount has been carried forward and disclosed under the head "TPO related expenses” under
“other current financial assets”  In the event that the Offer 15 postponed or withdrawn or abandoned for any reason or the Offer is not successful or consummaled, all costs and expenses wilh respeat to

the Offer shall be borne shall be borne solely by the Company
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Ratios as per Schedule TII requirements

As at

Particulars 31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

i) Current ratio = Current assets divided by current liabilities

Current assets 25,8353 07 253 802 BB
Current liabilities 9,711 02 12,183 15
Ratio 2.66 1.95

% change from the previpus year 36%

Reason for change more than 25%,;

The mcrease {s primarily due to decreasc in current liabilities on account of repayment of NCDs.

1i) Debt equity ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current borrowings

Total debn (inel current maturitics and interest acerued) 12,251.42 3MB1339
Total equity 64,574 77 - 34,356,44
Ratio 0.19 1.01

% chanpe from the previous vear -81%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Decrease in the ratio is primarily of account of

a) Total debts has reduced on account of repayment of NCDs on 29 December 2021 which is offset by issuance of RPS

b} Total equity has increased on account of issuance of cquity shares and profits for the year.

iii) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Enrnings available for debt services divided by Total interest and principal repayments

Net profit before tax 20,763.13 6,440.88

Add: Non cash operating cxpenses and finance cost 8.899.52 14,982,535

- Depreciation and amortisation 3.616.44 9.791.28

- Finance costs 528308 5,191 27

Earnings available for debt services 29,662.68 21,423.43

Interest cost on bomowings 4,130.86 4,831.7%

Principal repayments 35,200.00 3,200.00

Total Interest and principal repayments 39,330.86 3,031.79

Ratio .75 2.67

% change from the previous year =T2%a

Reason for change more than 25%:

The Company has repaid its entire NCD along with interest thereon and therefore the variance in the ratio is not comparable.

iv) Return on Equity Ratio / Return on Investment Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Equity

Net profit after tax 15,301.52 {6,731.40)
Equity 64.574.77 34,356 44

Ratio 0.24 (0.20)
% change from the previous year 221%

Reason lor change more than 25%:
Increase in net profit is primarily on account of

{i} Change in the accounting treatment of goodwill {pursuant to NCLT approval - Refer Note 45(B)), no amortisation of goedwill is carmied out for

the year ended 31 March 2022
(i1} Growth in the operations of the Company due to favorable market conditions resulting in higher revenue growth primarily

in mutual fund

segment and other operational efficiencies and hence the Company Lias penerated higher net profit during the yecar ended 31 March 2022,
(ili) Increase in equily share capital on infusion of equity aggregating to TNR 30,999.97 lakhs {equity share capitat and security premium thereon)

which ig offsel by issuance of RPS at a premium (Reler Note 18 and [9)



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as "' KFin Technologics Private Limited"')
Naotes to standalone financial statements (continued)
(A amounts ave in INR lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

51 Ratios as per Schedule I requirements {continued)

As at

Particulars 31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

v) Trade Receivables turnaver ratio = Credit Sales divided by Closing trade receivables

Credit sales 5247087 4717896
Closing trade receivable 10,706.37 10,7365.96
Ratio 583 4.37
% change from the previous vear 33%

Reason for change more than 25%:

The increase is due to favorable market conditions resulting in higher revenue growth primarily in mutual fund segment.

vi) Net capital turnover ratio = Sales divided by Warking capital whercas working capital= current assets - current liabilitics

MNet sales 62.470 87 47,173.96
Working capital 16,142 05 11,619.73
Ratio 3.87 4.06
% change from the previcus vear -5%

vii) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales

Net profit after tax 15,301.52 (6,731.40)
Net sales 62,470.87 47,178.96
Ratio 0.24 {lL14)

% change from the previous year 272%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Increase in net profit is primarily on account of':

{i} Change in the accounting treatment of goodwill (pursuant to NCLT approval - Refer Note 45(B)}, no amortisation of geodwill is carried out for
the year ended 31 March 2022,

{ii) Growth in the operations of the Company due to favorable market conditions resulting in higher revenue growth primarily in mutual fund
segment and other operational efficiencies and hence the Company has generated hipher net profit during the year ended 31 March 2022,

{1ii) Increase in equity share capital on infusion of equity agprepating to TNR 30,990.97 lakhs {equity share capita! and security premium thereon)
which is offeet by issuance of RPS at a premiwm {Refer Note 18 and 19).

{iv) Further, during the financial year 2020-2021, the Finance Act, 2021 has introduced an amendment to Section 32 of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
whereby goodwill of a business will not be considered as a depreciable asset and depreciation on goodwill will not be allowed as deductible
expenditure effective | April 2020. [n accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes, the Company has recognised one time tax
expense aggregaling to INR 11,192 85 lakhs as the cutcome on the difference between Goodwill as per the books of account and its updated tax base
of Nil resulting from the aforementioned amendment.

viii) Return on Capital employed (pre cash)=Earnings before interest and taxes(EBIT) divided by Capital Empleyedipre cash)

Profit before tax (A) 20,763.13 644088
Finance costs {B) 5,283 08 5,191,27
Other income (CY 89162 469 12
EBIT D=(A)+(B}-(C) 25,154.59 11,163,03
Capital employed .J = (E}-(F)}{-{(G)-(11}-(I) 79,824.58 68,577.62
Total Assets (E) 101,948 45 91,777.47
Current liabilities (F) 9.711.02 1218315
Curent invesiments (G} 9,308 31 0490 92
{Cash and cash equivalents (H} 3.092.24 1,471 44
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (1) 12.30 54,34
Ratio (D/J} 0.32 0.16
%o change from the previous year 94%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Increase in net profil is primarily on account of

(i) Change in the accounting treatment of poodwill (pursuant to NCLT approval - Refer Note 45(B)), no amortisation of goodwill is carried out for
the year ended 31 March 2022

(il Growth in the operations of the Company due to favorable market condilions resulting in higher revenue growth primarily in mutual fund
segment and other operational efliciencies and hence the Company has generated higher net profit during the year ended 31 March 2022

{ifi) Increase in equity share capital on infusion of equity agpregating to INR. 30,999.97 lakhs {equity share capital and security premium thereon)
which is offset by issuance of RPS at a nremium {Refer Note 18 and 193

The Company is inlo the business of rendering services and therefore Tnventory turnover ratio and Trade payable turnover ratio is not applicable and
accordingly not presented.
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Notes to R = inued)
(AN amonnes arc in INR lakhy, inless othenvise staved)

52 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contrit by the company lawards P Fund and Gratvity, The effective date from
which the chenges ar¢ applicable is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying the Fnancial impact are yet 1o be framed. In view of ihis, impact if any, of the change will be assessed and
sccounted in the period of notification of the relevant provisions

53 The Company has not given eny loen or guarantae or provided any security as covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 A Iy, the discl Qui % that exter
does not apply 1o the Company
54 M funds have been received by the Company from amy other personfs) or entity(ies), including foreign entities, with the und ding, whether ded in writing or otherwise, that the

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any menner whatsoever i.e. the Comparty hes not acted as an intermediary for advancing
ANpaning/ investing fznds fo/ in en ultimate beneficiary identified by the Funding Marty or has not provided any guarsnteef security or the like on behalf of the Funding Party.

However, the Company has infused Funds inte one of the subsidiary i e KFin Services Private Limited ' Subsidiary Company’} wilh the und ding, that he Subsidi
the investment in the Arfivalic Data Labs Private Limited and details of the [nvestments transaction arg &5 follows:

y Company will make

. Date of funds n d Date of investment in Amount of investments jn

Funding Prity received Amount of funds received Name of ultimate Beneficiary Ultimate Beneficiary Ulfimate Bene ficiary
KFin Technol 6-Apr-21 450 00 | Artivatic Data Labs Private Limited a-Apr-21 30.00
KFin Technologies 27-MNow-21 100.00 | Artivatic Data Labs Private Limited 30-Apr-21 350,00
Arfivatic Data Labs Private Limitad 21-Thac-21 40.02
| Tatal 550,00 440,02

55 On 22 March 2021, the Subsidiaty Company entered into an egresment to invest in Artivatic Date Lebs Privale Limited by subscribing to 3,511 number of equity shares of INR 1 each fully peid-
wp and 31,599 Compulsory Convertible Pref Shares having & face value of INR | for a wtz! consideration of [NR. 750 00 lakhs, collectively comprising of | 7% holding of Anivatic Data
Labs Privale Limiled

During the current year, the
b Iy, these i

y Comg made an i of INR 440,02 lakhs (owards purchase of equity and preference shares of Artivelic Dala Labs Private Limited) and
fisposed off as well for an amount of TNR 440.02 lakhs

were

56  Asal 3| March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any long rerm including derivative

for which there were any matenial foreseeable losses
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as
KFin Technologies Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries
(Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were
audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and in the context of the overriding effect of
the provision in the scheme of arrangement as approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (*"NCLT"),
regarding accounting of the amalgamation of Karvy Computershare Private Limited (KCPL) and the ‘RTA
Undertaking’ of Karvy Consultants Limited (KCL) into the Company, as explained in para A in the Emphasis
of Matter section below, give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated
profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the

year then ended.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Starements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements, We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the
other auditors referred 1o in paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate
10 provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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B S R & Associates LLP
KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologics Private Limited)
|ndcpendcnt Auditor’s Report on consolidated financial statements (continued)

Emphasis of matter

A. We draw attention to Note 44(B) of the consolidated financial statements, regarding the
amalgamation of Karvy Computershare Private Limited (KCPL) and the *RTA Undertaking® of
Karvy Consultants Limited (KCL) into the Holding Company accounted for in financial year 2018-
2019 with effect from 17 November 2018. In accordance with the scheme approved by National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) the amalgamation had been accounted for as per Accounting
Standard 14 — *Accounting for Amalgamations’. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of KCPL. and
of the RTA Undertaking of KCL had been recorded at their respective existing book values. The
difference between the book values of the net assets so recorded and the consideration (being the face
value of equity shares issued by the Holding Company to the shareholders of KCL and cost of
investment in equity shares of KCPL) amounting to INR 66,940.98 lakhs had been debited to
goodwill. This goodwill was being amortised over a period of ten years as per the terms of the scheme
and was also being tested for impairment every year. Such accounting treatment of this transaction
was different from that prescribed under Ind AS 103 — ‘Business Combinations’ which became
applicable to the Holding Company from the year ended 31 March 2019 and which requires assets,
liabilities and consideration to be measured at fair value and goodwill to be tested only for
impairment,

During the current year, the Holding Company has obtained approval of NCLT on 02 March 2022
for not amortising goodwill with effect from 01 April 2021.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

B. We draw attention to Note 37 of the consolidated financial statements, where the pre-amalgamated
Company was the Registrar and Transfer Agent (“RTA™) of a past client (*the Client”") until 5 April
2021. The Client had a demat account with one of the Depository Participants (“*DP") for depositing
its shares in escrow for the purposes of its initial public offering (“IPO™). The Holding Company
identified that 1,294,489 shares were transferred by the DP (in 2011 and 2020) from the said escrow
account of the Client to the DP’s own demat account and to a Third Party’s Demat account through
an off market transaction without any authorisation from the Client. The Board of Directors of the
Holding Company after considering legal advice transferred 1,294,489 shares to the escrow account
of the Client on a ‘good faith and no fault’ basis, after reducing the amount payable upon redemption,
in future, of the Redeemable Preference Shares (refer Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements) issued in October 2021, by INR 3,000 lakhs (Refer Note 19(ii)(b) to the consolidated
financial statements), pursuant to an indemnity clause contained in the agreement for the issuance of
such Redeemable Preference Shares. The dividend received on such shares by the Holding Company
in the financial year 2021-22 of INR 40.77 lakhs was also transferred back 1o the Client.

The Holding Company has recognised an amount of INR 700 lakhs as a provision in the consolidated
financial statements related to potential claims by the Client (including dividends on such shares for
the earlier periods). Pending the final settlement of terms 1o be agreed with the Client. the Holding
Company has measured the said provision at its best estimate. The Holding Company will initiate
proceedings against the concerned parties, including certain minority shareholders. for recovery of
the amount paid and payable by the Holding Company to the Client in connection with this matter
upon completion of final settlement with the Client.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on consolidated financial statements (continued)

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Directors’ report but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated state of afTairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends 1o liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement. whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Independent Auditor's Report on consolidated financial statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group 1o cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this
regard are further described in paragraph (a) of the section titled “Other Matters™ in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on consolidated financial statements (continued)

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries. whose financial statements reflect total

assets (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 2,477.00 lakhs as at 31 March 2022, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of INR 2,568.57 lakhs and net cash inflows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to INR 30.93 lakhs for the year ended on that date. as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing
standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company’s Management has converted
the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective countries 1o accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have
audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s Management. Our opinion in so
far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the reports
of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the Management of the Holding Company
and audited by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(5]

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act. we give in the “Annexure A™ a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, o the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other
auditors, as noted in the “Other Matters™ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements, read with the matter referred to
in para A of Emphasis of Matter section above, comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.
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KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on consolidated financial statements (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

e)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on | April 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries as noted in the

“Other Matters” paragraph:

a)

b)

c)

d)

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 36(B) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022.

There are no amounts which are required 10 be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

(i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in Note 54 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Yntenncdiary shall:

* directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

. (ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than

as disclosed in Note 54 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India shall:

= directly orindirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or
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KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on consolidated financial statements (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

= provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii)Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

¢) The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have neither
declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

C., With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
reports of the statutory auditor of such subsidiary company incorporated in India which were not
audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies 10 its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies is not
in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be
commented upon by us.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231 W/W-100024

G Prakash

Partner

Membership No: 099696
UDIN: 22099696AKIZRR6200

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 06 June 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

With reference 1o the Annexure A referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of KFin
Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) (“the Company™) on
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report that:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no qualifications
or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 reports
of the companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No: 116231 W/W-100024

Pariner
Membership No: 099696
ICAI UDIN No.: 22099696AKIZRR6200

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 06 June 2022




B S R & Associates LLP

Anncexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of KFin
Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private
Limited) (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence 1o the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafier referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of KFin
Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) for the year ended 31
March 2022 (continued)

Auditors® Responsibility (continued)

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed 1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231 W/W-100024

Partner
Membership No: 099696
UDIN: 22099696 AKIZRR6200

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 06 June 2022




KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technologies Private Limited®)
Consolidated Balance Shect
(AN coneints are in INR lakhs, weless otherwvise siated)

Particulars MNote oL Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1. ASSETS
{1} Non-current asseis
Property, plant and equipment 3 3.376.18 2,852.51
Capita!l work-in-progress k] 63.32 -
Right-of-use assets 6 337313 336879
Goodwill 4 54,343 09 52,455.44
Other intangible assets 3 5,761 08 428062
Intanpible assets under development 5 3,394.35 25115
Financial assets
(i} Other financial assets 7 614 84 52038
Non-gurrent tax assets (net) g 3,694 .54 339566
Other non-current assets p 12042 218.47
Tatal non-current assets T4,740,95 67,343.02
(2) Current assels
Financial assets
{1} [nvestments [ 9308 31 949092
{ii) Trade receivables 1 11.259.60 11,059.19
{iii) Cash and cash equivelcats 12 430326 2,203 60
{iv} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above i3 1334 5434
{¥) Loans 14 14.07 2688
(vi} Other financial assets 15 1,904 83 1,181.35
Oither corrent assels 13 894 59 31291
Tata! current asseis 27,900.00 24,918, [i
TOTAL ASSETS 102,640.95 92.261.21
1L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
Equity share capital 17 16,756 .39 15,084 36
Other equity 18 4767735 18,556.04
Tutul equity 64,434.24 34,640.40
LIABILITIES
(2) Non-current lizbilities
Financial liabilines
{i} Borrowings 19 12,251 42 2938897
{ii} Lease liahilities 6 2,505.70 2,626 44
Provisions 20 909.97 74927
Defemred tax liabilities {net) 34 12,377.62 12,495 81
Tetal non-current liabilities 28.044.71 45,260.49
{3} Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
{1} Bormowings 2| - 522442
(i} Lease liahilities 33 1,209.30 1,012 37
{iii) Trade payables
- Total dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 22 1823 50
- Total dues of creditors ether than micto enterpses and small s 2,534 71 249585
enterpnses
{iv) Orther financial ligbilities 23 3,106.64 1.975 84
Qther current liabilitics 2] 1,702 12 118573
Provisions 25 35006 30580
Current tax liabilities (net) 26 1,240 54 129.81
‘Total current liahilities 10,162.00 12.360.32
Total liablitics 38,206.71 57,620.81
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 102,640.55 92,261.21
Significant accounring policies | &2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
As per our Report of even date atiached
Jjor BS R & Associates LLP foe qid o bededf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountanis KFin Technologies Limited

1CAl Firm Registration No, 11623 1 W'W-10002 UFH400TG2017PLO I LT649 /M

G Sreckanth Nagell Narayin Mathur Alpana Uttam Kundu

Fartner O hratrmean Whole tae Prcenir & Chief Financial Officer Cerniprany Necretany
Chaef foxeetfive Officer

Membership No : 099696 DIN: 12284163 DIN: 0B659728 Membership No @ A089454  “vlembership No; FLOI9]

Place: Bengaluru Place: Wumbai Place: Mumbai Placc: Mumbai Flace: Mumbai

Date: 06 June 2022 Dare: 06 June 2022 Drate: 06 Jupe 2022 Date: 06 June 2022 Date: 06 June 2022



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technologies Private Limited")

Conanlidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(Al amounts are in INR fakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

" For the year ended For the year ended
e " 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
locome
I Revenue lrom operations 27 63,950 66 48,114 42
1. Other income 28 £05 66 505 34
I1E. Total Income (THIT) 64,55632 48,619.76
I¥. Expenses
Employes benefits expense 29 23,248 59 18,860 56
Finance costs 30 5288 11 5,195 41
Diepreciation and amartisation expense 31 370230 9,798 91
Other exponses 32 11,91700 8,014 30
IV. Total Expenses (IV) 44,156.29 41,869.18
¥, Profit before tax (¥=1L-1Y) 20,400,03 6,750,58
V1. Tax expense :- 34

Current tax a4 5,833 37 237 09
Dreferred tax (288.34) 1296435
5,545.03 13,201.44
¥IL Proit/ (Loss) lor the year (V-Y1) 14,855.04 {6,450.86)
VIIL Other com prehensive income
A, Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (107 &1) 4757
Income tax on above 34 2708 (1197
B. Lltems that will be subscquently reclassified to profit or loss
Excharyge differences on wenslation of foreign operations 579 (23.67)
Total other com prehensive (loss)! income for the year, net of tax {(VILI) {54 T4} 11.93
IX. Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (VII-VILL) 14,800.26 {6.438.93)
X_Earnings per equity share (Face value of TNR 10 each, felly paid-up) 33
- Basic 944 {4 28)
- Diluted 936 (4 28)
Simificant accounting policies 1&2

The accompanying nokes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our Report of even date attached

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chariered Accountants
1CAl Firm Registration No @ 116231 W/W-100024

ash
Fartner

Membershup No : 099696

Place: Bengalurm
Date: 06 hung 2022

for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
KFin Technologices Limited
CIN: U724001TG20N7PLCLITE49

. 7 .
Vishwanathan M Nai
DTN 02284163

Place Mumbai
Date: 06 June 2022

Srechkanth Nadefla

Date: 06 June 2022

varayan Mathor
Chief Financial Officer

hembership Mo - A0B9454

Place: Mumbai
Datc: 06 June 2022

Alpana Uttam Kundu
Crmprny Secretiry

Membership Mo : F10191

Place: Mumbal
Date: 06 June 2022
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KFin Techaologies Limited {formerly known as "KFin Technologies Private Limited'}
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Al amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Cash Nows from operating activities

Net profit befare tax

Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amaortisation expensc

Profil on sale of propecty, plant and equipment, net
Interest income on deposits

Interest income on mcome-tax refund

Dividend income from current investrments
Unwinding of discount on deposits

Liabilitics no lenger required written back

Income on derecognitien of Right-of-use assets and Lease liahility
Rent concession income

Foreign exchange loss (net)

Intcrest expensas

Allowance For eredit loss on trade receivables and other financial assets
Credit impaired trade receivables written-off
Deposits written-off

Share based payment

Fair value (gain}f loss on Mnancial assets measured
Loss an sale of investmenls

Operating profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:

Inerease in trade receivables

Increase in other current financial asscts
Crecrease in loens

Increase in other non- current financial assets
Ingrease in other assets

(Deerease)’ |ncrease in trade payables
Increase in other eurrent financial Habilines
Increase in other surtent liabilities

[ncrease in current provisions

Cash generated [rom cperations

Income laxes paid, net

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

. Cash flow [rom investing activities
Purchasz of property, plant and cquipment (including capital work-in-progress, capilal advances and creditors)

Purchase of intangible assets (including goodwill and imtangible asseis under development)
Proceeds from sale of praperty, plant and eguipment

Lass an sale of investment in other companies

Fixcd deposits redeemed with banks, nct

[nvestments in mutual funds {net)

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired

Investments in equity and preference shares of other companies

P ds from sale of in in equity and preference shares
Interest income

Dividend income from mutual funds

Nel cash used in investing uetivilies (E)

. Cash Mows from Mnancing activities

Payment of lease liabilities

Repayment of debentures during the period

Interest paid on debentures

Expenses towards issue of shares

Proceeds from issuc of equity shares

Securities premium on issu¢ of equity shares

Issue of redeemable preference shares repayable at premium
Met cash vsed in Minancing activities { C }

. Met incrense in cash and cash equivalents { A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents a1 the beginning of the year
Foreign exchange effect on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the C lidated balance sheet (Refer Note 12)

Cash on hand
Balance with banks:
{i} m qurrent accounts

20,400,03 6,750,580
3,702 39 9,798 91
(1412} {9 86)
{9 02) (19 99)
(81 97}
(430 69) (199 03)
(27 88) (2457
(57 82)
(11 42) (884)
(B 66) (118 03)
916 4709
5,288 31 519541
57081 8992
237 88 3844
20 45 =
915 47 121 60
(72 08) 7208
7343
30,566.24 21,651.78
(790 09) (2,613 69)
(719 77) (179 78}
128} 207
{71 0B} (0 04)
3129 (324 1Ty
{438 16} 42132
1,038 23 133238
457 46 152 56
2229 225 63
30,169.22 20,668,06
{4.567 73} 1286 71)
25,201.49 20.361.35
(2,061 13} {352 35)
4,761 98) (2,642 67)
1490 f4 B0
7148 z
18 66 586 61
{2,725 46) (5,228 47)
(2,409 32)
(513 45) (2,980 15)
440 02 s
902 16152
450 69 199 03
(11,464.59) (10,291.28)
(1,32787) (L1T77D
(35,200 00) (3,200 00)
{3,92227) (4,562 18)
(2,092 76) .
1,672 53
29327 6
200 -
(11,540.61) 18.939.95)
2,196.29 1,150.12
2,292 &0 1,166 15
1437 {23 67
450326 229160
| 36 206
4,501 90 2,290 54
4,503.26 2,292,600




KFin Technolegies Limited (formerly konown as '"KFin Technologies Private Limited")
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows {continued)
{4if amaunis are in INR taihs, nnless otherwise stated)

F. Reconciliation of liabilities arising lrom financing activities

Opening balance

WNon-convertible Debentures (secured) 34,588 97 37,531 17
Interest acerued and not due on non-convertible debenturcs 24 42 t2 60
Leasc hiabilities 3,638 81 3,780 31
Redeemable preference shares - -

Premium on redeemable prefercnee shares - =

Cash movement

Non-convertible Debentures (seeurad) {35,200 00) (3,200 00
Interest accrued and not due on non-convertible debemtures (3,922 35) {4,562 17)
Lease liabilities (1,327 87 (1,177.79
Redeemable preference shares 200 -

Premium on redeemable preference shares _

Mon-¢ash movement

Mon-convertible Debentures {secured} 61103 237 BO
Interest acorued and nat due or non-convertible debentures 389792 4,573 99
Lease liabilities 1,404 06 1,036 27
Redeemable preference shares - -
Premium on redesmable preference shares 12,249 42

Closing balance

Won-convertible Debentures (sceured) - 34,588 97
Interest accrued and not due on non-convertible debenhures 2442
Lease liabilities 3,715 00 163881
Redecmable preference share 200 -
Premium on redeemable preference shares 12,249 42

M™on-cash movement represents:
- with respeet to non-convertible debentures (secured), amortisation of processing fees paid as per effective interest rate. Refer Note 19 for details

ok

- wilh respect to inlerest accrued and not due on canvertible es, of p ing, fees paid as per effeclive interest e Refer Note 19 and Nete 21

- with respect to lease liahilitics, additions of new leases, rent concession received, deletions of existing leases and accrual of interest on lease lishiliies Refer Mote 6(C) for details

- with respect to redeemable preference shares, premium payahle on redemption Refer Note 19 for deiails

Nates:
1} The above Cash Flow Staternant has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in the Aecounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - "Cash Flow Statements”

Cash compriges cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks Cash equivalents are short-term balances {with an original marrity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition), highly liquid investments that arc readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant nisk of changes in value

As per our Report of even date attached

Jor BS R & Associates LLP Jfor and on behalf of Boawd of Lirectors of
Charfered Accountants KFin Technalogies Limited
1A Firm Registration Mo : 116231 W/W-100024 - CIN: L72400TG2017PLC 1 7649

).'H'ﬁ:Nhra;'an Mathur Alpana Uttam Kundu

Chairman Chigf Financial (fficer Comparny Secretary
Wembership No - 099696 DIN: 02284165 Membership No : A0O89454  Membership Mo : F10191
Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbat

Date; 08 June 2022 Date: 06 Jung 2022 Date: 06 June 2022 Daare: 8 June 2022 Date: 06 June 2022



KFin Technulogies Limited {formerly known an 'KF o Technolugies Private Limited?)
Conzolidaled Slatemant of Changes in Equity
{eld amounis are in INR JokRa, unders otberwise stased)

Equity shire capital ang} other equity

Diher
Other equity comprehenive
Equiry share MEOME Tolal gther
Fartleuturs capital Capital Debenture Share based | Furcign currency|  equity
Securities Stalutory . N N Retained General
premium Rererve Caplial reserve| redemption | redemplion carmings T paymeat Irunkalion
reaErye KTV mxnc relerve

Openiog Balance ma at L April 2020 15,84 6| ZZHI4AY a8l 1.0 148,78 75000 563.1Y) - 18810 387 1587187
Changes m equity share capuul due 10 pror penod amers - - o - - . 4 = -
Restated balunce al the beginnang of the curmenl reporting penod 15,8340 224243} J6.8U| 1.0 1,d496.78 50,00 56349 - Tad_ 1) J0.87) 1587337
Share bawd payments (Reler Note 463 1 ' L2l &) 121 6t
Lasza [or the yeur E 16,450 B . (6,450 BS|
Retreasurement of defined benefil obligation (et of wx) - 35 60| 3580
Formgn cumrency Lranalaliva reserve . = * - | L {21 673 (2367
Balance wn w1 31 March 2021 15,084.36 2282433 | 1.0 1AVE.7H) 70,0 (SASLTT) 289,701 7240 1955644
Drpening Balance a at | April 2021 1508136 2282423 36,80 LW TS| 5000 {5 B5LTT) 269,70 120 1955604
Lhanges m oyuity vhure capital due 1o prior penod emors . ’ - - - - - J F ] .
Resared balancs at the begnning of he currant reportimg penest 15,084.38 1252433 36,80 L T ATETH| 750.00] SE5LTT) 289,71 .20 1955604
Profil far the yaar E . e E 14,855 1) . 14,855 0L
Issue of Wiare capital dunng Lhe yoar 1AT2 53 29,327 69 - E - - - 18,327 68
Share 18802 expenses e (2,002 76} -] - < L - - B (2091 76|
Foxtinguishment of nghts under sharcholders” agrewument (Refer Noae 19} E - E - (L4623 35)| . - (14,829 35
T ransker to General Reseov om repay af Man L. ible et | -] g (750 OO 50 () -
Share based parymenis {Refer Nole 457 1 - - E - - 91547 91547
|xercise of siock options 607 - B | . 0 o7y

. | | 4 {80 53| B — . {8053y

. i . s . 5 -} | 25 79 25 T

16,756.3] ___ SOS9.33) 3] 1.00] 1,498,785} 1 500h65)| TIOD [20s0) 3299 amaTras)

Che wecompanying mabes ane an inbegral et ol e consoluloled Gnaneiol Aalements
A e v Repert o vven ol atluched
Jfor B S B & Aswoctates LLP for and on iefalf of Anard af Mieeioes of
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I m Regidmlion Mo | 6331 WAY-100024

——

-
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KFin Technolegies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technoiogies Private Limited)
Consolidated Financial Statement

1. Reporting entity

KFin Technologies Limited ("the Parent Company”, “the Hoelding Company™ or “the Company™)
(formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) was incorporated on 08 June 2017 at
Hyderabad, India. The Holding Company’s registered office is at Selenium, Tower B, Plot No- 31 &
32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Hyderabad, Rangareddi Telangana 500032,
The Holding Company together with its subsidiaries as set out below are collectively referred to as
“the Group”. The Group is engaged in providing service of Registrar to the Public Issue of Securities,
Registrar to the Securities Transfers, and back office operations to mutual fund houses and data
processing activities.

The Company was converted into a public limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 on 24
February 2022 and consequently, the name was changed to “KFin Technologies Limited”

2. Significant Accounting Policies

A. Basis of preparation and measurement of Consolidated Financial Statement

The Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Group as at 31 March 2022, the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consclidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the
Significant accounting policies and Other Financial Information (together referred to as ‘Consclidated
Financial Statement’) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act™) read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rule, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Consolidated Financial Statement are prepared by adopting uniform accounting pelicies between
the group companies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented
in the same manner as the Company's standalene financial statements,

The Consolidated Financial Statement have been prepared on a going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied cousistently to all the periods presented in the Consclidated Financial Statement.

The Consolidated Financial Statement has been compiled by the Group from:

s  Audited Consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31 March
2022 prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard as prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2013, as
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India;

s there were no changes in accounting policies during the year of these Consolidated financial
statements

e there were ne material amounts which have been adjusted for in arriving at profit of the year;
and

The Consolidated Financial Statement have been prepared under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis except for the following items:
s Defined benefit liability/(assets): fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obligation
* Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value or amortised value



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Consclidated Financial Statement

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
A. Basis of preparation and measurement of Consolidated Financial Statement (continued)

Subsidiaries considered in the Consolidated Financial Statement:

Country of As at
Entity incorporation SHINGEE
2022
KFin Technologies (Bahrain) W.L.L. (formerly known as Karvy
Fintech (Bahrain) W.L.L}) Bahrain 100%
KFin Technelogies (Malaysia) SDN.BHD (formerly known as
Karvy Fintech (Malaysia) SON.BHD) Malaysia 100%
KFin Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 6 January 2020) India 100%
Hexagram Fintech Private Limited (w.e.f 7 February 2022) India 100%
Hexagram Fintech SDN BHD (Formerly known as Hexagoan
Global IT Solution SDN BHD) (w.e.f 7 February 2022) — fully
owned subsidiary of Hexagram Fintech Private Limited Malaysia 100%

This Conselidated Financial Statement was authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6 June
2022.

Functional and presentation currency

These Consolidated Financial Statement are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’), which is the Holding
Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
stated.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received from sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either —

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Group.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated Financial
Statement are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as fellows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole-

« Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are cbservable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

¢ Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The Group’s CFQO determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable
market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. Any change in the fair value of each asset and liability is also
compared with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For changes that have occurred between levels in the hierarchy during the year the Group re-assesses
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each year.



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Consolidated Financial Statement

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

A. Basis of preparation and measurement of Consolidated Financial Statement {(continued)

Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these Consolidated Financial Statement, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statement are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial estimates in the year in which changes are made
and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement.

a} Judgements

Information about the judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statement have been given below:

*  Note § - Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the
assets the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial
asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

* Note D - Lease Classification and identification of lease component

b} Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment in the Consolidated Financial Statement for every year ended is included below:

*«  Employee benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plans and the present value of the obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may
differ from actual developments in the future. These includes the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates However, any changes in these assumptions may
have impact on the reported amount of obligation and expenses. (Refer note L).

*  Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in fax
laws, and the amount and timing of fature taxable income. The Group establishes provisions,
based on reascnable estimates, for possible consequences of asscssment by the tax authorities of
the jurisdiction in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experience of previous tax assessment and differing interpretations of tax laws by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. The Group assesses the probability for litigation
and subsequent cash outflow with respect to taxes.

Deferred income tax asscts are recognised for all unuscd tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgment is required to determine thc amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. (Refer note T)
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A. Basis of preparation and measurement of Consolidated Financial Statement (continued)

Use of judgments and estimates (continucd)

*  Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipmeni and intangible assets
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after estimating the asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual valug at the end of its life. The depreciation method, useful
lives and residual values of Group’s assets are estimated by Management at the time the asset is
acquired and reviewed during each financial year. (Refer note E, F, G and H)

o Impairment of financiol assets
Analysis of historical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and
current economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional
allowances may be required. (Refer note &)

*  Provisions and contingencies
Assessments undertaken in recognizing the provisions and contingencies have been made as per
the best judgment of the management based on the current available information. (Refer note R).

»  Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgments is required in
establighing fair values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments. (Refer note S).

»  fmpairment of non-financial assets: Key assumptions for discount rate, growth rate, eic.
The determination of recoverable amounts of the CGUs assessed i the annual impairment test
requires the Group to estimate their fair value net of disposal costs as well as their valuc-in-use.
The assessment of value-in-use requires assumptions to be made with respect to the operating
cash flows of the CGUs as well as the discount rates. (Refer note J)

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entify when the
group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consalidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
- Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)
- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
aver an investee, including:

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

- The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights;

- The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the

holdings of the other voting rights holders.


Highlight


KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Consolidated Financial Statement

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

B) Principles of Consolidation

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of an entity begins
when the Group obtains control over that entity and ceases when the Group loses control over the
entity. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of an entity acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in these Consolidated Financia! Statement from the date the Group gains control until the
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

The group combines the financial Statement of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset.

Non-controlling interests, if any in the results are shown separately in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Balance Sheet, respectively.

The Consclidated Financial Statement are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as that
adopted by the Parent Company for iis separate financial statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statement are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting
policies other than those adopted in the Consolidated Financial Statement for like transactions and
events in similar circumnstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial
information in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statement to ensure conformity with the Group’s
accounting policies.

For the purpose of Financial Statement, the financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of
consclidatien are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Parent Company, i.e. 31 March.

C) Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

= Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets are classified as non-current assets.
A liability is treated as current when;

* Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ ltis due te be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no uncenditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period,

All other liabilities are classified as non-current
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Operating Cyele

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of the assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating
cycle.

D) Leases
i Asalessee

As a lessee, the Group recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases — i.e. these
leases are on-balance sheet. The Group decided to apply recognition exemptions to short-term leases.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116. At inception or
on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially reasured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of preperty, plant and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at lease commencement date.
Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recarded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
uge asset has been reduced to zero,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

a. Fixed payments including in-substance fixed payments

b. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date

¢. Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of
machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in the balance sheet and lease liabilities in
‘Financial liabilities’ in the Balance sheet.
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D) Leases (continued)

if. As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group mekes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment,
the Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic
life of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-
lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use
asget arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease.

The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term as part of ‘other income”’.

E) Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acguisition or construction less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item te its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as a separate item ({major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain
ot loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit
and loss.

Capital work-in-progress

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work-in-
progress. Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date are disclosed as other non-current assets.

Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future econcmic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.
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F) Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Depreciation

The Group provides depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment, other than vehicles and
leasehold improvements based on the useful life as determined by the Management. The depreciation
is provided under straight-line method.

Leaschold improvements are amortised over the primary period of the lease or the estimated useful
life of the assets, whichever is lower.

Depreciation on additions {disposals) is provided en a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management
believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

Asset category Estimated useful life (years)
Plant and machinery 5-15
Electrical installations 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 3
Office equipment 5
Vehicles 5

G) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any.
Intangible assets are amortised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated

useful lives from the date they are available for use based on the expected pattern of economic
benefits of the asset. [ntangible asset is amortised on straight line basis

Asset category Estimated useful life (Years)
Computer software 3-10
Customer relationships 5-10
Trademarks 5
Non-compete agreement 5

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Amortisation methed, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted if appropriate.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
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H) Intangible asseis under development

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed as
incurred unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic
benefits are probable, the Company has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell the
software and the costs can be measured reliably. The costs which can be capitalized include the cost
of software purchased, direct salary and overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the
asset for its intended use.

I} Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisitiens of businesses is reported separatcly from intangible assets.

i} As stated in the approved scheme of amalgamation and arrangement approved by Natienal
Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad goodwill is being amortised over period of 10 years (Refer
Note 43 and Note 44(B)), Further this Goodwill is also tested for impairment at each reporting
period and is carried at cost less accumulated ameortization and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

The Group has obtained approval from its Board, sharcholders, creditors, National Company Law
Tribunal (“NCLT”} or any other appropriate authority to modify the accounting treatment for
Goodwill mentioned (i) above with effect from 1 April 2021. As per the scheme filed and NCLT
order received the treatment of Goodwill with effect from 1 April 2021 shall be done as per
applicable accounting standards and / or other applicable accounting policy. Accordingly, as per
Ind AS 36 — Impairment of Assets, the Company 1s required to periodically test the impairment on
Goodwill.

ii) Goodwill generated through Business Transfer Agreement (Refer Note 43 and Note 44(A)) is
tested for annual impairment at each reporting period and is camried at cost less accumulated
impairment, if any.

J) Impairment of non—financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the camrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication on impairment. 1f any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smaliest group of assets that generates the
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
Cash generating unit (CGUS).

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value Tess costs to sell, Valoe in use is based on the estimated fitture cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

Where it is not possibte to estimate the recoverable amount of individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recogmsed if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount,

Impairment loss in respect of assets is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment less had been recognised in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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K) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the Group at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date when the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date of initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Group Companies

On conselidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Indian rupees at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasens, the Group uses an
average rate to translate income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation
are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the compenent of OCI relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in Consclidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

L) Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefils

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Defined contribution plans

The Holding Group makes specified monthly contributicn towards employee provident fund to
Government administered provident fund scheme, which is a defined contribution scheme. KFin
Technologies (Bahrain) W.L.L. (formerly known as Karvy Fintech (Bahrain) W.L.L) contributes to
the pension scheme for Bahraini naticnals administered by the General Organisation for Social
Insurance in the Kingdom of Bahrain. The Group's contribution is recognised as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employruent benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
coniributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
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L) Employee benefits (continued)
Gratuity

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. The contributions made to the fund are recognised as plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation as reduced by fair value of plan assets is recognised in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet. Re-measurements are recognised in the other comprehensive mecome, net of tax in the year in
which they arise.

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. Net interest expense (income) on the net
defined liability (assets) is computed by apptying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined
liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset} at the start of the financial year after taking into
account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

The expatriate employees of the Subsidiary are paid leaving indemnity in accordance with the
provisions of the Bahrain Labour Law for private sector 2012, based on length of service and final
salary, Provision for this, which is unfunded, and which represent a defined benefit plan - Employee
contribution has been made by calculating the notional liability had all employees left at the reporting
date. The provision is classified as a non-current liability in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. The cost of providing benefits is
determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they occur,
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M) Revenue

Revenue (other than for these items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive mode! of accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind
AS8s. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or
services. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant,

Revenue from registry and related services and communication services is recognised on the basis of
services rendered to customers, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contracts entered
into by the Group with each customer provided, the revenue is reliably determinable, and no
significant uncertainty exist regarding the collection.

Income from pension fund solutions represents services which are recognised as per the terms of the
contract with customers, when such related services are rendered.

Revenue from data processing services is recognised based on the services rendered, in accordance
with the terms of the contract, either on a time cost basis or on the basis of number of enumerations
processed.

Recoverable expenses represent expenses incurred to related to service performed and are recognised
on the basis of billing to customers, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreements
entered into by the Group with each customer.,

Work-in-progress (unbilled revenue) represents revenue from services rendered, recognised based on
services performed in advance of billing based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the
agreements with the customers.

N} Other income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset's net carryving amount on initial recognition. [nterest income is included in
other income in the Consolidated Statement of Profits and Losses.

Dividends are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss only when the right to receive
payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits asscciated with the dividend will
flow to the Group, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

) Borrowings and related cost

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrewing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period,
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P) Contract balances

Contract assets: The Group classifies its right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a
receivable or as unbilled revenue. A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon
passage of time. Revenues in excess of billings is recorded as unbilled revenue and is classified as a
financial asset where the right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time,

Contract liabilities: A contract liability (which we referred to as Unearned Revenue) is the obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
received. '

Q) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services rendered in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
uncenditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Group holds trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost, less provision for expected credit loss.

R) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable (“more likely than not™) that it is required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision
is the best estimate of the censideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the fime value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or nen-oceurrence of one or more future events net whelly
within the contrel of the entity. Where it is not probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Consoclidated Financial Statement but disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Group
from the coniract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.
The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the expected net cost of centinuing with the contract. Before a provision is established,
the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
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S) Financial insiruments

Business model assessment

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts
such as foreign currency forward contracts, embedded derivatives in the host contract, etc,

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

The Group initially recognises trade receivables and debt securities issued on the date on which they
are originated. The Group recognises the other financial assets on the trade date, which is the date on
which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset except assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Classifications and subsequent measurement

Classifications

The Group classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value depending on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

in assessing whether the coentractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition.

Debt instrument at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at ameortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at Fair value though profit and loss (FVTPL):

a) it is held within a business model whose abjective is to hoid assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ave solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (*EIR’) method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR ameortisation is
included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss.



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Consolidated Financial Statement
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S) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Debt instrument at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOC] only if both of the following conditions are met:

a) it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income is recognised basis
EIR method and the losses arising from ECL impairment are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as
FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income are recognized in Consolidated Staternent of Profit or Loss

Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or {(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

s significant financial difficulty of the borrower ar issuer;

s g breach of contract;

s it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
s the disappearance of an active market for security because of financial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
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8) Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected
life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period ever which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and or effort.
This includes both gquantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off {either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.
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8) Financial instruments {continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classifted, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Classification and subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account anv discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Censolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For labilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains and losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains and losses are not subsequently transferred to
profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire. Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. [n this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and a new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously (“the offset criteria’).
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T) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
of goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than in a business corubination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carryving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow al! or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and less, except when they relate fo
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
cutrent and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where the group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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U) Segment reporting

Operating segments are teported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker,

The Board of directors of the Group have been identified as being the Chief operating decision maker
by the management of the Group. Refer Note 35 for segment information presented.

V) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
cash with original maturitics of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of
cash and deposits with banks and interest accrued on deposits.

W) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or pavments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities of the Group are segregated.

X) Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit after tax for the
year and the weighted average munber of shares ouistanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be
converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have been issucd at a later date.

Y) Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of
Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the
asscts transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. The cost of acquisition also
includes the fair value of any contingent consideration, Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values on
the date of acquisition. Transaction cost that the Group incurs in connection with business
combination such as finders fees, legal fees, due diligence and other professional fees are charged to

equity.

Goodwill is measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used
to measurc the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the
gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear
evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain dircctly in equity as capital reserve,
withoul routing the same through OCL

[n case of business combinations taking under scheme of amalgamation approved by Courts in India,
the accounting treatment as specified in the court order is followed for recording such business
combination.
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Y) Business combinations (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to
those units,

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. [f the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recogunised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Z) Employee Stock option plan {(ESOP)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in ‘Share based payment® reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effect of outstanding
options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted eamings per share.

AA) Non-cnrrent Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and sale is considered highly probable.
A sale is considered as highly probable when decision has been made to sell, assets are available for
immediate sale in its present condition, assets are being actively marketed and sale has been agreed or
is expected to be concluded within 12 months ef the date of classification. Non-current assets held for
sale are neither depreciated nor amortised. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost of sale and are presented
separately in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

AB) Recent accounting developments and accounting pronouncements

MCA vide notifications dated 24 March, 2021 has amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of certain disclosures required to be made by the Group in its financial statements. These
amendments are applicable te the Group from the financial vear starting 01 April 2021. The Group
has incorporated the changes as per the said amendment in the financial statements and has also
changed the comparative numbers wherever applicable.

Previpus year figures have been re-grouped/re-classified to conform to below requirements of the
amended Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013, effective from 01 April 2021 :

{(a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings and current maturities of long term debt is re-
grouped to Current borrowings (Note 21) which were earlier grouped under Other financial
liabilities (Note 23)

{b) Rental deposits is re-grouped under Other financial assets (Note 13) which were earlier
grouped under Leans (Note 14)
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AB) Recent accounting developments and accounting pronouncements {continued)

MCA issued notifications dated 24 March 2021 to amend Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 to
enhance the disclosures required to be made by the Company in its financial statement. These
amendments are applicable to the Company for the financial year starting 1 April 2021 and have been
considered for preparation and presentation of these Standalone Financial Information.

On 23 March 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) amended the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from | April 2022 as below:

Ind AS 103 —- Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual
Framewaork) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These
changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for
its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.
The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property,
plant and equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts —Costs of Fulfilling 2 Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the *costs that relate
directly to the centract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company
does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements,

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of [nd AS
109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

lnd AS 106 — Annuoal Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor int order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. The Company does not
expect the amendment io have any significant impact in its financial statements.



KFin Technologies Limited [formerly known as "KFin Technologics Private Limited")

Notes to lidated financia! stat ts (continued)
(AN amounis are in INR fakhs, unfexs otherwise sfated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

Computers and R Capital
Parficulars i eareao n!hel:' related gl S C!m“ Plsnt and Vehicles Tatal worﬁ-in-
improvemenis Datures equipmeni Machinery
asels progress
(ross carrying amount
Ralance as at 1 April 2020 1,622 61 271522 21521 388 79 Ti03 11371 5,128 57 -
Additions 156 94 43210 - 40 18 - 5489 634 03 -
Disposals - - {123} (3 66} (181} (9047) {96 97) -
Lxchange differences on translation of foreign operations 003 012 - (019} - - {0 04) -
Ralance as at 31 March 2021 1,779.58 3,147.44 213.98 425.10 T1.42 78.13 5,715.65 -
Additions in 1,806 35 189 6913 - T8 d6 1,960 14 63 32
Disposals - {54 82) - {4 28) - (3243 {72 34) -
Exchange diff on translation of foreign aperations 123 018 3 82 - - 523 -
Ralance as at 31 March 2022 1,794.12 4,888.97 116,05 493,77 T1.42 15435 7,608.68 6331
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as ar | Apnl 2020 457 83 92336 48 69 17393 1335 3698 1,681 12
Depreciation for the year 37035 71636 3417 8272 T34 1269 1,224 03
Disposals - (0 53) (300 {1291 (3721) (42 03) -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 042 - . - 002
Balance as at 31 Murch 2021 858.20 1,639.92 3233 153.65 16.60 12.44 2,563.14 -
Depreciation for the year 400 65 902 Bd 34 81 71 &8 645 1982 1,436 25 -
Disposals - (63 97) - (435) - {324) (7L 36) -
Lixehange differences on ranslation of foreign operations 122 - 016 329 - - 4 &7 -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,.260,07 2.478.79 11734 324.27 23.05 29.02 4.232.50 -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 52405 2,410,183 98,75 169,50 4837 12533 3376.18 G332
Balancc as a1 31 March 2021 921 38 1,507 52 131 65 171 45 5482 65 69 2,852 51 -
Ageing of Capital work inl progress:
N Lessthan1 | 1to2 years| 2i03 |Morethan3| Total
Particulars
vear vears veard
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Projects in progress 63132 63.32

Progeets temporarily suspended
Ajg at 31 March 2021

Projects in progress

Proscets ternporarily suspended

Note:

{a) Refer Note 19 for the delails of property, plant and cquipment that has been pledged as security against borrowings of the Group

{b) The Group has not carmied out any revaluation of its Property, plant and equipment
{c) The Group does not hold any immovable property in its own name
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4 Goodwill
. On Business Others* Total

Earticulars Combination
Gross carrving amount
Balance as at 1 Apnl 2020 67,076 99 1,25847 68,335 46
Additions - - -
Deletions . = -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 67,076.99 1,258.47 68,335.46
Addttions 1,887 65 - 1,887 65
Deletions - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 68,964.64 1,258.47 70,223,11
Aceumulated amortisation
Balance as at | April 2020 9,187 87 - 9,187 &7
Amortisation for the year 6,692 15 - 6,602 15
Balance as at 31 March 221 15,880.02 - 15,880.02
Amartisation for the year (Refer Note (iii) below) - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 15,880,02 - 15,850.02
Carrying amounts {net)
Ralance as at 31 March 2022 53,084.62 1,258.47 54,343.09
Balance as at 3] Mareh 2021 51,19697 1,258 47 5245544

th

{13 The Group has not camed out any revaluation of its Goodwill

(i1} Refer Note 43 for the impairment assessment carried out by the Management
{iii) Refer Note 44{B) for details of NCLT arder received by the Group in respect of amortisation of poodwill
*Represents carrying value of goodwill appearing in the consolidated financial statements of the transferor company as on the date of amalgamation described in Nole

44(B)

Other intangible assets

Intzngible

Farticulars Comp ¢ ,. . Trademarks Noa-campete Total assefs under
Software relationships agreement
development*
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at | Apnl 2020 1,238 07 2,189 78 - 3427 85 530
Additions 2,162 74 - - - 216274 479 93
Disposals™ - - = 009 (237 08)
Exchange differences on translation of foreien operations 002 - - 0.02 -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,400.83 2,189.78 - - 5,590.61 25115
Arquired through business combination (Refer Mote 44(47) 126 41 13505 434 90 0324 1.093.60 ¥
Additons 1,510 19 - - - 1,51019 4,065 50
Disposals”™ - - - - - {922 30}
Exchange differences oo translation of forcigm operations 00l - - - 0,01 -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 503744 2,328.83 434.90 393.24 8,194.41 3,394.35
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at | April 2020 364 19 170 20 - - 33439 -
Amortisation for the year 33811 437 48 - - TI5 59 -
Exchange differences on translation of foreigm operations 001 - - - 0.0l .
Balance as at 31 March 2021 702,31 G07.68 - - 1,309.99 -
Amortisatton for the year 660 28 439 49 1216 1142 1,123.35 -
Exch differences on transtation of foreign aperations {001) - - 4 {001 -
Balancc as at 31 March 2022 1,362.58 LiM7.17 12,16 11.42 2.433.33 -
Carrying amounts {net)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,674.86 1,281.66 422,74 351.82 5,761.08 3,394.35
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,698 52 1,582.10 - = 4.280.62 231.15
~ Disposals with respect to [ntangible assets under development represents transfer to Computer Software by way of capitalisations
*Intanpible assets under developoment represents internally developed softwares for business purposes
Ageing af 1 ible assets under development is as under:
Particular Less than d I to 2 years 2 to J years Mars than3 Total
year years

Balance as at 31 March 2122

Projects in progress 3,163 69 230 66 - - 339435

Projects temporarily suspended - . * -
Balaoce as at 3t Marcch 2021

Projects in progress 25115 - - - 25115

Frojects temporarly suspended

Nntes:

{a) The Group has not carried out any revaluation of its Other intangable assets
(b There are no projects where completion ts overdue or has cxeeeded its cost compared ta its original plan
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6

A Following are the chanpy

-

Right-of-use axsets

k

in the carmying values of right of use assets:

Category of Right-of-

Particulars Use Aysets
Premises
Balance as at 01 April 2020 4,497.56
Additions 990 58
Prepayments 2351
Deletions (280 34}
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 4 97)
Balanee as at 31 March 2021 5,225.84
Additions 1,347 56
Prepayments =
Deletions (243 75}
Exchange difference on translation of forcign operations 142
Balance as at 31 March 2022 633106
Arcumulated deprecintion
Balance as at | April 2020 £44,50
Deprecietion for the year 1,107 14
Exchange difference on translation of fareign operation (D3
Deletons 9377
Balance as at 31 Macch 2021 1,857,058
Depresiation for the year 1,142 719
Exchange difference on translation of fortiga operation (0 68)
Dieletions (41 23]
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,957,93
Carrying amounts
Balance a5 ot 31 March 2022 337313
Balance as at 31 barch 2021 3,368 79

The aggregate depreciation expense for the year on righl-of-use assels is included under depreciation and amortization expense in Lhe consolidated

statemnent of profit and loss (Refer Note 313

The Following is the rental exp ted For shorl-term leases, variahle lease pay and Jow value leases

A For the year ended  For Lhe year ¢nded
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Shaort- term |ease expense 301 03 598 09
Low value lease expense S
Variable lease expense - -
Total G103 598.09
Following are the ot in the |ease liabilities:

. As at Asal
Particulars 3t March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 3,638,581 3,780.31
Additions 1,347 56 990 58
Exchange difT on of forcign operations - {358)
Financg cost acerued during the year 308 52 363 62
Deletions. (243 78) (1935 92)
Peyment of lease |iabilities {1,32737) (L1777
Rent concession (B 66} {11B 03)
Cloging balaonce 3,715.00 3,635.81
Current lease ligbililias 1,209 30 1,01237
Non-current lease liabilites 2,505 70 2,626 44
The foltowing are the 3 i in consolidated stat of prafit and loss

- For the year ¢nded  For the year ended
Eugieniacs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciation on Right-of-use assels 1,14279 1,107 14
Inierest expenses 308 52 363 62

145171 1,470.76
The Following is the cash outflow on |eases:

. For the year ended  For the year coded
Parpeulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Payment of lease liabilities 1.018 95 §l415
Interest on lease liabilites 308 92 383 62
Total cash outllow on leases 1.327.87 1,177.77
“The table below p details o ding the el maturities of |ease lighilities on an undiscountad basis:

Particulars Agat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Lesgs than | year 145549 131558
1105 years 221996 2.556 38
Over S yours 84777 548 59

The Group does nol face a significant liquidity fisk with regard to its lease liailities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to

lease liabilities as and when they fall due
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Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

Other mon-current financia! assets

Rental deposits

Elcelricity deposits

Telephone deposits

Benk deposits (due to mature after 12 months fror balance sheet date)*

* includes iived deposits amounting to ME 32 79 lakhs {31 March 2021: INR 9,52 lakhs) which is not freely remissible because of contracal resmchons

528.87 457,15
5241 52 66
0.66 105
3290 232
614.84 520.38

There are no debts due to Group by Directors cither individually, severally or jointly with another person, by firms or private companies in which any director is & partner or director or member.

The Group's exposure o credit risks are disclosed in Nolz 41

Non-current tax assets {net)
Advance mecome-tax including tax deducted at source®

#Net of provision for tax [INR 4,643.00 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 4,643 00 lakhs)

Other non-current assets
Mnsecured considered good)

Capital advances
Prepayments

Current Investments

Iny ts in equity instr ts of ather contpanics - quoted - at FYTPL
il {31 March 2021 1,294,489} equity shares of Petronet LNG Limited ol INE 10 each, fully paid-up

In ts in mutual funds - quoted - at FVTPL

65,538 (31 March 2021: 63,611 units of DSP Blackrock Liguidity Fund - Regular Plan -Daily Dividced

136,979 (31 March 2021: 53,014} units of L&T Liguid Fund - Regular Liquid Daily Dividend Feinvestment Plan
152,643 (31 March 2021; 114,164 } units of TATA Liquid Fund Regular Plan - Daily Dividend

115,048 (31 March 2021: 92,548) units of Kotak Liquid Regular Plan Daily Dividend

122,848 {31 March 2021: 93,156 ) units of HDFC Liquid Fund-Regular Plan Daily Dividend Reinvestment
1,472,968 (3t March 2021; 1,027,309 ) units of IC1C1 Prudential Liquid Fund - Daily Dividend

148,753 (31 March 2021: £11,271) units of SBI Liquid Fund - Regular Daily Dividend

Aggregate amount of quated current investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

3,694 54 3.395.66
3,694.54 3.395.66
4.55 399
11587 21448
120.42 218,47

- 2.908.07
- 2,908.07

655,99 636,71
1,389 44 53638
1,528.75 1,143 38
1,406.82 L1310
1,252 83 95002
1,474 56 1,028.83
1,599.92 1,155 83
930831 6,582.85
9,308.31 9,490,92
9308 31 9,490.92

Water The Parent Company holds cortain shares of its customer as a trustee. The Parent Company is n process of ransferring those shares to the relevant account based on the instnactions to be

received from respective customers
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Particulary st Asht
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables
(a) Trade receivables considered good - secured - -
(b} Trade receivables idered good - d 13,273 60 12,502.38
{c) Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit oisk - -
(d) Tradec receivables - credit impaired - -
Tatal 13,273.60 12,502.38
Allowance for credit loss {2,014.00) {1,443 19}
Tutal trade receivables 11,259.60 11,059,1%
Maovements in the allowance fur eredit loss are as follows:
Opening balancg 1.443.19 1,291 32
Balance transferred to trade receivables from retention money - 11808
Provision for loss allowance 57081 33 79
Clesing balance 2,014.00 1,443,589

Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenoc from operations i ¢ fee revenue and recoverable expenses revenue No interest is charged on the culstanding balance, regardless of the
age of the balance. The Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) mode] for measurement and recognition of impairment loss towards expected risk of delays and default in collcction. The Group
has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance based on a provision mamix Management makes specific provision [n cases where there are known specific ngks of
custemer defanlt in making the repayments. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information The expected credit loss allowance
15 based on the egeing of the days the reccivables are doc and the rates as per the provision matrix.

Ageing of gross trade receivable as at 31 March 2022 is a8 under:

-

fing for Tollowing period from the duc date of receipt

Particulars o - Ll:[su::_l;: 6] & mi::;l:s -1 Ltn2years | 23 years More than 3 years Total
(i1 Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good TRGAT 837780 1,744 22 BG67 75 259 26 21772 1.017 63 13,273 60
(i1} Undisputed Trade Reccivables—which have significant - - - - -
increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - -
[iv} Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - -
(iv} Disputed Trade Reccivables—which have significant - - - - - -
ncrease in gredit risk
(1) Disputed Trade Receivahles ~ credit impaired - - -
Ageing of pross trade receivable as at 31 March 2021 is as under:
Outstanding for following period from the due date of receipt

ffarticplar Unbilled Not due L?:o:'l:: e m::;llrs ! tto2years | 2-3yeurs | Morethan 3 years* —
(1) Undisputed Trade teceivables - considered good 799.00 493448 [ 333736 84479 61548 207127 - 12,502 38
(i1) Undisputed Trade Recenvables—which inve significant - - - - - - -
increase in eredit nsk
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables— credil impuired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - consudered good - - - -
(iv) Disputéd Trade Receivables—which lave significant - - - - = -
increase n eredit nsk
(v} Disputed Trade Recewvables — eredit impaired - . - -
The Group’s cxpasure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to rade receivables are disclosed in Note 41
*Refer Note 44{B) in respect of amalgamarion and accordingly trade receivable aging has been considered from the date of amalgamation
Cash and cash equivalenis
Cash on hand 136 206
Balance with banks;
(i) in eurrent accounts 4,249 57 2,290 54
(i) in Deposit 25233 =

4,503.26 1,292.60

The Group's exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 41
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. As at Asg at
ik 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance in deposit accoums (having ariginal maturity of more than 3 months but less then 12 months from reporting dare)* 15.34 54,34

15.34 54.34
* Includes fixed deposits amounting to INE 12,30 lakhs (31 March 2021: INE 46,13 lakhs) which is not freely remissible because of contractual restrictions.
The Group's exposire to credit risks are disclosed in Note 4 |
Loans
Loans to employees 1407 26.88
14.07 26.98
Break up of security details
{(a) Loans considered good - Secured = =
(b) Loans considered good - Unsecurcd 14.07 26.88
{c) Loans which havc significant increase in Credit Risk - -
(d) Loans - credit impaired = -
Total current loans 14.07 2648

The Group’s exposure Lo eredit risk are disclosed in Note 41

There are no debis due to Group by Directors cither individually, severally or jointly with another person, by firms or private companies in which eny director is a partner or dircotor or member

Other current financial psvets

Uinsecured, Considered good

Rental Depasits 66.84 932
Stamp duty receivables 94509 085,18
Other receivables 17.24 145.51
TP related expenses (Refer Note 49) 847.20 -
Others 2736 41.34
1,904.33 1,181.35
fInsecured, ("onsidered doubitful
Other receivables 56.13 5613
56.13 56,13
Less: Allowance for credit [oss
Qther receivahles {56,13) (56.13)
[56.13) (56.13)
1.504.83 1,181,35
Movements in ailowance Tor eredit loss of other current financial assets are as follows:
Qpening balance 56.13 -
Allowance for credit loss created during the year - 56.13
Closing balance 56.13 56,13
The Group’s exposure lo credit risks are disclosed in Note 41
Other current assets
Advances to vendors for supply of poods/ services 23913 23696
Balance with government authorities 2242 820
Prepayments 624 5% 51630
Advances tg employecs 843 5145
894,59 R12.91
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Equiry share cap

As at
31 March 2021

As at

Particulars 31 March 2022

Authorised share capital

{a) 175,980,000 (31 Margh 2021: 176,000,000) equity shares of INRi0 gach 17.598.00 17.600.00

(B 1,000 (31 March 202 1: Nily non-convertible Redeemablc Preference Shares (RFS) of INR 200 each 300 -
17.600.00 17,600.00

1s4ued, subseribed and paid-up

fa) 167,568,883 (31 March 2021: 150,843,583 equity sharus of INR.10 each, fully paid-up 16,756 B9 15,084.36

{by 1,000 (31 March 2021: Nil) RPS of TNR 200 each (Rufer Note L9()) - -
16,756.89 1508436

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Parent Company has a single class of cquity shares having a par value of TNR. 10 per cquity share. Accordingly, all equity shares mnk cqually with regard o dividends and in the Parent
Company's residual assets, The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. In the event of Hquidation of the Parent Company, the bolders of equity shares will be
antitled o Teceive the residual assets of the Parent Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounss in proportion to the number of equity shares held. Each holders of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share

Up to previeus yeur, one of the sharchalders of the Parent Company had been grented a right o additionst shares which were exercisable upon meeting various pedurmunce und other parameters
ag defined in the Shareholders Apgrecment {SHA) Durng the year ended 31 Mareh 2022, the Parent Company has eatered into an amendment agreement Lo the origine] SHA dated 3 August 2017
wherein cuch of the Marties has agreed thar, notwithstandiog anything comtained in the Existing SHA, on and from the Effecuive Date, the Existing SHA (including any rights. Juties and
obligations of the Pactics under er incidental to the Existing SHA) shall stand unconditionally and imevocably terminated and shall cease w have any force or effect without any further action
being requited from any Pady, Alse Refir Nole b below and Note 19,

Employee Stock options:
The Parcnt Company has granted certain stack options to theit cmployces, For details of shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Options Plan, Refer Note 46

g at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Reconciliation of aumber of equity shares of INR. 10 each, fully paid up

Particolars

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

INor of shares Amount No of shares Anmount
Dpening balance 150,843,583 15,084.36 150,843,583 15,h84.36
Shares issued during the year 16,725,100 1,.672.51 - -
Shares issued during the year under Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP') (Ruelfur Note 46) 200 0.02 - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 167,568,883 16,756.8% 150,343,583 15,084.36
Details of shares held by its holding pany ar its Iding company ineluding shares held by subsidiacics or associates of the bolding eompany or the ultimate bolding

company in aggregaic ;

Particulars As al 31 March 2022 As ut 31 Mareh 2021

Nuomber of Shares I'ercencage  Numher of Shares Perecniage
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up, held by:
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Fie Lid 125,580,400 74,945, 125,580,400 R3.25%
General Allantic Sinwapore KFT Ple Lid L.608.503 0.96% - -
Tatal 127,188,903 T5.90% 12558400 853.25%

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the €

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars MNumber of Shares Percentage  Number of Sharcs Percentage
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up, held by:

General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pre Lid 125,580,400 74.94% 125,580,400 83.25%
Compar Eswtes und Apencies Private Limited 18,414,290 10.99% 18,414,296 12 24%
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limaiwed 16,725,104 O R - -
Tutal 160.719.796 95.91%, 143,994,696 95.46%

Shares held by promoters al Lhe end of the year:

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

r te o =during o ing

romnter name Na. of shares Percentage of % of chapge during No. of shares Percentage of towal %5 of change doring
total sharcs the year sharcs the year

Equoity shares of INR W0 cach Tully paid wp, held hy:

General Atlontic Singupore Fund Pre Lid and its assocuies 127,188,903 75.90% -8.83% 125.580.400 83.23% -

Total 117,188,903 T5.90% 125,580,400 8§3.25%

During the period of five years immeiutely preceding the respective balance sheel date, no shares were allotted as fully paid up punsuant to a cantract withoul payment being reeeived in cash

other than 110,000,015 wquity shares of INR. 10 each,

The Company has not allatted any shares as Tully paid by way of bonas sharcs during the live year period immediately preceding the respeetive balanew sheel date

During the period of previous five years immediately procediog the respective balance sheet date, the Company has bought back 14,987,846 equity shares under Buy-hack Plan 2019

Enforcernent Dircetorate {EL3) vide its arder dated 24 Septermber 2021, has nstructed the Parent Company e to facilitate the alicnation’ saled creation of any lien or lighility in respect of equity
shares held by certain shareholders On || March 2022, the Parenl Company has received Provisional Attachimem Order Mo 06/2022 dated # March 2022 issued by the Deputy Directar,
Directorate of Enforeement, Hyderabad Zonal Office. whereby the ED has provisionally anachud the equiry shares bheld by those shareholders
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A As at As at
Syl Na 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Other equity
Capital reserve a
Balance at the beginning of ihe year 1.00 1.00
Addition during the year = -
Balance at the end of the year 1.00 1.00
Securities premium b
Baiange at the beginming of the year 22 %34 33 22,824 33
Add: Premuium recaived upon issue of equity share capital 29,327 69 .
Less: Expenses incurred on issue of shares (2,092 76) -
Add: Transfer from securities premium on exercise of stock options .07 -
Balance at the cod of the year 50,059.33 22,824.33
Debenture redemption reserve (DRR) c
Balance at the beginning of the year 15000 75000
Lesgs : Transfer to General reserwe (Refor Note 19(1) (750,00} -
Ralance at the end of the year - 75000
Retained earnings d
Balance at the beginning of the year (585171 363 49
Add: Profief (loss) for the year 14,855 00 (6,450,86)
Addf {less). Premium payable on RPS recopnised as financial lizbility (Refer Note 19) (1482935 -
Add/ {less)Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation for the year (30.53) 3560
Balance at the end of the year (5,906.65) (5,851.77)
Statutory reserve e
Balance at the beginning of the year 36 80 36 80
Movement during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 36,80 36.80
Foreign Currency Translation reserve f
Balance at the beginning of the year 720 30.87
Movernenl during the year 2579 {23.67)
Balance 8t the end of the year 32,99 7.20
Share based payment reserve E
Balance at the beginning of the year 289 70 16810
Add: Charge for the year 91547 12160
Less: Transferred to secunitics premium on exercise of stock options (0.07) -
Balance at the end of the year 1,205.10 289.70
Capital redemption reserve h
Balance a1 the beginoing of the year 1,498 78 1,498 78
WMovement during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year . 1,498.78 1,498.78
Gencral reserve i
Balance at the beginning of the year E =
Add: Transferred during the year from DRR [Refer Note 19 and below note {c}] 75000 -
Balance at the end of the year 750.00 -
Total other equity (a+brotdretfrgrh) 47,677.35 15,556.04
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(a}

(b)

(d)

(e)

8]

(2)

(h)

0]

Other equity
Nature and purpose of other rescrves

Capital reserve
Reserve created was on cancellation of equity shares pursuant to Scheme of amalgamation appraved by National Company Law Tribunal during year ended 31 March 2019,

Securities premium
The amount received in excess of face valee of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve, [t can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Comparies Act,
2013,

Pebenmre redemption reserve (DRR)

According to Section 71 of the Companies Act 2013, where a Company issues debentures, it (s required to create a debenture redemption reserve for the redemption of such debentures,
The Cental Govemment on 16 Aupust 2019 has amended the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 to exelude listcd companies having privately placed debentures from
the requirement of maintaining DRR Accordingly, the Group has not ransferred any amount Lo DRR from the year ended 31 March 2020

On 29 Drecember 2021, the Group has carly repaid the debentures and theraby the reserve is no longer required and hence ransferred 10 general reserve.,

Retained earnings
Retaingd carmings represents the net profits after atl distributions and ransfers to other reserves

Other Comprehensive [ncome compnises of

R rement of defined benefit plans

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans represents the following as per Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits:

{2) actuarial gains and losses

(b) the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), and

() any change in the effcel of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) and
{d) tax effect of the above adjustments

Statutory Reserve

Under the provision of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, an amount equivalent to 10% of the subsidiary's profit for the year before appropriatien is required to be ransferred to a
non distributable reserve account up to a minimum of 50% of the issued share capital The Group decided to discontinue such wansfer since the rescrve has already reached 50% of the
paid up share capital

Share-based payment reserve
The Parent Company has established various equity-settled share based payments plans for certain categories of employees of the Group. Refer Note 46 for further details on these plans.

Foreign currency translation reserve
Exchange differences ansing on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss wher the net investment is disposed-off.

Capital redemption reserve
Represenls reserve created for cancellation of 14,987,846 equity shares bought back under buy back plan in the financial year 2019-20 (Refer Note 17}

General reserve

The general reserve is used time to time to wansfer profits/ reserve from retained eaming/other component af equily (such as DRR) for appropriation purposes, There is no policy of regular
transfer As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one componenl of cquity to another and 18 not an item of other comprehensive income, ilems included in the gencral reserve
will not be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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M

(i)

20

21

. As at As at
gasticalare 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current borrowings
Non-convertible Debenturcs (secured) - Refer Note (i) below - 34,58R.97
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 21} - (5,200.00)

E 29,388.97
Redeemable preterence sharcs (Refer Note {ii) below) 2.00 -
Premium payablc on redemption of RPS (Refer Note (ii) below) 12,249 42 -
12,251.42 -

12,251.42 29,388.97

In FY 2018-2019, the Group had issued 4,000 non-convertible debentures {NCDs) of INR 1,000,000 cach to Nomura Singapore Limited and Standard
Chartered Rank, Singapore for an amount of INR 40,000.00 {akhs. Transaction costs amounting to TNR 1,198.69 lakhs had been netted off against the amount
of NCDs. The NCDs are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange, India with effect from 29 November 2018. The NCDs were repayable in 10 half yearly
instalments commencing from 30 September 2019 to 16 November 2023 and carry an interest rate of 11.5% per annum payable half yearly. The loan was
utilised for the purpose for which was raised.

On 29 December 2021, the Group has prepaid the entire NCD including interest and prepayment charges. The Group has incurred a prepayment charges of
INR 847.14 lakhs which is debited to the consolidated statement of profit and loss as 'Other interest cost'. The Group has informed and obtaincd approval for
delisting the NCDs from the Bombay Stock Exchange.

Security

The debentures are secured by :

(1) a first ranking exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Account Assets under the [PA Deed of Hypothecation;

(1i) a first ranking charge by way of hypothceation on all the Company Assets under the Company Deed of Hypothecation

Redeemable preference share (unsecurcd)

Terms and rights attached to RPS:-

On 25 October 2021, the Parent Company has issued 1,000 non-convertible redeemable preference shares having face value of INR 200 each share (“RPS") at
par on a private placement basis for a maximum period of 20 ycars from the date of issue. These RPS shall not carry any voting rights. The RPS shall be
subordinated to the existing indebtedness of the Parent Company and any [uture senior debt that the Parent Company may take.

The RPS shall be redeemed by the Parent Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Share Subscription Agreement
(“SSA”) dated 28 May 2021 on or after 25 October 2023 (“the Target Redemption Date™) and a redemption premium of INR 13,400.00 lakhs shall be payable
by the Parent Company subject to satisfaction of the conditions prescribed under the SSA. These RPS carries preferential non-cumulative dividend rate of
0.0001% per annum (“Preferential Dividend™), which shall be applicable until 25 October 2023. The dividend shall be due only when declared by the Board,
In the event that the RPS are not redeemed on the Target Redemption Date or within 60 (sixty) days therefrom, in accordance with the S5A, then the dividend
rate applicable on the RPS for the period after the Target Redemption Date, shall sland revised to a preferential cumulative dividend rate of 7% per annum,
which shall further increase by 200 bps per annum at every anniversary of the Target Redemption Date, subject to a maximum of 13% per annum. The
payment of such dividend shall be subject 10 deduction and withholding of taxes by the Parent Company as per applicable law. The RPS shall be non-
participating in the surplus funds and surplus assets. The RPS are translerable subject to the conditions mentioned under SSA,

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 28 May 2021 between the Parent Company and certain individuals, who were minority sharcholders of the Parent
Company at such time, with regard to termination of rights of such sharcholders and Permitted Assignees {other than such sharehelders), in terms of the said
agreement, who were also shareholders of the Parent Company, under the then existing Shareholders Agreement dated 3 August 2017 (as amended pursuant
10 a supplemental agreement dated 3 April 2020), the Company was obligated lor an amount of INR 16,400.00 lakhs. The net amount payable afier
recovering, in terms of the said agreement, an indemnity of INR 3.000.00 lakhs is INR 13,400.00 lakhs payable aller a period of two ycars i.e on or after 25
October 2023, The Parent Company has issued Redeemable preference share (RPS) carrying maturity amount of [INR 13,400.00 lakhs (INR. 16,400.00 takhs
offset by INR 3,000.00 lakhs) through agreement dated 28 May 2021, Accordingly, an amount of INR 14,829.35 lakhs (amortised cost of INR 16,400.00
lakhs) has been debited 1o other equity representing the obligations to the shareholders with a corresponding credit of [NR 11,829.14 lakhs and INR 3,000.00
lakhs 1o non-current borrewings (representing amount payable ta the said shareholders under RPS net of indemnity of INR 3,000.00 lakhs) and current
financial liability {representing amount payable to the past Client (Refer Note 37), respectively. The current financial liability has been seitled by transfer of
invcstments as mentioned in Note 37. The balance of INR 1,570.86 lakhs (INR 13,400.00 lakhs lcss INR 11,829.14 lakhs) will be charged to consolidated
statement of profit and loss over the period of borrowing as interest cost under effective interest rale method as preseribed under Ind AS 105 — Financial
Instruments. During the year ended 31 March 2022, out of INR 1,570.86 lakhs, INR 42028 [akhs is expensed in the consolidated statement of profit and ioss
as interest cost

Non-current provisions
Provision for employee benefils

Gratuity 679,24 61347

Compensaled absences 164 70 135.80

Provision [or Indemnity 66,03 -
909.97 749.27

Refer Note 39(ii} for disclosure related to employee benefus.

Short-term borrowings

Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 19) - 5.200.00

Intercst accrued and not duc on non-convertible debentures - 24.42
= 5,224.42
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22  Trade payables

Total dues of micro cnterprises and smail enterprises * 18.23 30.50
Total dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpriscs 2,534 2,495.85
2,552.94 2,526.35
Ageing of trade payables as at 31 March 2022 is as under:
Outstanding for following period from the due date of
Particulars payment
Lcs;:::n ! 1to2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
Micro, Small and Medium Entcrprise 18.23 - - - 18.23
Others than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 232293 20974 0.32 1.72 2,534.71
Disputed dues - Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise - - -
Disputed dues - Others than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise - - - - -
Ageing of trade payables as at 31 March 2021 is as under:
Outstanding for following period from the due date of
Particulars payment
Lessthan 1 |[1to 2 years | 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
year
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisc 3.05 - - - 305
Others than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 1,742.13 11.41 742.31 - 2,495 83
Disputed dues - Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise + - - o -
Disputed dues - Others than Micro, Small and Medium Cnterprise - - - - -
*Refer Note 38 for disciosure relating to Micro enterprises and small enterprises
23 Other current financial liabilities
Security deposit payable 3183 3287
Employec payables 75327 354 34
Capital creditors
Total dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises * 1.78 -
Total ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 100 76 139 87
Stamp duty payable 1,477.82 1,225.65
Other liabilitics® 741,18 18311
3,106.64 1,975.84
Ageing of capital ereditors as at 31 March 2022 is as onder:
Qutstanding for following period from the due date of
Particulars payment
Less than 1 | 1 to 2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Tuotal
year
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 1.78 = & - 178
Others than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 100.76 - - - 100.76
Disputed ducs - Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 5 -~ - E =
Disputed dues - Others than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise - = = - 5
Ageing of capital creditors as at 31 Marcch 2021 is as under:
Qutstanding for following pertod from the due date of
Particulars payment
Lessthan1 | 1 to2 vears | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
vear
Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprise % - . . -
Others than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 139.87 - - - 139.87

Disputed dues - Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise - - -
Disputed dues - Others than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise < - "

*Reler Note 38 for disclosure relating to Micro enterprises and small enterprises
~ Balance as at 31 March 2022, includes an amount of INR 700.00 1akhs towards claim from a past client Refer Note 37 for further details.
The Group's exposure to liquidity risks related to above financial liabilities is disclosed in Note 41,




KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technologies Private Limited’)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)
(Al amounts are in INR lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

24 Other current Kabilities

Contract liabilities (Advance from custemers)y* 411.67 260,63
Statutory dues payable 1,145.42 763.71
Confract liabilities (Uneamed income)* 145.03 [31.39

1,702.12 1,185.73
*Also Refer Note 47

25 Current provisions
Provision for employee benefits:

Gratuity 28.62 17.09
Compensated absences 321.44 288.71
350.06 305.80

Refer Note 39 for disclosure related to provisions for employee benefits,

26 Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for tax* 1.240.94 129 81
1,240.94 129.81

*Net of advance tax INR. 13,935.54 lakhs (31 March 2021; INR 9,278,38 lakhs)



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technolagies Private Limited')
Notes to conselidated financial statements {continued)
(Al amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

27 Revenue from operations®
Sale of services

Total (A)

Other operating revenues
Recoverable expenses
Total (B)

Total (A+B)
*Refer Note 47

28 Other income

Intercst income from :
- Bank deposits (calculated using effective interest method on financial assets at amorti
- Unwinding of discount on depesits
- Income-tax refund

Dividend income from investment in mutual funds

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)

Liabilities no longer required written back

Income on derecognition of right-of-use assets and lease liability

Rent concession

Miscellaneous income

29 Employee benefits expense*
Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Share based payment expenses (Refer Note 46)
Staff welfare expenses

61,652.31 46,351.99
61,652.31 46,351.99
2,298.35 1,762.43
2,298.35 1,762.43
63,950.66 48,114.42
9.02 19.95
27.88 24.57

- 81.97
450.69 199.03
14.12 9.86
57.82 -
11.42 8.84
8.66 118.03
26.05 43.09
605.66 505.34
20,107.99 17,011.30%
1,729.00 1.399.11
o15.47 12160
496.13 328.55
23,248.59 18,860.56

* The Group has capitalised salary cost of [NR 2,537.40 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 1,416.8 lakhs) to the Other intangible assels/ intangible

under development.

30 Finance costs
Interest cost on linancial liabilitics measured at amortised cost
- on debentures ’
- on redeemable preference shares (Refer Note 19(11)(b))
Unwinding of interest on lcase liabilities (Refer Note 6)
Qther interest costs (Refer Note 19(i}))

31 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation on goodwill (Refer Note 44)
Amortisation on other intangible assets
Depreciation of right of use assct (Refer Note 6}

3,710.58 4,831.79
420.28 -
308.92 363.62
348.53 -

5,288.31 5,195.41
1.436.25 1,224.03

- 6,692.15
1,123.35 775.59
1,142.79 1,107.14
3,702.39 9.798.91




KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technologies Private Limited')
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)
{All amounts are in INR {akhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

32 Other expenses

Power and fuel 36740 486.49
Rent 301.03 598.09
Repairs and mainignance - Others 77.69 112.22
Rates and taxes 44.17 25.19
Legal and professional fee * 3,737.23 2,078.22
Consultancy charges 1,834.79 73310
Office maintenance 32527 37114
Security services 13240 109.47
Computer and sofiware maintenance 412,02 662.31
Corporate social responsibility** 69.18 33.52
Allowance for credit loss on trade receivables and other financial assets 570.81 20.92
Deposils written-off 2045 B
Credit impaired trade receivables written-off 237.88 38.44
Courier & Printing and siationery 2.319.33 2,253.57
Travelling and conveyance 308.83 127.97
Sharcd services cost 4.70 18.79
Insurance 69.94 43.05
Staff recruitment 94.99 39.19
Sales promotion and advertisement 54.58 40.82
Depository charges 534 2.27
Claims™ 877.50 1.67
Water charges 13.96 9.29
L.oss on sale of investments (Refer Notc 54) 73.43 -
Fair value (gain)/ loss on financial assets measured at FVTPL (72.08) 72.08
Bank charges 8.20 5.12
Foreign exchange loss (net) 7.61 47.09
Miscellaneous expenses 16.29 9.28
11,917.00 8,014.29
~ Expense for the ycar cnded 31 March 2022, includes an amount of [INR 700.00 lakhs towards claim from & past client. Refer Note 37.
* Payment to auditors (included in legal and professional expenses above)
As auditor
Statutory audit 30.00 26.00
Limited review 6.00 4.00
Certification 2.00 7.50
Others 150.00 3.00
Out of pocket expenses - 2.89
188.00 43.39

** Corporate social responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Parent Company. The proposed areas for CSR
activitics, as per thc CSR policy of the Parent Company are promotion of education of underprivileged children which are specified in Schedule

VI of the Companies Act, 2013,

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Parent Company during the year 65.10 33.07
b) Amount spent during the year (in cash} :

i} Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -

i) On purposes other than (i) above 69.18 33.52
c) (Shortfall) / Excess at the end of the year NA N
d) Total of previous years shortfall Nil Nil
e} Reason for shortfall Mo shortfall No shortfal
f) There are no related parly transactions. Nil Nil



KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technologies Private Limited')
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)
(All amounis are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

33 Earning per share (EPS)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders (A}

Shares

Number of shares at the beginning of the year
Add: Equity shares issued during the year
Number of shares al the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (B)
Effect of potential equity shares on employee stock option outstanding
Weighted average number of cquity shares for diluted EPS (C})

Basic EPS - par value of INR 10 per share (A/B) {in [NR)
Diluted EPS - par value of INR 10 per share (A/C) (in INR)

14,855.00 (6,450.86)
150,843,583 150,843,583
16,725,300 -
167,568,883 150,843,583
157,350,374 150,843,583
1,357,625 71,069
158,707,999 150,914,652
9.44 (4.28)

9.36 (4.28)

Since the Group has losses during the year cnded 31 March 2021, the Dilutive EPS and the Basic EPS are same as they arc anti-dilutive.
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3 Izcome tex

A A it 1 in the lidated

of profit and loss

Particulars

Current (ex expense
Curnent year

Deferred tax charge/feredit)
Change in recognised temporary differonees

Total tax expense

B. Amounls recognised in Other Comprehensive [ocome
Tax f[expensc¥incnme

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

FPrufit belore tax

Enacted lax raie in India*

Tax using the Halding Company’s domestic tax mtc
Tux effect of:

Tmpact of change in Finance Act, 2021*

Permanent differences

Non recognition of defermed tx

Impact of differcncial tax mte

Dthers

* Duyring the financial vear 2020-21, the Finance Act, 2021 has inroduced an amendment to Scetion 32 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, whereby g
avodwill will not be allewed as dedugtible cxpendimng eifective 1 Apnil 2020 In
between Goodwill a8 par the boaks of account and its updated tax hase of Nil resulting fram the afnzmentioned amendment

D. Movement in deferred tax bal

1 with the

Far the year ended For the year ended
A1 March 2022 31 March 2021
3,833 37 3709
583337 131.0%

{288 343 12,964 35
(288.34) 12,564 35
554500 13,201 44

(27 0K) 11%7

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2012 31 March 2021
20,400 03 6,750 58
23 169% 25 168%

3,134 28 1.694 49

11,192 46

26708 37720

2607

(2003 i o)

146 53 (61 25}

5345.03 1320134

dwill of a busi will not be idered 25 2 d asset and d

of Ind A5 12 Income Tavees, the Parcnt Company has recognised one time oo expense as Ihe oulcome onllu.‘ dlﬂ‘cnmcc

. ]

Parti Ag at Acquirad through = " Ll Recognised in Asal
articulars 1 doel 2021 business combinalion  Statement of profm Other Comprehensive Ot it 3] March 2022

i (Refer Note 44047 and loss account Lncome R are
Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill and olher intangible assets (12850 55) 197 23 LT 1% - - (13,070 64)
Provision for expecied eredit loss on trade reenivables and cortain other 31735 - 143 €8 - - s21m
financial assels
Provision for employes benefits and certain gther Liabiliigs 304 79 - 260 708 - 404 47
Hhers (287 36) . 5490 . (232.44)
Deferred tax liabilities, net (12,495.81) 19723 288 34 27.08 (12377.62)

Arquired through Reeognised in Recognised in =

Particulers LA A?qutozu hmil:?m mmhinn'lnn Statement of profit  Other Comprehensive g::ngmw.i o 3n MM :tmn

et (Refer Mote 44{A4)) and Ipss ercount Ingcome e equity i
Property, plant and cquipment, Goodwill and other imtang bl asscts (3,984 82) 19,423 77y (12850 54)
Provisign for cxpected credit loss on made reccivables and cortain other 35475 2260 37733
finaneial assets
Provision for emplayee benefits and cortin other lizbilides 216 63 4011 {1197y 304 79
Carmy forward losscs 311407 (3,114 07 . o
Others |99.85 {44727 [287.36)
Deferred tax linhilities, net 43020 (12 964.35) [11.97) {12495.81)

E. Deferred @x assets are recognised for tax Josses carry-forward 1o the exteat that the realisation of the related @ bene(it through Riture waxable profits is probalble The Group did not recognise deferred 1ax asscls in mspect of a

bsidiary whosc Josscs 110 MR 145 §7 lakhs, (31 March 2021 [NR 3 (6 lakhs) reapectively that can be carried-forward against future taxable income These losses can be caried -forward as belaw:

5 Asal Agal
Particula.

= 3 Murch 2022 31 March 2021
Losses with cxpiration (8 yoars) 103 59 306
Lgsses withoul cxpiration datc 6 83 -
Amount of Deferred tox that has not been recorded al the vear end
Tax rate 23 168% 25 168%
Deferred tax assel not recorded a5 al ywar cod 43 41 [0
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Nates to consolidated financial statements (continued)
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35 Segment information:

oL Particulars

No

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

!

Segment revenue

Registry services 59.361.78 43,645.03
Data processing services 4224 35 4,201.82
Penston fund solutions 364.53 267.57
Total revenue 63,950.66 48,114.42
Segment results
Registry services 30,011.34 13,988.62
Data processing services 2,595.86 2,112.19
Pension fund solutions (497.28) (353.68)
Total 32,109.93 15,747.13
Unallocated (expenses)/ income
(a) Unallocable expenses (7,027.25) {4,306.48)
{b) Finance cost (5,288.31) (5,195.41}
(c) Other income 605.66 505.34
Profit before tax 20,400.03 6,750.58
Tax expense 5,545.03 13,201.44
Net profit/ (loss) after tax 14,855.00 (6,450.86)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Scgment assets
Repistry services

Data processing services
Pension fund solutions
Total

Unallocated

Total

Segment liabilities
Registry services

Data processing services
Pension fund solutions
Total

Unallocated

Total

72,243.68
4,379.65
306.81
76,930.14
25.710.81
102,640.95

5,287.83
247.68
30.58
5,566.09
32,640.62
38,206.71

68,198.63
6,305.25
270.34
74,974.22
17,286.99
92,261.21

4,812.32
1,027.32
42.35
5,881,99
51,738.82
57,620.81
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KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as "KFin Technologies Private Limited”)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)
(Al amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

35 Segment information {continued)

7 Information about geographical areas

. i For the yvear ended For the year ended
Revenue from operations attributable to external customers 31 I\iarch 2022 31 N%'larch 2021
Within [ndia 56,478.64 41.271.82
Qutside India
USA 4.145.13 4034.53
Canada 72.72 189.81
Rest of World 3,254.17 2.618.26
Total 63,950.66 48,114.42
As at As at
i 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Within India 74,578.48 67.281.06
QOutside India 162.47 61.36
Total 74,740.95 67,343.02

8 Information about major eustomers (from external customers)

The Group derives revenues from the following customers which amount to 10 per cent or more of the entity’s revenues in the respective

year:
Customer For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Customer A 8,966.87 6,721.60
Customer B 8,244.37 6,635.65
Customer C 8.259.32 5.475.74
Total 25,470.56 18,832.99

(a) The Group is engaged in three business segments: Registry services, data processing services and pension [und solutions. Based on the
"management approach” as defincd in Ind AS LOB - 'Operating Sepments’, the Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Group's
perlormance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by busincss segments. Accordingly, information
has been presented along these business segments. The accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial results are consistently

applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segments.

(b) Segment result represents the profit before interest and tax earmed by each segment without allocation of central administrative costs and

other income.

(c) As allowed under Ind AS 108- “Operating Segments™, the segment information disclosed above is based on the consolidated financial

results,
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KFin Technologies Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technologies Private Limited')
Notes to consolidated financial statements {(continued)
{Aff amowns are in INR lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

36 Commitments and contingent liabilities

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
A, Commitments
(Capital commitments as on balance sheet date 686 81 306.19
B. Contingent liahilitics
{2} Customer claims net acknowledped as debts 105972 -
(b} Income-tax matters* 241933 9836
() Service 1ax matters** - 920 46
{d) Goods and service lax matiers 12635 -

*Armount for the year ended 31 March 2022, primarily includes show cause nolice received [rom the income tax authoritics relating to tax treatment of depreciation
on goodwill claimed in AY 2020-21 aggrepating o INR 14,801 51 lakhs {Tax impact [NR 2,320.77 lakhs). The Parent Company has submitted its responsc to the
income tax authoritics. The Parent Company has evaluated these notices and has concluded that any consequent income tax claims or demands by the imcome 1ax
authorities will not succeed

Further, the Group periodically reecives notices and inquiries from income tax authorities related 10 the Group's operations and retums filed.

** During the financial year 201 1-12. the Karvy Computershare Private Limited (hereinailer referred to as the " Transferor Company™y had received an order from
the Comiissioner of the Customs, Central Excise and Service Tax under Section 73(1) of the Finance Act. 1934 demanding service tax of INR. 1146 11 lakhs on
reimbursement of expenses and penalty and interest thergon. pertaining to period from [0 September 2004 w0 31 January 2007 The Service tax on Registrar to an
Issue and Share Transfer Agent services was introduced vide Finance Act 2006 and the notification 15/2006 dated 235 April 2006 with effect from | May 2006
The rules for determination of valuc of taxable service was notified vide Notification No 12/2006 dated 19 April 2006, wherein Rule 5 prescribes tor the inclusion
of expenditure or cost incurred in the course of providing "taxable service”. hence such inclusion was prescribed only for the "taxable service" which in this case, 18
applicable with effect from | May 2006 The Transtecor Company. by way of abundant caution. had deposited an amount of INR 216 65 lakhs and interest
thereon, pertaining to period from | May 2006 to 31 January 2007 The Transferor Company preferred an appeal to the Customs. Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT), Bangalorc and obtained stay order on the above order and the matter is pending disposal. As per the above mentioned notification.
the Service Tax on Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent was made applicable only with etfect from | May 2006

This matter was finally heard in October 2021 and an order was passed in favour of the Group with no outflow of rescurces and therefore the matter stands closed
as at 31 March 2022

{e) The Group is a party to certain pending cases with regulatory authorities relating to the initial public offerings of ils customers that have taken place in earlter
years These cases are pending at various levels of legal disposition Tn the assessment of the management and as tegally advised. these matters are unlikely Lo have
a material impact on the conselidated financial statements ot the Group

() The Hon’ble Supreme Cowrt of India {*SC7) by therr order dated 28 February 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others vw/s EPFO. set out the
principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identiticd for incluston in basic wages tor the purposes of computation of Provident Fund
contribution The Parent Company has started complying with this prospectively from the month of March 2019, [n respect of the past period there arc signiticant
implementation and interpretative challenges that the management is facing and is awaiting for clarity to emerge in this regard. pending which. this matier has been
disclosed under the contingent liability. The impact of the samc is not ascertainable

{@) In September 2018, the Parent Company has reecived show-cause notice from Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority ('PFRDA') letter alleging
the Parent Company for undertaking a regulated activity of Point ol’ Presence {POP) = Service establishment and serviced UTT POP without any approval [tom
PFRIJA to act in thas capacity The Parent Company has submitted its responses to PFRDA and all hearings have been attended

During Lhe vear. the inquiry proceedings were dispossed off without requiring any further action as no contravention as alleged in the show cause notice were
found established The matter is concluded without levy of any penalty

{h) The Parent Company has received a letter dated 24 August 2021 from PFRDA secking compensation amounting to INR 263 00 lakhs towards breach off SLA
for the delay in dispatch of PRAN kits and Annual Statement of ‘Itansactions (SOT) to the subscribers during Covid [9 lockdown, The Parent Company hus
submitted its response stating the factual position and reasons for Lhe delay and that 0o loss has been suffercd by any subscriber. therefore. there should not be any
compensation ¢laim The matter 15 under further discussion

{1) Subsequent the year ended 31 March 2022, the Parent Company. on 5 April 2022, has received a show cause notice from SEBI dated 31 March 2022 sesking
explanation as to why an inquiry along with penalty should not be initiated under certatn provisions of the regulations in relation to RTA inspection held {or the
period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 On 10 May 2022 the Company has filed a sertlement application with SEBI in accordance with Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Seulement Proceedings) Regolations, 2018 The final outcome of the matter (s not yet concluded and theretore the penalty. if any is not
quantifiable Management believe that Lhe ultmate outeome of these proceedings will not have any material adverse effect on the consolidaled financial statements

{3) The Group is party to ccrtain cases relaung o customer complaints which are at various levels of resolution and litigations The management 1s confident off
resolution of these cases in its favour and does not expect any inatertal impact on the consolidated financtal statements Further. the Group 15 proforma party to
certain cases relating Lo SuCCession MAtters. partition suits. ete which are at various levels of resolution and litigations. There 15 no direct invelvement of the Group
in these matters and accordingly having no materiaf impact on the consolidated financial statements

The Group is contesting the above mentioned demnands and the Management believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process and accordingly
no expense has been acerued in the Group financial statements for the demand raised/ show cause notice received as the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will
not have a material adverse effect on the consolidaled [inancial statements
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)
(A amounts are in INR lakhs, urfess otherwise siated}

37 The pre-amalgamated Company (Refer Note 44(B)} was the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of a past Client (“the Client”y until 5 April 2021 The Client had

33

a demat account (“Escrow Account™ with ene of the Depository Participants (“DP™) for depositing its shares in escrow for the purpeses of its initial public
offering The Company identified in the financial year 2020-21 that 794,489 shares were transferred by the DP {300,000 shares in 201 | (which translated into
1,000,000 shares pursuant to a bonus issue undertaken by the Client in 2017) and 294,489 shares in 2020) from the Escrow Account to the DP’s own demat
account and to a third parly’s demat account through an off-market transaction without any authorisation from the Client and without knowledge of the Company
The Board of Directors of the Company after considering legal advice purchased 1,294,489 shares and transferred these sharcs to the Escrow Account of the Client
on & ‘good faith and no fault’ basis, alter reducing the amount payable upon redemption, in future, of the Redeemable Preference Shares (Refer Note 19) issued in
October 2021, by INR 3.000 lakhs {Refer Note 1%1iXb)). The dividend received on such shares by the Company in the financial year 2021-22 of INR 40 77 lakhs
was also transferred back to the Client, [ntimation letters were sent to the Client and SEBI on 15 November 2021 inferming them of transfer of shares to the
Client’s Escrow Account and refund of dividend to the Client

Further, the Board of Directors of the Company after considering legal advice, approved payment of up to INR 70000 lakhs (bascd on an estimation of potential
losses that may be suffered by the Client) by the Company to the Client, for the purpose of settlement of any potential claims by the Client (including dividends on
such shares for carlier periods). The Company will initiate proceedings against the concerned parties, including certain minorily sharehoiders, for recovery of the
amount paid and payable by the Company lo the Client in connection with this matter upon completion of final settlement with the Client. Congidering Lhe
assessment of recoverability, the Company has made a provision of INR 700.00 lakhs as on 31 March 2022. Pending the final settlement of terms to be agreed with
the Client, the Management has measured the provision at its best estimate

Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the MSMED Act") based on the infermation available
with the Gronp

The Management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Group and which gualify under the definition of micro and smalt
enterprises, as defined under the MSMED Act. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the ameunts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 has been
made in the consolidated financial staternents based on information reccived and available with the Group. The Group has not received any claim for mterest from
any supplier under the said MSMED Act

Particul As at As at
e 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 2001 30.50

[nterest due thereon remaining outstanding as at the end of the year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act -

The amount of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed date during each accounting - -
year

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay tn making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year} but without adding the interest specificd under the MSMED Act

The amount of interest acerued and remainimg unpaid at the end of the accounting year -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprisc, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act

Note: The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of mformation available with the Group
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Notes to consolidated Minancial statements (continued)
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39 Employee benefits

The Group contributes to the following post-employment deflined bencfit contribution in lndia

(i} Defined contribution plans:
Emplovee Staie Insurance

The Group makes contribution towards Employee state insurance for its employees. The Group's contribution to the Employees' State Insurance is deposited with the

povemment
Provident fund:

The Group makes contribution towards provident fund for employees The Group’s contribution 1o the Employees' Provident Fund is deposited with the Government under
the Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellancous Provisions Act, 1952, The contribution paid under the plan by the Group is at the rate specified under the Fmployees'

Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

During the year, the Group has recognised following amounts in the consolidated statement of profit and loss {included in Note 29 Employee benefits cxpense);

Particulars For the year emled For the year cnded

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contrzbution to provident fund 1,333 78 1,034.63
Contribution to employee state insurance 157 30 15594
Defined Contribution Plan - foreign subsidiaries 447 3317

(i} Defined benefit plan:

The Giroup makes annual contribution to a gratuity fund administered by trustees and manaped by Life [nsurance Corporation of [ndia (LICY Every employee is entitled to a
benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn [or each completed year of service in ling with the Payment of Gratuiry Act 1972 The same is payable at the time of
separation from the Group or retirement whichever is earlier

A. Bascd on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect. the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Group's financial
staternents as al balance sheet date:

As at As at

31 March 2022 3t March 2021

Nel defined benefit liability 707 86 630 56

Current (Refer Wote 25) 2862 17.09

Non Current (Refer Mote 20) 675 24 613.47

B. Movement in net defined benefit liability/ (asset)
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net detined benefit {asset) hability and its components.
(i) Defined benefit obligation
Particulars i Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginmung of the year 1,388.02 1,405.76
Add: Transfer on account of acquisition on business combination 3928 =
Adjusted balance at the beginning of the year 1,428.30 __1,405.76
Included in Consolidated statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 136,96 146.42
[nterest cost 84 70 20.32
241.66 237.24
Included in Other comprehensive income
Rermeasurement loss/ (gain)
Actuarial loss/ (gain) arising from financial assumptions 102 59 (56 27
- demographic assumptions -
- ciperience adjustment - -
on plan assets - -
102.59 {56.27)
Others
Benefits paid (260 94) (97 71
{260,94) (197.71)
Balance as at end of the year 1,511.61 1,389.02
(i) Fair valuc of plan assets
Particulars A R
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year {758 44) (902 34)

Add: Transfer on account of acguisition on business combination . -
Adjusted halunce at the beginning of the vear (758.46) (902.34)
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Employee benefits (continuad)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Included in Consolidated statement of profit or [uss
Expected retum on plan asscis
Investment income

Included in Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement loss/ (gain)

Actuarial loss/ (gain}) arising from:

- financial assumptions

- demographic assumptions

- experience adjustment

- on plan assets

Others

Contributions paid by the employer
Benalits paid

Balance as at end of the year

(iii) Net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

a)

b)

1]
it)

Balance as at beginning of the year
Add: Transfer on account of acquisition on business combination
Adjusted balance at the beginning of the year

Included in Consolidated statement of profit or loss
Expeeted returmn on plan asscts

Current service cost

[nterest cost

Included in Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement loss/ (gain}

Actuarial loss/ {gain) arising ffom:

- [inancial assumptions

- demographic assumptions

- experience adjustment

- gthers [ OB difference)

- on plan assets

Others
Benefits paid

Balance as at end of the year

. Plan assets

Particulars

Investment with Life [nsurance Corporation of India

(27.42) (61 88)
(27.42) (61.88)
- 560
(14.51) 2.45
{14.51) 8.05
(264.30) -
260.94 197.71
{3.36) 197.71
{803.75) {758.46)
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
630.56 503.42
3928 -
669,84 503.42
156 56 146,42
57.28 2894
214.24 175.36
102.59 {5067}
(14.31) 245
88.08 (48.22)
(264 30) -
(264,300 <
707.86 630.56
Ag at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
100% 100%

On an annual basis, an asset-liability maiching study is done by the Group whereby the (Group contributes the net increase in the actuarial liability to the plan manager

{insurer) in order 1o manage the liability risk.

. Actuarial assumptions

Economic gssumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate, expected rate of return on plan assets and salary prowth rate, Financial and demographic valuation assumptions are as

foilaws:

Discount rate (pa)
Salary increase (pa )
Withdrawal rates (pa )

Demographic assumptions

Retirement age (years)
Mortality table

As at Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
T17%-718% & 0%
4.00% 4 00%

1 00%- 2 00% t 00%
AS at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
58 years 58 years

[ALM (2006-08)

[ALM {2006-08)
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E. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined bencfit
obiligation by the amounts shown below

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate { 1% movement)
- [ncrease (123.89) {118.00)
- Decrease 14271 130.37
Future salary growth {1% movement)
- Increase 179.50 169.77
- Diecrease (154 72) (146.04)
Mortahty rate {1% movement)
- Increase 290 14.09
- Decrease {291) (2.62)
Attrition rate { 1% movement)
- [ncrease (97 84 (B9.75)
- Decrease 107.90 9922
¥. Expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted gratuity benefit is as follows:
Particulars S il
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Duration of defined benefit payments
Less than 1 ycar 87.90 -
Between 2 - 5 years 194 85 249.49
Between 5- 10 years 403 33 36841
Over 10 years 82553 FiL12
Total 1,511.61 1,389.02

Expected contribution to the post employee benefit plan during the next financial year is expected to be 31 March 2022; INR 172.20 lakhs (31 March 2021: [NR 17392
lakhs)

G. Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian povernment secunties as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the
obligations

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply
and demand in the employment market.

Other long-term employee benefits:

The Group provides compensated absences benefits to the employees of the Group which can be carried forward to future years. Since the compensated abscnees do not fall
due whaolly within twelve months after the end of the penod in which the cmployees render the related service and are algo not expected to be utilhsed wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has incurred an expense on
compensated absences amounting to INR 177,62 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 146,92 lakhs). The Group determines the expensc for compensated absences basis the
actuarial valuation of the present value of the obligation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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40 Related parties
A Names of related party and nature of relationship

. Ultimate helding company :
GASC MGE.LLC, Delinvare (w e L7 November 2018

ii. Holding Cempany :
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pue Lrd

iii. Enterprise where promaters! premoter group hold control:
a) Rubicon Rescarch Povane Limited

b} Advagen Inc

¢} Advagen Phanma Lid

d) Rubicon Consumer Heallheae Pyl 1.1d
) Kia Biopharma Technaiogics Pyr Lid

Iy Rubicon Academy 1P

2) Rubicon Rescarch Canada L1d

Iy Rubican Research Pvt Lid [Singapons)
it Advagen Holding 1WNC

11 Adwvatech Bio Pharma Ll

k) Advagen Realty LLC

1} General Atlantic Singapore KFT Pre Ltd

iv, Enterprise where promoters/ promoter graup hold significant influence:

a) Ochre & Black Private Limiled {w e 3] December 2019

b) Krishina Institute of Medical Sciences Limiled (w e { 31 December 2019 10 28 June 2021

&) leonkrishi Instituie of Medical Sciences Privare Limited (w e £31 December 20019 1o 28 Junc 2027

v. Key Management personnel (KMT)
a} ¥ Ganesh , Chiel Executive Officer and Managing Direcior (up 1o 12 June 2020}
b) Venkata Satva Steckanth Nadella, Chiet’ Execulive Officer and Whole tine Direetor (w.e.f 12 June 2020

¢} Kaushik Mazumdar, Independent Ditectol

d} Sonu Halag Bhasin, Independent Direcio

e} Sandeep Achyut Naik, Direcio

) Vishwanaihan Mavila Mair, Direeton

) Shantanu Rastogi, Direcior

) Vishesh Tayal, Dircetor (w e 124 March 2020 and upto 26 May 2020
11 Prasham Sarar, lndependent [ireclor {w e I 20 May 2020;

) Srinivas Peddada (w.e [, 02 July 2020)

k) Jaideep Hansraj {w e [ [0 November 2021

vi. Post-cmployment benenit plan
a) KFintech Private Limired Emplovers Group Gratuity Assurance schem

B. Transactions with the related parties
. For the year ended For the vear ended
Particulars y y
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
iy Holding Company
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pre Ltd
Reimbursement of [PO related expenses (Refer Noie 497 847 20 x
i) Enterprise where promoters! promaoter group hold significant infuence;
Ochre & Black Private Limited
Fee [rom investor services nos 005
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Fee from investon services - 008
iii} Key Managemenl Personnel®
Short-term emplovee benelis
- Remuneration pail EY i) 426 23
- Incentives! Bonus paid 133 50 1147 31
Share-based pavnwenl 347 29 11563
* The managerial porsonnel are vovered by the Group's gratuity policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with ather employvees of the Group The proportivnai
amount of graluity and leave encashment peraining 1o the managerial personnel has not been included 1 the atorementioned disclosues as these are determined o i
actuarial basis tor the Group as i whole
C. Related party balances

Particulars

Axoat
A1 Mavch 2022

Axoat
3] Mareh 2021

i) Holding Company
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pre Ld
Reimburgenient of 180 related expenses (Refer Naw 49

Al related party transactions enfered dusing the yean were in ardinary cowrse of business and are o amm's length basiz

84720
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A,

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

Fair value measarements

Financial instruments by category

The Following table shows the camying ameunts and fur valugs of financial essets and financial lishilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy 1t docs not include the fair valus information for Snancial assets and
financial lighilities not 1 at Fair value if the carrying amount is a reasanehle spproxamation of fair value

Carrying anount Fair value
N Fair value throogh
AdRESNIMarchi202x Fair \-'Flue tl:lrnugh ather cam;m:hensﬁve Amortised cost Tatal Level [ Level 2 Level 3 Toual
profir and loss el
Financial assets
Non-current assets
Other non-current finincial agsets - 614 B4 614 84 - - E -
Currenl assels
Current investments 9,308 31 . - 9,308 31 0,308 31 - - 9308 31
Trade receivables - - 11,259 60 11,259 60 - . -
Cash and cash equivalenis - . 4,501 26 4500 26 =2 = c
Bank balances other than cash and cash - - 1534 1534 - -
equivalenis
Loans - - 1407 14 07 -
Other current financial assets 1,904 83 1,904 83
930831 - 1831194 17,610,125 30831 - E S383 1
Financial liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
{i} Borrowings - 12,251 42 12,25142 . . -
{ii) Lease liahiliries - - 2,505 70 2,505 70
Current Liabilities - - =
{i} Borrowings - - = =
{ii} Leasc lisbilitics S . 1,208 30 1,209 30 3
{iif) Trade peyables - 2.552%4 23520 .
{iw) Other financial liabiliti - . 1,106 64 3,106 64 i ‘
= E 21,5626.00 21,626,000 - - - =
Carrying Fair value
As at 31 March 2021 Fair valie through Fair value through Amnartized Cost Total Level L Level 2 Level 3 Total
profir and Joss other comprehensive
ANCOINE
Financiul assers
Non-current assets
Other non-current financial assels - 51038 520 38
Current assets
Current investments DA% 32 9,450 92 G490 32 - - G490 37
Trade receivables LL05% 19 E1.059 19
Cash and cnsh equivalents - 2,292 6l 2,292 60 - a
Benk balences other than cash and cash - 5434 54 34 - 3
equivelents
Loans - 26 BB 26 BE
Other current financial assets - - LIBI 35 18I 35 - - -
949092 - 15.134.74 214,625.66 S.A50.52 - - 9,450,921
Finameial liabilities
™on-current Liahilities
{i} Borrowings 29388 97 10388 97 E
(i) Lease liabiliries - 2626 44 2,626 44
Current Liabililies
{i} Botrowings 5,304 42 5,224 42
{ili) Trade payables - . 2,526 35 2.52635
(i) Leese liabilities - LoI2 37 1812 37 .
{iv) Qther cucrenn financial linbiliti 1.975.84 | 97384 - -
- - 42,754.30 42,7439 -

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the finangial instruments that are:
{a) recognised end measured at fair value and

{b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosad in the
Ta provide en indication about the reliakilily af the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group hes clagsificd its financial instruments ino three levels preseribed under the Indian Accounting Standard |13 A explanation
of each level follows undernealh 1he table

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices

Level 2; The Fair valug of fingneial insiruments that are not kraded in an active market (for ¢xample, traded bands, over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuati hni which maximise the use of obsarvable
market data and rely as littlc as possible on entity-specific estimates 1fall significant inputs cequiced to Far valug an instrument are observable, the instrument is included 1 level 2

Level 3: If one ar more of the significant wputs 15 not based on observable marke1 data, the instrument i included in Jewel 3

There are no iranefers between level | and level 2 during the year

Valualion process

The finance department of the Group perfonms the valuation of fnancial assets and liabilities required for financial reparting purposes, including level 3 fair values This team reparts direcily to the Chief Financial Officer
D iong of valuati and results are held between the fnance contraller and the finanee 1eam at lzast onee every quarter

p
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C.

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)

Fair value of ial assets and liabilities d ar amgrtised cost
i q As at As at
Carrying amgunt and Fair value 31 March 2032 31 Mareh 2021
Finanrial assets
Other non current financial assets 614 34 52038
Trade recervables 11,259.60 11,059 1%
Cash and cash equivalents 4,503 26 1292 6
Bank balances other than cash and eash equivalents 1534 54 34
Laang 1407 26 BB
Other current financial assets 1,304 83 11EL 35
1831 1.94 15,134.74
Finanrial labilities
Bormwings 12.25] 42 34,613 39
Trade payables 2,552.94 2526 15
Lease liabilities 1,715.00 3,638 BI
Qther curent financial liabilines 3,106 64 1,975 B4
2162600 41,754,39
The carrying of trade bles, rade payables, capital creditors, cash and cesh equivalents and other payable for capital goods are coasidered to be the same as their fair values duc to their short-term nature

. Financial risk management

Rizk manapement Mmamework

The Holding Company's Board of Directars has overal] respansibility for the blish and ght of the: Group's rsk management framework The Board of Directors has conshituted an Audit Cormittes which is
responsible for monitoring the Group's risk manepement policies. The Group’s risk management policics arc established 10 ideatify and analyse the nsks faced by the Group. 1o sel approprisis nsk ficnits and controls and ro
ronitor Hsks and adherence te limits Risk management policies and gystems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market canditions and the Craup's activities The Group, through its traimny and management standards
and procedures, aims 1o maintain a disciplined and construetive control in which all employ | 1 their roles and obligations

The Group has exposure to the following rsks arsing from Anancial mstruments.
2} Credit risk ;

) Liquidiry nisk; and

¢} Market risk

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the Group ifa cusiomer or counterparty to a financial instcument fails 1w meet its contraciual obligations resukting in 2 Gnancial loss to the Group Credil nsk encompasses both the direct
risk of default and the risk of dctcrioration of eredit worthiness as well as concentration risks Crodit risk anses principally from trade receivables, loans, advances, security depasits, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with

a. Louns
It consists of employes payables The Group docs not expact any nsk for the said loans as these are given to empluyecs of the orgamsatian

h. Trade receivables
The Group's expasure te credit risk is nfluenced mainly by Ibe mdividual ch ics of each However, 2 alsg congiders the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the
defaull nsk of the industry and country in which customers operate

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represenis its expected credit fosses in respeet of trade and ather recenvables The management uses a sinmplified approach for the purpose of compuration of expected
credil loss For trade receivables An impairment analysis is performed at each reparring date

The management has established a credit policy under which cuch new is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the standard payments and delivery terms and conditions are offcred The average credit
penod provided to cumomers is around 40 days The Group review includes extzmal ratings, customer's credic warthiness, f they arc available, and 11 some cases bank references

“The customer base of the Group comprises of vanous comperate, state governments and mutual Fund houses all having sound financial condinan An impairment analysis is performed at each reponing date on invoice wise
receivables balances

Geagraphical concentration of eredit risk: Geographieal ion of trade receivables (nrass) s s follows:

Particulars Asal Ag at
31 March 2022 11 March 2021

Dutside Tndiz 131220 EREY]

Within [ndia 11,941.40 1181t 57

Total 13,273.60 12,502.38

Cash and rash cquivalents and deposits with banks
Cash and cash cqurvalents of the Group are held with banks which have high credil ratng, The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit nsk based on the exdemal credit ratings of the counterparties

[nveshments in equity instrument of other companies and mutual funds
The credit nsk fur the mvesioments in equity mstrument of other comparnics and mutwal funds is considered as negligible as the counter partics are reputable Companies and mutual fund agencies wirh high eaemal ceedit ratings

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using lifetime expected eredit losses

Particul Agal Asal
teulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivibles [Graks) 13,273 60 1230238

The Group has made write-ofs of trade recevables ax disclosed m Note 32 as 1 does net expect 1o recewve future cash flows o recovenes from collection af recervables The Compamy’s management also pursie il legal
aptans for recavery of dues, wherever necessary, based on s uiemal assesament

Refer Note 11 for Reconcilistion of lass allowance provinion for Trade recowvables
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41 Financial insiruments — Fair values und rish munagement {cantinued)

ii, Ligoidity risk
Liquidity nsk is the nisk thal the Group wall encounter difficulty in meeting the abligations agsociated wath ity fnancial ligbilitics that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asser The Group's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that il will bave sufficient liquidity 10 meet its Tiabilitics when they are due, under both narmal and stressed condinons, without incurring unacceptable tosses or Asking damage to the
Group’s repuration

Prudent liquidity sk implics mai ing sufficient cash and marketable sceurities and the cash flows gencrated from operations to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions Due Lo the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group's treasury maintains flexibility i funding by mointaining availability under eommitted credit lines

Management menitors relling forecasts of the Group's liquidily positien camprising cash and cash cquivaleats on the basis of expected cash flows This is generally carried out in accordance wath practice and limits sel by the
Group In addition, the Group's liquidily managemenl palicy vvalves projecting cash lows in major cusrencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary 16 meet these, manitonng balance sheet liquidity ratios against
internal and external Jarory i and maintaining debt financing plans The Group has a nel currant assets of LN 17,738 00 [akhs as a1 31 March 2022 (31 Warch 2021 INR 12,557 &7 lakhs)

Maturities of inancial liabilities

The following are the 1 , contractual maturines of f | liabiliies at the reporng dare The arg gruss and undiscounted and exclude the impact of natting sy
Carrying amount
Particulars as at mf::;:::’:;s Uptolycar B 1-2ycarm B 1-5Syears Moare than 5 years
31 March 2022
Nan-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 255294 2,551 255294 - -
Bomowings™ 12,251 42 13,400 0 13,400 00
Leate habilitics 371500 452322 1,435 49 778 05 1441491 84717
{rther financial liabiliti 3,106 64 3,106 64 3106 64 - -
Total 21,626.00 23,582 80 T 01507 14,178.05 144191 #47.77
Cirrying amount
Particulars as ar ln:i?:z‘:‘:::rs Upio Lyear  Between 1-2 years Between 2-5years More than 5 years
31 Muarch 2021
Non-derivative linnncinl Usbilities
Trade payables 252635 252635 2,526 35 -
Borrowmgs* 34,613 1% 44,385 70 5324 08 L1406 63 13,654 99
Lease habiditics 363E 8] 4420 55 131558 L2al 97 1264 4] 548 5%
Other fi | fabyel 1, 97584 197584 1,975 84 . ‘
Tomual 42,754.39 S3,308.44 15,141.85 12,668.60 14,549.40 548.59 i
* The contractual Cash flows includes interest obligation on bamowings
iii. Market sk
Marker risk is the risk thal changes in market prices — such as foreien exchange rates and incerest rates - will affect the Group's Revenue Fom operations or the value of its holdings of financial instruments  The objective of
market nsk management 15 (o manage and control market fsk exp within ptabl while optimising the retum

[nterear rate risk

“The Group does nat have any borrowings with vanable cates Group has all of its borrowings at fixed cate The Group has issued Non convertible borrowings at fixed interest rate The same has been repiad during the year
Exposeere tu interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearng financial instruments as reported to the management ol Ihe Geoup 1s as fellows:

Asal Az at

31 March 2(22 31 Marech 2021
Filced-rafe insiruments
Financial assets 48 24 63 36
Financial liabilines 12,251 42 34,613 39
Cashi flaw i, tysis for variabie-rdte i
There are no vanable rate barrowings of the Group Henee, change in inerest rates would not have an impact on cash flows of the Group
Fajr valwe v frsis_for fived-rafe instruments

The Group does not aceount for any fixed-raie financial agsews or financial liabilives at faic value through profit or loss Therefore, a chanpe i interest rates at the reparting dae would not affect peofit or loss

Currency risk
The Group 15 exposed to fereign currency nsk on certan transaenons that are denomimated in 4 currency other than entily’s functional currency. hence exposure 1o cxchange rare flucruabons arses

EXposure o cirvency risk

The summary guantitatiwe das about the Group's unheducd cxposure to sienificant currency nsk in freign currency and d currency as reponied o the man of the Group is ag fallows

Financial assels Az at As at
31 March 1022 31 March 2021

Trade reegivables Forpuem Cumensy

LS 33 13g

CAD 417 a2z

AUD 102 221

GEP LLR] ol

MYR Itad 47

Trade mwemynbles - indian Currency

8318 A 97 9343

CAD Lo 3l 1267

ALD 3813 12291

oRF lad0 1318

MYR 209 53 197
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (coninued})

Sensitivity analysis
A bly possibl hening (weakening) of the INR against all ether currencies ai year-end would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in & foreign currency and affected profit or loss
after tix fol the year ended by the amounts shown below This analysis : that all sther variahles, in particular interest rates, remain
As at As at

fmpact an praft after tax 31 Murch 2022 31 Muvch 2021
Net currency receivables/ [payables)
USD - 1% strengthening (407 (0 95)
USD - 1% weakening 407 095
CAD - 5% strengthening {052) [0.65)
CAD - 5% weakening 052 065
AUD -1% strengthening {0 58) {123}
ALTD - | % weakening 058 123
GBP -10% strengthening (1.04) {132)
GBHP - 1{% weakening 104 132
MYR. -10% strengthening {20 95) {2.20)
MYR - 10% weakening 2095 220

. As at As at
tmpact on equity 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
et currency receivebles' (payables)
USD) - 1% strengthening {3 05) (071}
USD - 1% weakening 305 071
CAD - 5% strengthening {039) (0.49)
CAD - 5% weekening, 039 049
AUD -1% strengthening {043 (0.92)
AUD - 1% weakening 043 0,52
GBP -10% sirengthening (0 78} [0.99)
GBP - | 0% weakening, 078 0.99
WMYR -10% strengthening (1568) {i.64)
MYR - 10% weakening 1568 1.64
Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to

&) safeguard their ability to continue as B going concem so that it can continue to provide return for shareholders and benefits for other stakehalders,
b} meintein an optimal capial siructure to reduce the cost of eapital; and

t] ensure li with regulatory th required to he maintained in accordance with SEBI guidelines

In order Lo maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amounl of dividends paid to shareholders, retum capitat 1o shareholders, issue now shares or sell t raduce debr

Consistent with others in the mdusiry, the Group menitors capital on the basis of the fellowing geaning ratio:
et debt (Lotal borrowings net af cash md cash equivalents and current pquity instrument of other companies and investment in mutual funds) divided by total “equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet, excluding Capital reserve,

Capital redemption reserve, Del phion reserve, Share besed payment reserve and Statutory reserve) The gearing ratios were as follows:

. As at As a1
Particulars 31 Macch 2022 31 March 2021
Wet debt - 22,829.87
Tatal equity 61,692 36 32,064 12
Net debt to equity ratio 0.00% T1.20%

* Net debi is computad es Borrowings less sum of Cesh and cash equivalents, Bank balances and Current [nvestments As at 31 darch 2022, Net debl position is negative and henee represented as Nil

Debt covenants

Under the terms of the debeniures agreement , the Group is required 1o eomply with the following financial covenanls:
a) DSCRA not less than [ | firmes during the tenure of the debentures

b) Masirmum Net Debt! EBITDA nol 10 ¢xceed 3 75 times

The Group has complied with thesz covenants upio the date of repayment of debentures

Further. the SEBI (Registrars 3o an Issug and Shere Transfer Agents), Rules and Regulations, 1993 require the Parent Company to maintain @ minimum net worth of TNR 50 lakhs at all times Such net worth is computed based
on a formula given in the SEBI guidelines as per which Nel worth = Share capital + Free reserves and surplus - debit balanee in the P&L - Preliminary expenscs not written off - !.ntanglble assets - Deferred Tax mssets For
computing this nel worth, the carrying value of grodwill amounting to INR 54,343 09 takhs (31 barch 2021: [NR 52,455 44 lakhs) that has anisen on account of the busi hinations is not deducted by the

This is i with the methodalogy followed by the Parent Campany in the submissions made earlier 10 SEBI and i based on legal adviee obiained by the Parent Company Basis such computation, the Parent Company is
in complignce with the minimum net worth criteria as per afir d SEBI pudeli
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43 Impnirment test of goodwill
The Group is carmying goodwll apgregatnge o INR S 3451000 Lakie aeoge 21 8Margh 2027058 March 2020 INK 32 455 03 akbebclomed 0 m Mot 3 and 44007 The Greop a5 3 whole has
bevn identified as 2 sinple CGU For the sear ended 31 March 2022 the poodsoll mngswnnent as been assessed ar the £ GU level The recow erable ameannt al’ the Gonduill has been
dutenained as per valoe 11 use method vsing degoumad cosh Mo s
The walues d o thy key i TCPrCsenl manaeeen s assossient o e rendk o e relesant imdustmes and have been assiened hased on hstancal daia hail from exemat
and rmal sources
The projeclions caver a reasonakle pened that the Grapp beligugs s w by the mos appropnawe mmcsetls over whigh o s en and consider aonual pedommanees belore apply i 3 fsed
erminal value nuoltiple to the fanal sear cash Aows The wrowih ety used to csimate folnne perlonmancy ang based an the congeran g gsimaees from past pedonnanes
The Group has perfonned sengitisits analy sisarsund the base assunaplions and have concluded that ne reagonable changes m key assumphons would cause the recos crable amount of the
CGU to be bess than e corming vabie
The Gronp perfomms an annual impaipmen) Tes) of goodw il T s iparmmenl s as perfonmed Ton die veme cided 31 danch 2022
The following growth and disconnt s Bave been considered Fon the puiposy ol the impamic i wsnne
Particul As ot As il

articulirs 31 Mavch 2022 31 March 202]

Discount mte 4% 4%
Terminal value ran 3%, 3%
Budgered EBITDA growth maie for vanous e enoe stream W3 1S500 22 27% 20 6% 0 33 Wi
= The discount mle is a posl-lax ineasure cstimaned based on the hisioncal mdusin aserpe woiehted-oyeraee cost ol capial
- The cash flow projeetions includy speei fie cstimates Tor flve sears and & sermunal geoss de e dbhergariee e terminal growth e 1as been determined based on management”s estimate of
Lhe long=termn compiund amual EBITDA erow i mie, consistent w nh the assumphions thal o marke pasicipant sauld make
- Budgeted EEITDA has heen estimated lakmg inta aceoum past espenoncy and ospriewd grms i e nest ve seass
The Graup belivves that amy neazonably possible change i the ke assumpiions on wich the e emble amoun 15 based would nol cause the apgregate €amying anount o execed the
aegrepate reeoverable amaont of the cash - generaung umt
Also Refer Mate 44(R) in respect of approval recened from NCLT towards jestng thy goodwall for wapaimment w v 1 Apnl 2021

44 Business combination

A) Acquisition of Hexagrom Fintech Privale Limited by Lhe Group
Dwring the vear. e Pacent Company has cotened into 2 Share Purchase Agrcement {5FA] W acquare T00%, equins interes! an Hexagram Fintech Frisvae Limited wifh offect fraom 7 Februgry
2022 for a net purchase consideration of MR 2,513 33 lakhs The {arwalve of assars and Tabibmeshan e been compuied by a tird parms valuer s ide their eepont dated 4 June 2022 The fair

value of assets and liabilitics acquined and the purchase d on raid 15 d d as undur

Th ils of e same 3 n the wable below

Particulars Amount
Purchase considerntion (A) 15153
Fair value of identiliable assets and linbilities acyuired

Assets

Intangible assels

a¥ Customer relationships 139 05
b) Computer seflwan: 264t
¢} Trademarks 434 90
d} Non-compele agrecment 393 24
v} Mon—curment lax assels 5530
) Curment assuis 33334
Totuol assets (B} 1,500,33
Liabililics

a} Mon-current liabiliies 30 dfy
bJ Current liabil 638 96
] Defermed vy liabilin 19723
Totul Hahilities (C) ¥72.65
Fair value of Met assets {D=B-) 627,63
Goadwill (4-D) 1.487,65

The poodwill is mainky atiributable w 1he strone costomer base and the sy uetzies espected W be aclieved foom mepmung te et inta the Gronp s existing Slandard business

Mensurement of Tuir values

The valuatien techniques used for measuring the Faur saloe o maienal asscls acquired were as [oblow:
Assets acquired Valuntion technigie
Compuler sofiwan Cost techmgue The salwaton mudel considers deprecialed replacemeni cost when apprapnate

Incemu hased approach method Thus rocalls aoms o captung the ftere eammgs of @ potental of an imangibleand are used
o estnmate e s alwe based on progecied Tutwre cash Moves over the assets ceonomic lile This method considers the diseounted

vamawd memmy from ey gusiomer contrazls thar irnsliemed The eesaling sen cash floses are also leimed as inulli peried

Custamer relationships n

wwooss cannnes  The I-period eaeess muthed
wenyraled by cselndmy ans eash fNows nelaoed 1w conbuon assers The eash rllows and omflons ane in pooeral derdved
Teenn prajeetvd 13
With and wotheut imethod - This method annes oocalue e mtangible based on the difference m the value ot the husiness with
A Wy haw considered s method wesalue the Noo-comipere Apreement bascd

the present salue of et cash faws expected o be

il infarmation

Man-compele agrement e vl e enisnge md se b thy s
Iniamuhle Asas
Reliel Fram B ah Slethod valies th iniangible baged on e amgam al ros sdne one weuld have had re pas uan gnn s lengih
arrmeeinenl W aceure smeularnehls to the st This rosalty income nepresents the cost sasings of the owner of the assen he
Tradvmnarks ot duses 0o hang o pas neaings i 3 paree o e Deense w e e sanealle asset The deris awon ol e rosaln
e cemprews sl e deternnmaien of revemre annbulable e the a=zsen and the dewenmmation ol the appropiate
ol ke W D oeed L method ocalue Technalees related T

bt bl st

The busi I ul thes b ss combination was b enable e Gronp omeeease the marcken shure thrauch new customers

Mel cash Now on acquistion :

Pavizilulars Cash Mow on sequistion
Nel cash acquired with subsidimn 1006 THD

Cash paid 1231533
Fua ncquired receive

Paricilulars s o ddate af sequisition
The wross conteactual amonnts eeeiahle 336 22

226,22

Tha st wstimate at the acquiston dale of contmetual cash floms not evpustod 1 he colleciod prn

e

nbuted revemucsal PNE 2077 kB s peatin Bebere s ol B2 80 Tabhe waihe Groop for e peried 7 Febanses 2022 e 35 Maech 2022 0 e acguusilions
h 2022 wondd by Been T0R 08 1602 U8 lakhe and INR 213 277 48 lakhs respeatinely

T aeyuirad b ss co
had pconrred on | Apnl 2

1 Tor e vear cnded 31 S

2L pra-Tonna resenoe and profin hel



KFin Technologics Limited (formerly known as 'KFin Technologies Private Limited')
Motes to consolidated financial statements {continued)
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

44 Business combination {continued)
B} Amalgamation of the 'RTA undertaking' of KCL into the Group and Amalgamation of KCPL into the Group

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company in their meeting held on 2 August 2017 approved a Composite Scheme ol Armanpgement and Amalgamation berween
Karvy Consultants Limited (KCL), Karvy Computershare Private Limited (KCPL), the Parent Company and their respective shareholders under the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Scheme’). The Scheme has been approved by the National Group Law Tribunal vide their order dated 23 October 2018 which has been
filed with the Registrar of Companigs on 17 Nowvemnber 2018 Therefore the Scheme has become effective on 17 November 2018

As per the Scheme, the ‘RTA undertaking' of KCL (as explained below) and KCPL were amalgamalted into the Group with effeet [rom 17 November 2013, the details of
which arc given below:

Amalgamation of the 'RTA undertaking' of KCL into the Group

In the Scheme, the 'RTA undertaking' of KCL is defined as the asscts and liabilitics relating to the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) business of KCL including the
investment held by KCL (50% equity stake) in KCPL. In accordance with the Scheme, this RTA Undertaking of KCL has been amalyamated into the Group with cffect
from 17 November 2018 in consideration of issue of 110,000,015 equity shares of INR. 10 each of the Group to the sharehoiders of KCI. (as per the share swap ratio
approved in the Scheme).

As specified in the Scheme, this amalpamation has accounted for in accordance with the Purchase method of accounting as per Accounting Standard 14 - on *Accounting
for Amalgamations’ Accordingly:

a} dll assets and liabilines of the RTA Undertaking of KCL including the investment held by KCL in KCPL have been recorded at their existing book values as at
Naovember 16, 2018 {as certified by the independent auditors of KCLY,

b} the consideration, being the face value of the said equity shares issued by the Group to the shareholders of KCT. has been recorded at par value; and

¢} the difference between 2) and b) above amounting to TNE. 1,0937 50 lakhs has been recorded as Goodwill

Amalgamation of KCPL into the Group

On 17 November 2018, the Group acquired a 50% stake in KCPL from an cxisting sharcholder Further, on 17 November 2018, the 'RTA Undertaking' of KCL got
amalgamated into the Group, thus vesting the remaining 50% stake of KCPL to the Group. Accordingly, on 17 November 2018, KCPL became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. However, the amalgamation of KCPL into the Group also became cffective on the same day, and henee, KCPL got merged into KFPL on 17
November 2018.

As specified in the Scheme, the Group has accounted for the amalgamation as lollows:

a) 2ll assets and liabilities of K.CPL have been recorded at their existing book values as at 16 November 2018;

by the difference between the cost of investment in KCPL as appearing in the books of KFPL and the net book value of assets as per a) abeve amounting to INR
56,003.47 lakhs has been recorded as Goodwall

&g per the Scheme, the cumulative goodwill anising on the transaction amounting to INR. 66,540,98 lakhs is being amortised over a period of 10 years. Goodwill

The Board of Directors of the Group at its meeting held on 01 September 2021, have approved the application filed with National Company Law Trbunal (NCLT
application’ on 28 Cetober 2027 for discontinuing amortisation of goodwill As per the Scheme approved earlier in October 2018, 1he goodwill was being amortised over
a period of ten years, Pursuant to the approval of the NCL'T application via order dated 2 March 2022, the amortisation of goodwill has been discontinued with effect
from 1 April 2021 As per Ind AS 36— Impairment of Assets, the Group continues to annually test the impairment on Goodwili Also, Refer Note 43 for further details of
Impairment testing of goodwill
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Impact of COVID-19

The Group has taken into account the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these consolidated financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity and going concern
assumptions, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets. The Group has carricd out this asscssment based on available internal and external sources of information up to the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements and beliceves that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these consolidated financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount of its asscts. The
impact of COVID-19 on the consolidated financial statementsmay differ from that cstimated as at the datc of approval of thesc consolidated financial statcmentsowing to the naturc and duration of COVID-

19.

Share Based Payments

The sharcholders of the Parent Company vide their mecting held on 31 July 2019 have authorised the Board of Dircctors to introduce, offer and provide share-based incentives to cligible employces of the
Group under KFPL Employce Stock Option Plan 2019 ('ESOP Plan 2019'). The maximum number of shares that the Parent Company can issuc under the ESOP plan 2019 were 9,593,839 cquity shares.
Subscquently. the members of the Parent Company have approved renaming the plan as Employee Stock Option Plan 2020 (‘'ESOP Plan 2020') and canccllation of 2,500,000 options in EGM held on 20
October 2020. The Board and Nomination and Remuncration Committec (NRC) of the Parent Company have notified seven schemes under the ESOP Plan 2020 up to 31 March 2022. The revised number
of options availablc under the ESOP plan 2020 pool arc 7.093.839 cquity shares as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: 7,093,839). The options under these schemes vest to the employces based on various
performance and other parameters. As at 31 March 2022, the Parent Company has granted 6,502,563 (nct) (31 March 2021: 2,666,728 (nct)) options to cligible employcces as identified by the NRC. Thesc
options vests between a minimum of 1 to 3.65 years from the date of grant.

Description of shure based payment arrangements

Particulars Scheme A Scheme B Scheme C Scheme D Scheme E Scheme F Scheme G
Datc of Grant 8-Aug-1Y, 8-Aug-19 R-Aug-19) 01-Nov-21 01-Nov-21 I-Nowv21 24-Mar-22
13-Jan-20) 13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 24-Mar-22 24-Mar-22,
8-Scpt-20) 8-Sept-20 8-Scpt-20)
29-Dec-20f 29-Dce-20 29-Dec-20
1-Nov-21 1-Nov-21
Number of options in pool 7.093.839
Total number of options granted as at
As at 31 March 2022 1.002,514] 1.392.641 | 1.223.370] 1,903,905 | 385,170 | 396,823 | 198,340
As at 31 March 2021 1,066,691 | ®00,019] 800,018 3 D - =

Exercise period

7 years [rom the date of listing of shares on the stock exchange for continuing employee or deceased employee and a period of 3 years from the date of listing of]
shares on the stock exchange for ex-employees

Vesting condition

Time based vesting
condition

Achievement of
performance condition
and non-market based
condition

Achievement of non-
market based condition

Time based vesting
condition

Achievement of
performance
condition and non-
market based
condition

Achievemenl of non
market based condition

Achievement of
performance condition

Vesting period

15% - end of ycar |
15% - end of ycar 2
35%- end of ycar 3
35% - cnd of ycar 4|

50% or 100% on
achicvement of target
specified in the schemc|
or 100% non-market
bascd condition

100% on achicvement
of condition spccified
in the scheme or 100%
on non-market based
condition

20% - end of ycar |
20% - end of year 2
30%- cnd of ycar 3
30% - cnd of ycar 4

50% or 100% on
achievement of target
specificd in the
scheme or 100% non-
market based

100% on achicvement
of condition specified
in the scheme or 100%
on non-market based
condition

100% on achicvement
of condition spccified
in the scheme

condition
Excrcise price 70.36) 70.36) 70.36 185.00 185.00 185.00 185.00
91.98 91.98 91.98
110.00] 1 l0.0(J 110.00
185.00 185,00

Measurement of fair values
The fair value of the options granted during the period and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-scttied share based payment plans mcasured based on the Black
Scholes valuation model] are as follows:

Particulars Scheme A Scheme B Scheme C Scheme D Scheme E Scheme F Scheme G
8-Aug-19| 8-Aug-19| 8-Aug-19 01-Nov-21 01-Nov-21 1-Nov-21 24-Mar-22
13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20| 24-Mar-22 24-Mar-22

Datc of grant 8-Scpt-20) 8-Scpt-20 8-Sept-20)|

29-Dec-20 29-Dec-20 29-Dcc-20]
—— 1-Nov-21 1-Nov-21
Fair Value of uption (In INR) 33.57/33.52 33.57/33.52 33.57/ 33.52 52.56/ 51.92 52.56/ 51.92 52.56 51.92
35.78 35.78/52.56 35.78/52.56,
70.36| 70.36] 70.36) 185.00 185.00 185.00 185.00
Excrcise price 91.98 91.98 91.98
110.00 110.00| 110.00]
185.00 185.00]
Risk free interest rate 6.47%/ 6.88% 6.47%/ 6.88% 6.47%/ 6.88% 6.79%/ 7.12% 6.79%/ 7.12% 6.79% 7.12%)
6.40%| 6.40%/6.79% 6.40%/6.79%
Elemaining contractual life 7/ 3 vears 7/ 3 vears 7/ 3 vears 7/ 3 vears 7/ 3 vears 7/ 3 vears 3 ycars|
. o 8.15/7.72 ycars 8.15/7.72 years 8.15/7.72 years|4.16 years/ 3.77 years| 4.16 years/ 3.77 years| 4.16 years,| 3.77 years|

Expected life of share options (years) 7.06 years| 7.06 vears/4.16 vears| 7.06 vears/4.16 years

Expccted volatility (weighted average 14.61%/ 13.96% 14.61%/ 13.96% 14.61%/ 13.96% 17.62%/ 19.34% 17.62%/ 19.34% 17.62% 19.34%)

volatility %) 16.16% 16.16%/17.62% 16.16%/17.62%)

Expccted dividend yiclds (%) - - - - ] - -

The fair value of the options granted during the period and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date {air values of the equity-settled sharc based payment plans measured based on the Black
Scholes valuation model arc as follows:

> The expected life of the share options is based on current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.
> Since there arc no listed companics in the [ndian market that arc absolutcly comparable to Parent Company, volatility of returns on the BSE500 index for historical period has been considered. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

> The risk free interest rates arc determined based on the zero-coupon sovereign bond yiclds with maturity equal to the expected term of the option.
The average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding is 3.77 ycars as at 31 March 2022 i.c. 0.27 ycars post lock in period of 1 year and average lifc of 3.5 ycars from the date of listing
(31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: 7.06 ycars post lock in period of 3.5 ycars and average lifc of 3.5 years from the date of listing).
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46 Share Based Payments {continucd)
C Reconcilistion of share options

Number of options ~ Number of options

Particulars asat asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Qutstanding at beginmumng of the year 200, T2 2,135,038
Granted during the year 4,064,126 1.815,58%6
Forfeited during the year {228.041) {1,882, 8096)
Exercised during the year (200) -
Outstanding at end ol the year 6,502,563 2,666,728

Exercisahle at the end of the vear

Durmg the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has granted 4,064,126 uptions (31 March 2021: t.815,586) under ESOP Plan 2019 to climible employees as identified by the Nomination and

Remuneratign Commillee (NRC.

D Effect of the Employee option plan on the consolidated ul profits and loss and on its Inancial positien
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2421
Total cployee compensation cost periaining to siock option plan (Refer Mate 297 91547 121.60
Reserves- Employee stock option plan outstanding as it the year {Refer Mote 133 1.205,10 289 70
47 Revenue from contract with s
k ‘Liming of For the year ended  For the year ended
(a) Type of Service recognition 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fee from  repisirars  and  investor Over the period 57.063.43 41,882.64
SErVICEs
Income fram data processing Over the petiod 4224 35 4201 §2
Income from pension fund solutions Over the period 364.53 267.53
Recoverable exr Over the period 2. 298,35 1.762.43
Total 63.950.66 48.114.42
*Foe fram vegistrars anil mvestor services and recoverable expenscs s been repor ted as Registry services under Note 33
(k) Centract balances:
Particulars As at ASTL
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade reccivables, ool* 11,259.60 11.059.19
Contract liabilities (uncamed income and advanee fiom cuskimers) 556.70 422.02
*Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of payment of 40 days.
(el Recunciliatien uf revenue with contract price
Particulars For the year ended Fur the vear ended
— 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Conlract price 64,236 09 4811442
Less  Adiusiments for price concessions 128547 -
Revenue from operations 63.950.66 4B,114.42
Performance obligation - The Giroup enters inbo contracts with custumers for renderite Corpurmte Regstry, Dat Processing and Pension Find Solutions services. The performance obligation lor all of
these services is satished pver the period. There {s no complexity involved in determination of performance obligation in contract with customers
Transaction price ;- Contract price is determined as per terms agreed with the customer and pe forther adjustments arc made o the same,
Payment terms :- The amounts receivable from customers become dus afier expiry of credit period which on an average is less than 40 days. The coniracts cntered with customers do not have significant
financing compoencnt.
Transaetion price allocated to remaining performance obligations :- The company docs not have performance obligations that are remeining/unsatistied at the end of Ihe reporing period There are no
contracts [or sale services wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to which mansaction price has been allocated
48 In I'Y 2020-2021, the Group vide lattcr dated 02 March 2021 has surrendered its license for operating as a Depositor Participant (DP) as it does not plan to launch the DP aperations due to change i the
busingss plansf strategy 1o Central Depository Services Limited (CSDL) and National Depository Services Limited (NSDL),
49 During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Parent Company has incurred expenses for varions serviers in conocetion with proposed public offer of cquity shares of agpeegating to TNR. %4720 lakhs fue

Initial Public Qliering (UMD} In accordance wilh Lhe Offer Agreement entered belween the Company and the selling sharcholders, the selling shureholdens shall reimburse such offer related expenscs
Accordingly, the Parenl Company will recover the expenscs incurred in connection with the issue on completion of TPO. The entire amount hus been curried forwurd and disclosed under the head "1PO
related expenses” under "olher currenl financial asseis”. In the cvent that the Offer is postponed or withdrawn ur abandoned for any reason or the Olfer is now successful or consummated, all costs and
expensss with respect to the Offer shall be borne shell be bome solely by the Parent Company.
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50, Additi infi ton p to paragraph 1 of Division [ of Schedulc T11 to the Companies Act 2013- "G 1 Instructions for the preparalion of i linancial
As at 31 March 2022
Net assels Share io profit or {loss) after | Share in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive income
{total assets minus total Jiebilities) Lax income

Name of the entity As % of Amounl As %ol Amount Az % of Amount A3 % of Consolidated Amount

Cansnlidated net Consolidated Consolidaied Totdl comprenensive

FLEr ] profit or loss oCl income

Parent
KFin Technologies Limiled L0 225 64574 74 103 D1% 15,301 53 100K -id 74 103 02%; 13,246 79
Subsidiarices in Indin
KFin Services Prvap: Limited D69 444 35 -0 7%, {103 39 - - -0 7o 103 59)
Hi Finlech Private Limited 1id% 731 63 -0 16% {24 39) - - 14 (24 39)
Foreign subsidiaries
KFin Technologies (Bahrain) WL L 0 55%, 15440 RLlire 037 - - 00 Lo 37
KFin Technalogies (Malaysia) SDN BIID it 5% 420 53 T 4%, G4 05 - 145% oh 05
Hexagram Finech (balaysiad SN BHD 7 16% 102 82 10 52% Tr2M - - 0352% T728
Adjuslmenls anising owl of consalidalion -3141% (2,194 29) -3 8% {472 25) - - -3 ¥ (472 23)
Total 100% 64,434, 24 10034 14, 35500 100% -54.74 1% 14,900.26

Aj at 31 March 2621

Net assels = Share in slber comprehensive _ o
{total mins toial liabiilles) Zhare io profil or {loss) after tax Income Sharc in tolal comprchensive income
Mame of the entity As % of An %ol c Ad % of As ‘KI- of Cnnsnlid.:‘nm
Consolidated net Amount Cansolidated Amaunt “monlg:lm Amuunt gats l:?luprehenswe Amgpunt
ancly profit or los income
Fareat
KFin Technologics Limited 99 |B% 34,356 4 104 35% (6,731 40) 100 0%, e 104 36% (6,719 47

Subsidiaries in India
KFin Scrvices Private Limited -0.01%) {2 06) 0 53% {2 14) - - 0 03% (214
; Finlech Private Limiled - . =

Foreign subsidiaries

KFin Technolopies (Bahrain) W L L 10094 kLI -2 1% 13521 - -2 0% 13521
KFin Technologiss (Malzysia) SON BHD 1 B3% 63305 -1 40% 4l 05 -1 419 o108
Hexagram Finleeh (Malaysia) SDN BHD - G -

| Adijustments anising oul of consalidation -2 0% (607 12y -0 ET% 5642 - -1 #¥%% 642
Tolal 0% 34,640.40 100% [6,450,86) 1% 1583 100% (6,435.93)

51. The Indien Parliament has approved the Code on Social Securily, 2020 which would impect the coniribulions by the Group towards Provident Fund and Grality The effeciive dale frem which the changes are
applicable is yot 1o be noliffed and the rules for quantifying Lhe financial impact are vel 1o be (camed In view of this. impact if @y, of Lhe change will be assessed and accounted in the vear of nelification of the relevant
PIOVISIONS

52, As al 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any long lerm contracts including dervative coniracts for which there were anv malenial foresecable fosses

53.The Group has nol given any foan or guaranies or pravided any Securily as covered under Seclion 186 ol the C Act, 2013 A dingly, the disclosure requirements (o thal extenl does nol apply Lo (he Group

54, Ne lunds have been advanced ot loaned or invested (gilher ftom borrawed funds gr share premium or any ather sources or kind of funds) by the Group 1o or in any other person(s) or eniitviies), including foreien endlies
(“lntermediarics™), with Lhe underslanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, Lhat he Inlermediary shall. whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlities identified in any manner whalsoever
by or on hehalf of the eompany {“*Ullimate Benefliciaries™) or provide any puarantes, secunty or the like on behall of Lhe Ullimate Beneliciaries excepl as disclosed in the Table helow -

No funds have been raceived by the Group [ram any persods or entities, including fercign emilies {“Funding Pariies”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wriung of stherwise, that the Group shall, whether,
direclly or indireclly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 1dentilied in any meanner whatseever (“Lllimate Beneficiaries™ by or on behal[ of the Funding Party or provide any guarantes, security or the Jike from or an
behalf al the Ulimalz B \aries, excepl as disclosed in the Table below -

The: Pareni Company has infused funds into one of the subsidiares i ¢ KFin Services Privale Limited ' Subsidiary Company') with the und ding Lhu Lhe subsidian pany will make the invesimenl in Lhe Arovalic
Dati Labs Privaie Limited and datails of the investments iranssetion are as follows
. Date of lunds el . N Date of iny in | A Lafi in
Funding Party transferred fiuncs D e Beneciary Ultimate Beneficiary Uldmate Beneliciary
transferred

FFin Technologles Limuled G-Apr-21 450 00 | Artivalic Daia Labs Povale Limiled B-Apr-21 3000

KFin Technologics Limited 27-Wpv-21 1040 00 |Arbvauc Dala Labs Povale Limited ID-Apr-21 350 (0
Annaic Dota Labs Frivate Liruled 23-Dec-21 402

Total S50 H 440.02

On 23 March 2021, the Subsidiary Company entered mio an agreement Lo invest in Artivatie Diats Labs Private Limited by subsaribing 10 3,51 | number ol equity shares ol TNR 1 each fully paid-up and 31.5%9 Compuisory
Convenible Preference Shares having 2 face value of INR 1 [or a1o1al consideration of INR 750 00 lakhs, colleclively comprising of 17% holding of Arivatic Data Labs Povate Limiled

During the cumean year, lhe Subsidiary Company made an investment of INK 440 02 lakhs (1owards purchase ol equity and preference shaves of Artvatic Daa Labs Private Limiled) for which il incurred tmansaciion costs of
INK.73 43 lakhs Subsequently. during the year these imvestments were dispased [oran amourl of INR 440 02 lakhs and aceardingly the amoun| of [NE 73 43 lakhs has been charged Lo consolidaed stalement of peolil and
loss

As per our Repart of even date atached

Jor BS R & Anypriates LLP Jor and or hehalf of Roard of Direcrars of
Chariered Avcotniumty KFin Technalogies Lionited
1€ A™Firm Registcalion Mo @ 116231 WAN-100024 CIN- L7240 TG0 TRLEC | 1748

1 Vishwanathao M Nair
ar Chairman

Sreclunth Nadel
Whale ime i

Vivik Narayan Mathur Uttam Kundu
Chiel Financial QTicer {ompany Secrelary
Membership Yo 099694 DIN: 2283165 DIN (iR 3978 Membershep Mo AQBRISS Membership Mo F1al91
Place Bongalury Place Mumbai Place: Munba Place: Mumbay Place Mumba

Date B func 2022 Dalg 06 June 2022 Date 06 June 2022 Date 06 Junc 2022 Dave 06 fune 2022
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 5" Annual General Meeting of members of KFin Technologies Limited
(formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) will be held on Thursday, August 04, 2022, at
02:30 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means, to transact the following
businesses.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

Item No. 1: To receive and adopt the audited financial statements (including consolidated financial
statements) of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, and the
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, and in this regard, to consider
and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements (including consolidated financial statements) of the
Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members and laid before the meeting, be and are hereby received,
considered and adopted.”

Item No. 2: To appoint Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik (DIN: 02057989), who retires by rotation as a
Nominee Director and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, including any amendment(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik (DIN: 02057989), who retires by
rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Nominee Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation.”

Item No. 3: To appoint Mr. Shantanu Rastogi (DIN: 06732021), who retires by rotation as a
Nominee Director and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, including any amendment(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, Mr. Shantanu Rastogi (DIN: 06732021), who retires by
rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Nominee Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No. 4: To appoint Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella (DIN: 08659728) as the
Managing Director of the Company and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to
pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder, including any amendment(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to
appoint Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella (DIN: 08659728) as the Managing Director of the
Company for a period of five (5) years, effective from June 06, 2022, not liable to retire by rotation;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198, 203, Schedule V and other
applicable provisions, if any, the Act and the rules made thereunder, including any amendment(s) thereto or
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to pay
remuneration to Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella (DIN: 08659728), including the remuneration to
be paid in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, as set out below which may be in
excess to 5% of the net profit of the Company computed in the manner stipulated in Section 198 of the Act:

i.  An amount not exceeding Rs. 4 Crore per annum, with Rs. 2.8 Crore as the fixed compensation
and Rs. 1.2 Crore as the target variable compensation, subject to the provisions of the Act, which
includes salary, allowances and perquisites;

ii.  Stock options not exceeding the limits specified in KFin Stock Option Plan, 2020 or any other Plan
or Scheme as may be approved by the Board from time to time and the perquisite value arising out
of exercise of such stock options (already granted or as may be granted from time to time);

iii.  Medical reimbursement as per the rules of the Company;

iv.  The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund, National Pension Scheme, superannuation or
annuity fund, gratuity payable and encashment of leave, as per the rules of the Company, shall be
in addition to the remuneration as aforesaid;

v.  Increment in salary, perquisites and allowances and remuneration by way of incentive / bonus /
performance linked incentive, payable as may be determined by the Board and /or the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board, shall be in addition to the remuneration as above;

vi.  Entitled to be reimbursed from the Company all the expenses incurred by him on behalf of the
Company;

vii.  Other terms and conditions as approved by the Board of Directors earlier will remain same.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for payment of
aforesaid remuneration even if due to the above payment the total managerial remuneration is in excess to
the over-all limit specified in Section 197 of the Act for respective year;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which
term shall include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board) be and is hereby authorised
to alter and vary remuneration as it may deem fit within the aforesaid limit;
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors are hereby authorized to do, perform and execute
all such acts, deeds and things and to settle all question arising out of incidental thereto, and to give such
directions as may be necessary or arise in regard to or in connection with any such matter as it may, in its
absolute discretion, deem fit to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors of
For KFin Technologies Limited

Alpana Kundu
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
M. No. F10191

July 13, 2022

Registered Office:

Selenium, Tower B, Plot No.31 & 32,

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad, Telangana — 500032, India

CIN: U72400TG2017PLC117649
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NOTES:

1. Considering the present Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its
circular dated June 23, 2021, read together with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, June 15,
2020, September 20, 2020, December 31, 2020, December 8, 2021 and May 05, 2022 (collectively
referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted convening the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”/
“Meeting”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”’) or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM?”), without the
physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In accordance with MCA Circulars and provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM.
The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

2. The statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) relating to the Special
Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is annexed hereto.

3. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is
being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.

4. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not
annexed hereto.

5. Corporate members intending to authorize their representative(s) to attend the Meeting are requested to
send to the Company vide an email at alpana.kundu@kfintech.com, a certified true copy of the relevant
Board Resolution authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting,
before the commencement of the Meeting.

6. In the case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names
will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

7. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report is being sent
only through electronic mode to those members whose email addresses are registered with the Company /
Depositories.

8. The relevant documents referred to in the Notice will be available electronically for inspection by the
members during the AGM.

9. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by
the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to
inspect such documents can send an email to alpana.kundu @kfintech.com.

10.Members seeking any information about any relevant item to be placed at the AGM are requested to write
to the Company on or before 11.00 am. on August 03, 2022, through e-mail on
alpana.kundu @kfintech.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

11.Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

12.Members can cast their vote by a show of hands during the AGM or by sending an e-mail to
alpana.kundu @kfintech.com in case of a poll.

13.Instructions for Joining the AGM through VC/OAVM
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In case you already have Microsoft Teams installed on your Laptop / Computer / iPad / Mobile Phone,
click on the “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” option from the invitation.

You will be connected to the meeting.

In case you do not have Microsoft Teams installed on your Laptop / Computer / iPad / Mobile Phone,
please follow the below-given procedure to participate.

Option 1: For participating through Windows / Mac Book/ Computer devices:

Open the email invitation using preferably Google Chrome browser.

Click on the “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” option from the email invitation / your calendar
events.

A new Browser window would open. Select “Join on the web instead”. Once you reach the
“Enter Name” prompt, enter your name and click “Join as a Guest”.

You have entered the Meeting. Make sure you start your camera and keep the microphone
“Mute” when not speaking.

Option 2: For installing Microsoft Teams on your Android / iOS / Microsoft Windows devices:

Click on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” from the email invitation/calendar events.
System will prompt you to download Microsoft Teams.
Download and Install Microsoft teams. Please do not try to log in.

Once installed, click on the invitation once again on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” from
the email invitation/calendar events.

You will be prompted to Microsoft Teams Application.
Click on the “Join as a Guest” option.
Type your Name and once again click on “Join as a Guest”

You have entered the Meeting. Make sure you start your camera and keep the microphone
“Mute” when not speaking.

14.Mr. Sandeep Achyut Naik (DIN: 02057989) and Mr. Shantanu Rastogi (DIN: 06732021) are interested in
ordinary resolutions set out in Item Nos. 2 and 3 respectively of the Notice. Save and except the above
none of the Directors of the Company / their relatives are interested, in any way, financially or otherwise in
the Ordinary Business set out in Item Nos. 2 and 3 of the Notice.
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
The following statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the Notice.

Item No. 4:

Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella was appointed as the Whole-time Director and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company with effect from June 12, 2020, for a period of five (5) years. In view of the
commendable growth of the Company and the outstanding leadership of Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth
Nadella, the Board of Directors of the Company has, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, and subject to the approval of the members, appointed Mr. Venkata Satya Naga
Sreekanth Nadella as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of five (5) years with effect from
June 06, 2022.

Pursuant to Section 197 of the Act, the total managerial remuneration payable by a public company, to its
Directors, including Managing Director and Whole-time Director, and its manager in respect of any financial
year shall not exceed eleven per cent. of the net profits of that Company for that financial year computed in
the manner laid down in Section 198. Further the Company in general meeting may, authorise the payment of
remuneration exceeding eleven per cent. of the net profits of the Company, subject to the provisions of
Schedule V.

Further, except with the approval of the Company in general meeting, by a special resolution the remuneration
payable to any one Managing Director or Whole-time Director or manager shall not exceed five per cent. of
the net profits of the Company.

It is proposed to seek the approval of the members of the Company by way of special resolution for the
appointment and remuneration of Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella as the Managing Director of the
Company as specified in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice.

Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella will continue to be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella has been granted stock options as per the KFin Stock Option Plan
2020 and 9,82,372 stock options are pending for vesting.

Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella satisfies all the conditions set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the
Act as also conditions set out under sub-section (3) of Section 196 of the Act.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company has recommended
the payment of remuneration to Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella as indicated in the resolution set
out at Item No. 4.

The members may further note that in case the Company has, in any financial year, no profits or if its profits
are inadequate anytime during the three years period starting from the date of approval of this item, the
aforesaid remuneration shall be paid to Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella as minimum remuneration
in accordance with the provisions of Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Act including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, as may, for the time being, be in force and as may be agreed to by
and between the Board and Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella.

Further the approval of members is also being sought to enable the payment of aforesaid remuneration even if
due to the above remuneration the total managerial remuneration is in excess to the over-all limit specified in
Section 197 of the Act for respective year.
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The members may further note that the payment of remuneration to Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth
Nadella as specified in the resolution may exceed five percent of the net profits and the total managerial
remuneration may also exceed to the eleven percent of the net profits of the company for respective year.

The aforesaid may be treated as a written memorandum setting out the terms of appointment of Mr. Venkata
Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella under Section 190 of the Act.

In accordance with Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, details of Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella are as under:

Sr. No. Particulars Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
01 Age 43 years
02 Qualifications Bachelor of Commerce, Chartered Accountant
03 Experience 20+ years
04 Terms and conditions of appointment As stated in the resolution
05 Remuneration sought to be paid As stated in the resolution
06 Remuneration last drawn, if applicable F.Y.2021-22: Rs. 2,69,35,658/-
07 Date of first appointment on the Board June 12, 2020
08 Shareholding in the Company 50 Equity Shares
09 Relationship with other Directors None
10 No. of meetings of the Board attended during  Eighteen
the year
11 Other Directorships/ memberships of KFin Services Private Limited
Committees of other Boards KFin Technologies (Malaysia) SDN.BHD
KFin Technologies (Bahrain) W.L.L.
Hexagram Fintech Private Limited
KFin Global Technologies (IFSC) Limited

Information required under Section II; Part IT of Schedule V of the Act is as under:

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Nature of Industry Technology

Date or expected date of Not Applicable
commencement of commercial
production

Financial performance based on The details of the financial performance of the Company for the F.Y. 2021-

given indicators 22 is summarized below: (In Rupees Lakh)
Revenue from operations :62,470.87
Profit before tax :20,763.13
Profit after tax :15,301.52
Foreign investments or The Company is the subsidiary of General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte.

collaborations, if any Ltd. (GA) incorporated on March 15, 2011. GA holds 74.94% equity share
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capital of the Company as on the date of the Notice calling this AGM.

II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE

Background details,
Recognition or awards, Job

profile and his suitability

Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella is the Whole-time Director and
CEO of our Company. He has been associated with our Company as the
Whole-time Director and CEO since June 12, 2020. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in commerce from Osmania University and is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He has over 20 years of
experience and was previously associated with Accenture Services Private
Limited as managing director, IBM Global Services India Private Limited
as transformation manager, Capita Offshore Services Private Limited as
transition manager, Callhealth Services Private Limited as chief operating
officer and Indian School of Business as their finance manager.

Past remuneration

F.Y. 2021-22: Rs. 2,69,35,658/-

Remuneration proposed

As recommended by the Board, the proposed remuneration may exceed the
limit prescribed under Sections 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Schedule V.

Comparative remuneration
profile with respect to industry,
size of the company, profile of
the position and person (in case
of expatriates the relevant
details would be with respect to

the country of his origin)

The remuneration proposed is as per Sections 197 and 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V and is comparable to the
remuneration levels of similar sized companies in similar industry.

Pecuniary relationship directly
or indirectly with the company,
or relationship with the
managerial personnel, if any

Reasons of special resolution
for of proposed
case of

payment
remuneration  in

No pecuniary relationship except remuneration as Whole-time Director and
CEO of the Company.

III. OTHER INFORMATION

Presently there is no inadequacy of profits for payment of remuneration to
the Directors, however, to enable the continuity in payment of
remuneration, it is proposed to seek the approval of members by special

measurable terms

inadequate profits resolution.
Steps taken or proposed to be Not Applicable
taken for improvement

Expected increase in Not Applicable
productivity and profits in

The Company has received the notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Mr. Venkata Satya
Naga Sreekanth Nadella signifying his candidature for appointment as the Managing Director of the

Company.

Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella is interested in the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the
Notice with respect to his appointment and remuneration. The relatives of Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth
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Nadella may be deemed to be interested in the said resolution to the extent of their shareholding interest, if
any, in the Company. Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice.

The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the members.

By Order of the Board of Directors of
For KFin Technologies Limited

Alpana Kundu
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
M. No. F10191

July 13, 2022

Registered Office:

Selenium, Tower B, Plot No.31 & 32,

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad, Telangana — 500032, India

CIN: U72400TG2017PLC117649
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KFin Technologies Limited

Registered Office:

Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31 & 32,

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad, Telangana — 500032, India

CIN: U72400TG2017PLC117649
Website: https://www.kfintech.com/
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